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onsumer Packaging
lobalpack, based in Brazil, is a leading
eciality manufacturer of complete
astic packaging sets for the cosmetic
d persenal care, pharmaceutical,

od and chemical industries.

Fibre Technologies

F|bre Technologies focuses on the production and
supply of special filters for cigarettes and bonded fibre
products such as reservoirs and wicks for writing
mstruments and printers, household products and
medical devices.

Clgarette Filters Bonded Fibre Components
Twelve locations wortdwide produce a With locations in the US, Germany and
wicle! range of filters from menoacetate to China, Fibertec is the leading manufacturer
multl segment special filters with sophisticated  of bonded fibre components used ina
adsorbent materials. wide range of consur:ner disposable
products including writing instruments,
inkjet printer reservoirs, medical devices

and air fresheners.
Fibre I’Technologies overview
2006] D]
Sales | £2547m | £2404m +5.9
Operating profit* £280m ' £26.9m +4.5
Margin ) 11.0% 11.2%

Il
" before intangible amortisation




At aglance

Filtrona plc at a glance

Plastic Technologies

Plastic Technologies produces, sources and distributes

protection and finishing products, self-adhesive tear tape

and certain security products as well as proprietary and
customised plastic extrusions and packaging items for

consumer products.

Protection and Finishing Products
Facilities in the UK, Gontinental Europe, US,
Canada, Mexico, and Brazil provide rapid

supply of primarily plastic products for general

protection, masking, electrical, fastening,
security and finishing applications.

Plastic Technologies overview

Coated and Security Products
Worldwide operations provide self-adhesive
tear tape and coated film products for use in
brand promotion, document authentication,
personal identification and other security
applications, including irack and trace
technology.

I F2006] D ]
Sales £289.5m £273.3m +5.9
Operating profit* £41.4m £37.6m +10.1
Margin 14.3% 13.8%

* before intangible amortisation

Plastic Profile and Sheet

Locations in the US, Mexico and

the Netherands supply thermoplastic profile,
shest and speciality tubes for a selected
range of applications including lighting,
fencing, signs and displays, refrigeration,
medical and traffic control.
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Filtrona is an international, market leading,
speciality plastic and fibre products supplier.

By concentrating on niche international markets
Filtrona has been able to establish and develop
strong positions in its chosen product categories.

It is a well invested global business, headquartered
in the UK, with 37 manufacturing facilities,

32 distribution units and four research facilities
spread across 23 countries in the Americas,
Europe and Asia. Filtrona employs some 5,600
people worldwide.

Fibertec {coven Cautionary Staterment

Filtrona Fibertec provides important conpenents Except for the historical infornmation contained herein, he matters cliscussed in this Annual Report and
tor peirt of care medical 1est kits. Each componernt Accounts include fonward looking staiements that involve risk and uncertainties that could cause actual
within the diabeies test device shown incorporates results 1o differ materially from thase predicted by such fonward looking statements. These rishs and
1.400 metres of fibre. uncertainties include internaticnal. national and local conditions as well as compettion. The Compiay

undertakes no ebligation to pubicly update any statement, whelher as a result of new information, tuture
o e Athieruaiss
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Highlights

for the year ended 31 December 2006

£988m

2 before intangible amortisation and demerger expense

e Above trend organic profit growth
e Protection and Finishing Products becomes largest profit
contributing line of business

¢ First FractureCode agreement signed

* Record performance within Plastic Profile and Sheet

o Cigarette Filters' Mexican facility makes profit in last quarter

» Fibertec factory expansion in China begins

Revenue Operating profit® Profit before tax

2004 ] 4775 1 531 W ] 45.7

2005 ] 5137 _1_ 578 ] 500

| I |
£544.2m_+59% £616m___+66% £540m__+92%

Net debt Adjusted earnings per share' Dividend per share’

]120.0 ] 190 EEF_ ] 5.9

2005, J120.2 1 50 EBE | &4

ENEEEEEE - R o O c©

I[16.Op__+_6.7_%

t bators intangible amoertisation and demerger expense less tax refie! thareon

* interim dividend plus preposed final dividend
* netional

[6.9p +/8%
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Principal International Developments

Mexico United Kingdom

The Monterrey Plastic Profile and Sheet ) A new label placing line was commissioned i

facility has been expanded significantly ; o support business with the new
generation UK passport

to suppert busingss growth

Brazil

The third deodorant roli-on ball line came
on stream at the end of the first quarter
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37 Manufacturing facilities
32 Distribution units

4 Research facilities

| Germany e . 5,600 Employees

i The expansion of the Moss distribution HE

hub will deliver significant service benefits
to the Continental European operations

China

The expansion of the successful Ningbo
operation is scheduled for completion in
the third quarter of 2007 !

H Indonesia

The transfer of the Cigarette Filters

| business to a new and larger facility in
B Surabaya was completed successiully

M Piastic Technologies
B Fibre Technologies
W Muttiple
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Business Review

Chaimman’s Statement §i

Jeff Harris

Results summary
This is Filtrona' s first full financial year as an ___
independent I\sted company following the
separation frorn Bunzl plc in June 2005.
Our management has shown the benefits
of that |ndependence by delivering revenue
growth of 5.9%, profit before tax growth of
9.2%, and increasing diluted earnings per
share by 8.3%. Underlying operating profit
grew by 9.0%, after taking account of
forgign currency translation and a full year
of central service cost, which is well ahead
of aur historical trend of organic growih.

The Company is established as an
international group with strong market
positions and manufactunng facilities in
most major ma||'kets in the world.

Both business segments made real
progress in 2006 with Plastic Technologies
showing partlc:ularly strong profit and
margin lmprovement Fibre Technologles
recoverad fromlthe tough conditions in the
first half of the year and delivered bcth
revenue and prof it growth for the full
financial year.

The Company achleved an 81%
improvement in’ 'net cash inflow before
financing actwm_es increasing from £15.8m
in 2005 to £28.6m.

"www.filtrona.com .
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Filtrona delivered a strong set of results in 2006.

We expect to maintain good underlying growth in

2007 and, with improved cash generation and a strong
balance sheet, we are seeking value enhancing acquisitions

This was largely achieved by operational
management focusing on stronger working
capital control. During the year interast cover
increased to 10.1 times (2005: 9.6 times)
and, at the year end, the ratio of net debt to
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation had improved from 1.51n
2005 to 1.2 in 2006.

Dividend

The Board is recommending a final
dividend of 4.8p per share which, if
approved at the Annual General Meeting
(‘AGM"), will make a total of 6.8p (2005:
6.4p) per share for the full year. This
represents a 7.8% increase on last year.
The final dividend will be paid on 4 May
2007 to shareholders on the register at
10 April 2007,

Board

The Board, which was established at the
time of flotation, has successfully introduced
the high standards of governance which are
appropriate to anindependent listed
company as well as reviewing the business
strategy of the Company. It met eight times
during the year, with two Board mestings
being held at operating sites to enable the
Non-executive Directors to meet key local
management and further extend their
knowledge of the Company's manufacturing
facilities within the UK and Europe.

Warren Knowlton became a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 June 2006. At
the end of 2006, Warren assumed a full-time
chief executive role in the US and, asa
resutt, he is not putting himself forward for
re-election at the AGM and will leave the
Board on 30 April 2007. We are grateful to
Warren for his valuable contribution. The
recruitment of a reptacement for Warren is
already under way.

Employees

After the challenges presented by the
demerger, Filtrona's employees renewed their
focus on generating sustained growth of
revenue and profit throughout 2006. The
performance of the Company demonstrates
the commitment and skill of Filtrona
employees across the many regions in which
the businesses operate. On behalf of the
Board and the shareholders, | would like to
thank them all for their continuing contribution
to the strong development of Filtrona.

Outlook

Looking forward, Filtrona expects 2007 to be
a year of further good underlying progress,
althcugh the headling results will be affected
by an anticipated £5m restructuring charge.
As previously announced, this charge

relates to the restructuring of Cigarette Fitters'
manufacturing facilities to match the expected
reduction in demand for corventional carbon
dual filters.

In Plastic Technologies, the combination of
strong market positions and the expected
favourable trading conditions give the
Company confidence in continued positive
progress in 2007.

Within Fibre Technologies, further progress is
expected in revenue and operating profit from
the Bonded Fibre Components business and
the Company remains confident in the future
prospects for Cigarette Filters.

The Company will continue to invest in
the organic growth of the business and it
is anticipated that capital spend in 2007
will again be ahead of depreciation.
Capital investments will reduce unit costs
of production and improve both quality
and service performance. Revenue
investments will drive gecgraphic
expansion, product innovation and
intellectual property development. In
addition, the Company remains active in
the pursuit of value enhancing acquisitions
in selected niche markets.

With a clear strategy, a committed team
and a strong balance sheet, the Board
remains confident the Company will
continue to achieve good undertying
growth and deliver attractive retums.

Jeff Harris
Chairman
1 March 2007
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Business Review |
Chief Executive’s Review
Mark Harper

Filtrona Values

Our style

* We will be open, honest and enthusiastic,
celebrating our successes and learming
from our expenences

* We will be passmnate in our purs.it of
excellence and dedicate ourselves to the
very best of quallty in everything we do

* We will work as ateam, valumg everyone's
contribution and minimising bureaucracy

« We will treat each other in a consistent
and fair manner

Our responsmllltles

* We wil share our company strategy, and
ensureweunderstandthepartweplaymrt

* Wewill aJIhavedeargoak; the necessary
resources and freedoms to achieve them,
and honest ass&csment of our performance

* We will always conduct ourselves with
integrity and respect for our fellows and
for our enwronment

* We will aim to advance our knowledge,
skills and professmnahsm inall we do

e We will do our| best and accept
accountability for our actions

Our goals

* We will strive to delight our custorners and
hold the respelct of our suppliers

* We will work together to grow our business
for the benefit of our stakeholders
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Overview

Filtrona is an international, market leading,
speciality plastic and fibre products supplier
with activities segmented into Plastic
Technologies and Fibre Technologies.

Plastic Technologies produces, sources
and distributes protection and finishing
products, self-adhesive tear tape and
security products as well as proprietary
and customised plastic extrusions and
packaging itermns for consumer products.

Fibre Technologies focuses on the
production and supply of special filters
for cigarettes and bonded fibre products
such as reservoirs and wicks for writing
instruments and printers, household
products and medical devices.

Filtrona derives strength from serving

a diverse group of customers across a
selected range of niche markets. Filtrona
is a supplier throughout the world to
many international, blue chip, market
leading customers,

In 20086, the geographic destination of the
Company's revenue was as shown above,
The Rest of World segment includes many
of the lower cost manuiacturing regions
and has grown from 22.5% of revenue in
2004 to 24.4% in 2006.

Revenue by destination

2213210

Rest of Worlg 24.4%

£191.7m

Europe 35.2%

PR / North America 40.4%

As the Company moves into new regions
for manufacture and supply it seeks to
maximise the opportunities across all of its
lines of business. It is expected that the
expansion of the Ningbo, China factory,
which was opened in 2004 by the Bonded
Fibre Components business, will facilitate
the introduction of both Protection and
Finishing Products and Plastic Profile and
Sheet activities into the Chinese market
during 2007.

Performance

Last year Filtrona reported that it had made
a promising start as an independent listed
company. Inits first full financial year since
the June 2005 demerger, the Company
continued to perform well with revenue

up 5.9% to £544.2m (2005: £513.7m)

and operating profit before intangible
amortisation and demerger expense up
6.6% to £61.6m (2005: £57.8m). Undertying
operating profit growth was 9.0% after
taking account of the impact of foreign
currency translation and a full year of central
service cost. The net cash inflow from
operating activities was strong at £61.1m
{2005: £56.9m) up 7.4%. The return on
average operating capital excluding
intangibles improved from 23.7% to 23.8%
in 2006 and adjusted eamings per share
grew by 6.7% from 15.0p to 16.0p.

Strategy

Fittrona's strategy is to continue to grow
profitably through investing organically and
by acquisition in selected niche international
markets within Plastic Technologies and
Fibre Technologies. The Company
endeavours to strengthen its competitive
position through product innovation,
sourcing and distribution expansion, supply
chain improvement and cost reduction. In
addition, investments in people, systems
and infrastructure, combined with the
acquisition of setected value enhancing
businasses, will atso drive the future
performance of Filtrona.
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Business Review

- Chief Executive’s Review

Protection and Finishi

1|ng Products

has grown to become the largest profit
contributing line of blisiness

Plastic Technologies

Plastic Technologies had ancther very
successful year with revenue up 5.9% to
£289.5m (2005: £273.3m) and operating
profit before intangible amortisation

up 10.1% to £41.4m {2005: £37.6m).

The operating margin improved again

to 14.3% (2005: 13.8%)} reflecting the
stronger performance of the higher margin
businesses. During 20086, polymer input
COsts rose progressively throughout the
year in Europe but showed some easing
during the final quarter in the Americas
after three consecutive quarters of
increases. These increases werg fully
recovered, through selective pricing acticn,
thereby underlining the strength of
Filtrona's niche market positions. Revenue
per employee increased by 2.4% 1o
£94,763 (2005: £92,550) and operating
profit before intangibte amortisation per
employee increased by 6.4% to £13,552
{2005: £12,733).

Protection and Finishing Products again
performed particularly well, It has now
grown to become Filtrona’s largest profit
contributing line of business and is
expected to continue in this position. The
key strategic drivers behind its progress
remain geographic development, product
range expansicn and investment in
marketing progranimes.

Moss, the pan-European plastic parts
supplier, continued to gain market share

in Centinental Europe and maintained its
\market leading position in the UK where
}the ongomg decline of manufacturing
industry is generating tough trading
:condmons The mix of proprietary and
custom lines strengthened further in favour

D

Pof proprietary products. The expansion of
ithe Moss North European distribution hub
bin Germany was completed in April 2006
and this will yigld important service benefits
o the Continental European cperations.
|The Company intends to continue the
development of the distribution network and
the opening of the next unit in Hungary is
planned for the first half of 2007.

In China, the headcount within the sourcing
grganisation in ngbo was further increased
and reliable, hugh quality sources for both
finished products and tooling have now
been establlshed Production ouiput
improved as a result of investment in larger
machines and toollng and a new tool
handling and storage system was completed
in the second half of the year at the
Oxfordshire facility. The disposal of a smalt
non-core plast:c'promotlonal products
business was completed in March 2006.

Skiffy, the European specialist smatl nylon
parts producer, achleved strong sales
growth and contmued to perform well
ahead of the forecasts set at the time of its
acquisition in 2004 All locations benefited
from further investment in marketing
programmes Wthh combined with
improved productlwty increased margins.
Internet ordering via the website,
www.skiffy.com/!is an important component
of the business model and usage again
increased to account for 22.0% of Skiffy's
2006 revenues. The new Skiffy distribution
facility in Poland is now fulty operational.
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Plastic Technologies
Protection and Finishing Products

ACC caps
These caps are used to protect the charge poris on
residential and autormotive air conditioning systems.
Alliance has the capacity to produca in excess of 40
millicn caps each year

www fillrona.com
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Business Review
Chief Executive’s Review

Coated and SecurityjProducts sustained
its world leadership pgosition in the
seff-adhesive tear tape market

In the Americas, Aliance, the US-based
plastic parts supplier, continued to
progress as planned with good growth
despite the weakness in the automotive
sector. During 2006 substantial internal
resources were dedicated to the
implementation programme for a new
computer system which will streamline
operations and improve customer service.

The new system went live successfully over |

the year end period without business
disruption and benefits from the
improvements to overall efficiency are
already being seen.

The new manufacturing operation in Sad
Paulo started up on schedule and the
improved competitiveness from
manufacturing locally is already having a

positive impact on revenue growth rates in

Brazil. The configuration of the Erig,
Pennsylvania central warghouse was
modified to improve stocking density by

35%. Unit production costs continued to fall

at the Erie facility as a result of further
investment in new machinery and high
cavitation tooling.

f Preparations were made for a new Alliance
§ Express Jocation in Chicago, US which is
now open.

k Performance at MSI, the oil country tubular

E goods thread protector business, was again
I strong, resulting from favourable trading

f conditions, market share gains and

investment-driven productivity improvements.

kAt the end of the year, trial orders were placed
k by an impartant new international customer
tand the benefit from this new account should
i feed through in 2007, Addittonal investments
in new production machinery and tocling
hwere made at Houston, Texas and Vera Cruz,
i Mexico and the purchase of land adjacent to

the Houston facility was completed to secure

space for the future growth of that operation.

{it. Looking ahead to 2007, it is expected
fagain to perform well,

Coated and Securlty Products continued
to pursue its strategy of developing new
security technologtes and applications,
whilst sustaining its world leadership
position in the self ~adhesive tear tape
market. A modest revenue increase was
achigved, with the good growth in security
products and FractureCode partly offset
by reductions i in tear tape.

The tear tape busmess suffered from
continued weakness in demand for
promotionat tapes as some important
customers in the tobacco sector reduced
promohonal acuwty Sales into other fast-
moving consumer goods (‘FMCG’) sectors
werea strang. The facility in Richmond, US
was upgraded to enable the printing of
security products and, during the second
half of the year, new glitting lines were
installed in the UK and US to enhance both
productivity and quality. In January 2007,

a labour cost recuction programme was
announced within the tear tape business.
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Plastic Technologies
Coated and Security Products

FractureCode
With more than 2.7x10%* unique combinations
possible, every tax stamp in the world could
be individualty coded for the next 100 years

/- YOLLYS

ADRSINES!
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Business Review
Chief Executive’'s Review

Good market demargd and reduced costs
delivered a record year for Plastic Profile

and Sheet

Supplies of the laminate for the new
generation UK passport were strong
throughout 2006 and a new label placing
ling for this project was commissioned

in the first half of the year. In May the
acquisition of the CORGI identity card
printing operation was announced

and production was successfully relocated
to the Payne facility in North Wales where a
major upgrade programme was completed.
Machinery for the production of security
labels was ordered and this, combined with
the development of proprietary security
technologies for use across the business,

is anticipated to stimulate sales within
Payne during 2007.

In August 2006, the first FractureCode
licence for its patented track and trace
technology was agreed with a major FMCG
company and the roll out is progressing
well. The losses incurred in the first half of
the year were substantially reversed in the
second half and the business incurred a
small deficit for the year. Since the launch
in May at the Intergraf Symposium, a major
international industry event, the FractureCode
organisation has been strengthened
progressively to facilitate growth as

new prospects are developed.

i

A new Managing Direcior has been

| recruited with relevant experience in the
LT industry.

§ The increasing investment in the development
fof new security technologies, and the focus
0N reducing cost are anticipated to result in

a satisfactory performance for the Coated

l and Security Products business in 2007
despite the ongoing weak demand far

| romotional tapes.

i Plastic Profile and Sheet achieved

strong growth in the year, resulting from
the combination of good market demand
and significant restructuring to reduce cost
fand enhance organisational effectiveness.

i Sales in the North American facilities were
 particularly encouraging and performance
was assisted by the closure of the small
Phoenix, Arizona facility at the start of 2006
Yand the transter of production to the facilities
fat Chicago and Tacoma in the US and
|Monterrey in Mexico.

Further factory rationalisation has been
announced involving the consclidation in
the US of the two Massachusstts facilities
intc one at Athol, where a significant
redevelopment i |s being undertaken,
including the construcuon of a new clean
room for medlcal products. The Monterrey
facility has beenlexpanded to support
business growth and the addition of a new
clean room for medical products is planned
for 2007.

During 2006 the North American
organisation has been restructured with
a reduction from three to two operating
regions and the establlshment of a central
marketing and sales function for the key
product groups.; |Sector specialist sales
groups have been formed to sharpen
focus and to facilitate improved market
penetration. Sales into the key aerospace
and point of purchase markets in North
America have been very strong with point
of purchase revenue in 2006 being mare
than double the level of circa US$12m
achieved in 2004. -
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- Plastic Technologies | V4 y
- - Plastic Profile and Sheet y

Mo

Cable trunking
This hinged cable trunking profile is typical of the
value adding products supplied to custormars by

Filirona's Profite and Sheet businesses which use
in excess of 40 million kg of polymer each year
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Business Review

Chief Executive’s Review

Despite tough trading conditions

Further investment in machinery took place
acress the network of facilities which, in
conjunction with continuous improvement
activities, assisted in reducing conversion
costs. Good revenue growth continued at
the Enitor business in the Netherlands and
a major factory expansion was completed
in the summer,

With the benefits accruing from the
strengthened management team, the

new structure and the streamlined plant
configuration, it is anticipated that the US
Plastic Profile and Sheet business will have
another good year in 2007, subject to
underlying activity in the US economy
remaining healthy. The European Plastic
Profile and Sheet business should continue
o experience good growth.

Consumer Packagin“'g

performance in the cond half of the year

1
]
1

The Globalpack Consumer Packaging
i business in Brazil experienced very tough
Ik trading conditions in the first half as
i performance was held back by market
overcapagcity, particularly in tubes, and
# rising raw material prices. The improved
performance in the second half, which was
consistently ahead of the comparable period
in 2005, was driven by the combination
of greater demand, recovery of rising
raw material costs through pricing and
impravements i manufacturing efficiencies.

The third deodorant roll-on ball line came
on stream successfully at the end of the
first quarter of 2006 and ball volumes

d continue to grow satisfactorily. The

i investrment programme continued

# throughout the year and important

new machinery for tube production and
decoration has been ordered for delivery
in the first half of 2007

delivered a much improved

A minor expansion at one of the two
Glohalpack locations will facilitate a

partial plant re-layout and an increase in
warehouse space to drive the prograrmme
of productivity and service improverment.

Globalpack's recovery is expected to
continue into 2007.
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Plastic Technologies
Consumer Packaging

Globalpack
Globalpack's flexible tubes and closures are used
for many Brazilan toiletries and cosmetic brands
and Globalpack has the capacily 1o produce

135 million tubes each year
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Business Review

Chief Executive’s Review

Increased investment is planned in 2007
to strengthen Cigarette Filters’ research
and development capability

Fibre Technologies

Fibre Technologies achieved good revenue
growth in the year of 5.9% to £254.7m
(2005: £240.4m). Operating profit before
intangible amortisation which was flat at the
half year, improved in the second half

to deliver a full year increase of 4.5% to
£28.1m {2005; £26.9m). The operating
margin reduced tc 11.0% (2005: 11.2%).
Revenue per employee increased by 0.8%
to £106,792 (2005: £105,903) whilst
operating profit before intangible
amaortisation per employee decreased by
0.6% to £11,782 (2005: £11,850).

In Gigarette Filters, total volumes reduced
by 1.6% or 1.1 billion filter rods with the
increase of 14.1% in special filters volumes
cffset by a reduction of 19.0% in

monoacetate filters. In response to changingl !

customer demands, the strategy for the
business has evolved with an increased
focus on the research and development of

innovative and more complex filter solutions

to complement the core manufacturing 3
capability. Much progress was made during
2006 in sfrengthening the management
team, including the recruitment of two
senior level operations speciafists to drive
impravement in factory performance.

In the Americas, overall revenue was flat

| as growth in'North America was offset by
i a decline in South America. The losses

incurred by the Monterrey facility in the first

b half of the year were substantially reversed

i in the second half due to productivity gains.
| Although the full year positicn remained loss
1 making, the operaticn moved into profit in

the fourth quarter.

Revenue and operating profit grew in Europe

i as performance at the UK facility improved
e with productivity gains derived from the

development of manufacturing expertise in

| the products formerly manufactured in
I Switzerland. An impoertant European

H customer launched a new brand into
i the Polish market featuring Filtrona’s

1 proprietary Active Patch™ technology

as the product differentiator.

. j In Asia, strong revenue and profit growth

was achieved. The transfer of the Indonesian
business to a new and larger facility was
successfully completed in the early part of
the year and volumes produced in Indonesia
were up 94.2% from 2005.

The market conditions for the Cigaretta
Filters business in 2007 will remain
challenging as customers respond to
mature and declining Western markets
with significant capacity reconfiguration.

Customer discussions have confirmed
that Filtrona will experience a reduction in
volumes of conventional carbon dual filters
during 2007 which will impact the
Company’s facilities in both North America
and Europe. Significant plant restructuring
is under way to reduce costs and improve
productivity. These actions, together with
increased volumes in Asia, will mitigate
the impact from the reduction in activity.
The plant restructuring will result in an
anticipated charge of £5m in 2007,

Filtrona remains confident in the future
prospects for the Cigarette Filters business
due to the growing demand for innovative
filters for PREPs (potentially reduced
exposure preducts) and ather differentiated
tobacco smoking products and for
research and development services. To this
end, increased investment is planned in
2007 to strengthen the research and
development capability and to continue the
progressive movement of production to
lower cost regions.
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Fibre Technologies
Cigarette Filters

Carbon filters
Carbon filters are becoming increasingly poputar
in a number of markets around the world.
Filtrona uses circa 5 million kg of granular
carbon each year




18 Filtrona ple Annual Report and Accounts 20068

.

www.filtrona.com

Business Review

Chief Executive’s Reviefw

Fibertec has been selected as the exclusive
supplier of fibre |nkjet printer reservoirs by a

major US corporatlon

Bonded Fibre Components continued

to make important progress. Fibertec
strengthened its position in its core markets
through the development of new products
and technologies and also experienced
good growth in Asia.

The Ningbo facility moved into profit as
productivity and quality improved and

IS0 8000:2000 accreditation was achieved

during the year. Volumes in China
continued to grow following production
transfers and the development of new
business won in the region. The pace of

progress at Ningbo has generated the need

for a plant expansion and construction of
a factory extension began late in the year
for completion in the third quarter of 2007,

The recovery of volumes in household
products continued throughout the year

and was assisted by customer requirements [
for multiple wicking devices in air fresheners |

which provide a selection of fragrances in
one unit. The writing instrument product
segment progressed well and important
business was won in Europe and Asia
from a principal competitor, The Reinbek,
Germany facility performed strongly due
1o improved activity levels and the impact
of the cost reduction programme which
commenced in 2005. A plant upgrade
programme at Reinbek has now begun.

The research and development centre in
Richmond continued to develop potentially
valuable technologies for the medical device
market and eleven patents were filed during
the year,

A key customer in the pregnancy test kit
market signed a long term contract with
Fibertec for the supply of wicks. During

L} 2007 it is expected that the business will

¥ | benefit from important new product

L} intfroductions both in the medical and fibre
B | inkiet printer reservoirs product sectors.
Filtrona has been selected as the exclusive
L} supplier of fibre reservoirs by a major US
corporation for its entry into the inkjet

k| printer market,

People

Filtrona has 5,600 employees aperating
from 37 manufacturing facilities and 32
distribution units in 23 countries around
the world. During 2008, revenue per
employee improved by 1.7% to £99,434
and operating profit before intangible

& | amortisation per employee improved
by 2.3% to £11,255.

In support of the Company's strategic

§ [ objectives, Filtrona is committed to the
recruitment, retention and development
}10f the very best pecple commensurate
§ bwith the Company’s scale and resources.
g 1 The Company believes that a cultural

i lenvironment, based on a clear set of

F [Filtrona values, where employees are

& fcommitted, involved and recognised
for their achievements, is conducive

i [to excellent business performance.

Since the demerger in June 2005, the
Company has increased its management
fraining programmes and has introduced
a structured approach to succession
planning together with a revised personal
development review for performance
evaluation. The Company operates a
formalised graduate recruitment and
training programme which runs over a 24
month period and is designed tc provide
participants with core management skills.
These programmes wil develop high potential
individuals who will be part of the future
management team within Filtrona.

The Company remains fully committed

to improving its health, safety and
environmental performance and it

is intended that all pringipal Filtrona
manufacturing tocations will be accredited
o OSHAS 18001 by the end of 2008. This
is in addition to the 1ISC 9000 and 14000
standard accreditations already held.
Maore informaticn on the Company's
health, safety and envircnmental policies
is contained in the Corporate Social
Responsibility Statement on pages

46 10 48.

Mark Harper
Chief Executive
1 March 2007
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Fibre Technologies
Bonded Fibre Components

Medicine dispensing straw
This patented drug delivery system, which is
dependent on fibre compaonents for its
cotrect functioning, provides an effective
method for delivering drugs. Each fibre
is approximately one quarter of the
thickness of a hurman hair
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Business Review
Financial Review
Steve Dryden

Revenue

Revenue increased by 5.9% to £544.2m,
and, in the absence of any benefit from
acquisitions, this organic growth was in
excess of historical rates.

Operating profit

Operating profit before intangible
amortisation and demerger expense
increased by 6.6% to £61.6m. Adjusting

for the additional central service cost of
£1.1m as a result of being demerged for

a full financial year in 2006, and the £0.2m
impact of foreign currency translation, gives
underlying operating profit growth of 8.0%.

Operating profit before intangible
amortisation per employee grew by 2.3%
to £11,255 {2005; £11,003).

Adjusted earnings per share

Eamings increased by 9.2% to £34.5m.

The weighted average number of shares of
218.8m {2005: 219.1m) gives a .7% increase
in basic eamings per share to 15.8p. .
Adjusting for intangible amortisation of £0.9m
{2005: £0.8m} and demerger expense of €nil
(2005: £1.0m) less tax relief thereon of £0.3m
(2005: £0.6m) gives an increase in adjusted
eamings per share of 6.7% to 16.0p.

Finance expense

The net finance expense has increased

by £0.1m to £6.1m as a resutt of higher
average interest rates, largely offset by
focused working capital management to
reduce net debt levels. Net finance expense
was covered 10.1 times by operating profit
before intangible amortisation.
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Key Performance Indicators

Revenue Operating profit* Adjusted earnings per share'
20021 | 4775 Eid ] 53.1 ] 14,0
2005 ] s5i37 B ] 578 BN ] 150

E N - -

PEAADM 4590

& before intangible arortisation and demerger expense

EX R ¢ o

10.616m____+6.6.%

T before intangible amortisation and demerger expense less tax relief thereon

Operating cash flow covered net finance
payments 7.8 times as Filtrona continued
to invest capital expenditure ahead

of depreciation.

Operating margin

The overall operating margin, before
intangible amortisation and demerger
expense incurred in 2005, remained level

at 11.3%. The operating margin in Plastic
Technologies increased'to 14.3% {2005:
13.8%) while the Fibre Technologies” margin
reduced to 11.0% (2005: 11.2%) as a result
of higher than anticipated costs in Mexico to
achieve the appropriate fevels of quality and
productivity in the first half of 2006.

Tax

The tax charge of £18.6m represents an
effective tax rate of 34.1% (2005: 34.0%)

on the profit from underlying operations.
The effective rate is higher than the nominal
UK rate of 30.0% because most of the
Company's operations are in countries

with higher tax rates.

Dividends

An interim dividend of 2.3p (2005: 2.13p)
per share and a final proposed dividend of
4.6p {2005: 4.27p) per share will deliver an
increase of 7.8%, at a total cost of £15.1m,
with dividend cover, based on adjusted
earnings per share, of 2.3 times. £34.5m
will be transferred to reserves, including
£10.1m required for the payment of the
final dividend.

Balance sheet

Total assets less current liahilities decreased
by £15.5m to £311.8m. Principal drivers of
this decrease were currency tranglation of
£18.3m, and net capital expenditure {capital
expenditure ahead of depreciation) of £9.6m,
offset by decrease in cash and cash
equivalents of £4.8m.

Retum on average operating capital employed
before intangible amortisation increased 0.1%
to 23.8%.

Net debt fell by £21.4rm to £98.8rm and the

ratio of net debt to eamings before interest,

tax, depreciation and amortisation reduced
from 1.5 in 2005 to 1.2 in 20086.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets decreased by £3.5m
reflecting customer lists accruing in the
year of £0.6m, less a foreign exchange
movement of £3.2m and amortisation
of £0.9m.

Cash flow

Net cash inflow from operating activities was
£61.1m, a 7.4% increase compared io 2005
as the Company recovered much of the
previous year's additional working capital
increase. Principal elements of the £34.3m
capital expenditure were the completion of
new production facilities in the Plastic Profile
and Sheet businesses in Mexico and the
Netherlands, in addition to other productivity
enhancing investments.

iL‘|6.O|Z)_____+_6.7_%

Net cash inflow before financing activities
was £28.6m (2005: £15.8m). Cash inflow
for 2006 was £7.1m and, after foreign
exchange benefit of £14.3m, net debt

fell by £21.4m to £98.8m.

Pensions

At 31 December 2006, the Company’s

1AS 19 (revised) gross pension liabifity

was £30.9m (2005: £35.8m) with a net
liability of £21.7m {2005; £25.0m) after
accounting for a deferred tax asset of
£9.2m (2005; £10.8m).

Anindependent actuarial valuation was
conducted as at 5 April 2006. This was the
first full such vatuation since the demerger.
At 31 December 2006 the funding position
showed a decrease in the deficit of £4.9m as
a result of the adoption of revised mortality
rates (£14.8m increase), improved market
returns (£5.5m decrease} and the effect of
updated discount rates and other
assumptions {£14.2m decrease),

The Company is in discussion with the
pension frustees regarding future funding.

Treasury policy and controls

Fitrona has a centralised treasury department
to control external borrowings and manage
exchange rate risk. Treasury policies

are approved by the Board and cover the
nature of the exposure to be hedged, the
types of financial investments that may

be employed and the criteria for investing

and borrewing cash,
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Business Review
Financial Review
Key Performance Indicators

Operating margin

Operating cash flow

Qperating profit per employee”

N

004

2004

2006

o774
2005 1003

20086 1,255

11.3%

& pelore intangible amortisation

The Company uses derivatives only to
manage foreign currency and interest rates
risk arising from undertying busingss
activities. No transactions of a speculative
nature are undertaken. The department is
subject to independent review by the intemal
audit department.

Underlying policy assumptions and activities
are reviewed by the Executive Directors.

Controls over exposure changes and
transaction authenticity are in place and
dealings are restricted to those banks with
the retevant combination of geographic
presence, expertise and suitable credit
rating. Filtrona continuously monitors the
credit ratings of counterparties and its
credit exposure to each counterparty.

Liquidity risk

Filtrona's objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding ana flexibility.
The Company is funded by a multi-currency
syndicated fagility from its bankers. The
syndicated facility matures in May 2010.

At 31 December 2006 the available bank
facilities totalled £215.0m of which £117.8m
was drawn down. In addition, uncommitted
and overdraft facilities are maintained to
provide short-term flexibility.

[ Foreign currency risk

Lcurrencies in which it has significant net
fassets and by using forward foreign
exchange contracts. At 31 December
12006 there were no material currency
fexposures after accounting for the effect

Pof hedging transacticns.

{

iThroughout the year bormowings were

[ primarily held in US dollars and sterfing.
The Company does not hedge the translation
[effect of exchange rate movements on the

lincome statement.

The majority of Fittrona’s transactions are
Ecarried out in the functional currencies of its
operations and s0 transaction exposure is
limited. However, where they do occeur, the
jCompany’s policy is to hedge the
Foxposures as soon as they are committed
jusing forward foreign exchange contracts.

CH255. 4039

Principal Exchange Rates

Average Closing

2006 2005 2006 2005

UsSs: ¢ 1.85 1.81 196 1.72
€L 1.47 1.47 148 146

The differences between the average and
closing exchange rates, particularly the US
dollar, are such that were the results for the
year ended 31 December 2006 translated
at the closing rates rather than at the
average rates, revenue would be reduced
by £17.7m and operating profit by £2.2m.

Interest rate risk

Filtrcna's strategy is to ensure with a
reasonable amount of certainty that the
overall net finance expense is protected
against material adverse movements in
interest rates. Interest rate swaps are used
to fix the short-term interest rate cn a part
of the borrowings and interest rate caps are
also in place to reduce the Company's
floating rate exposure to adverse movement
in market rates.

Steve Dryden
Finance Director
1 March 2007
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Business Review
Analysis of Principal Risks

in any business there are a number of risks and uncertainties
which could have an impact on its long-term performance.
Fittrona has a risk management process in place which is
designed to identify, manage and mitigate business risk.

Filttrona recognises that the risks and uncertainties facing its business
are constantly changing and has embedded risk management into its
business processes.

Risk assessment, evaluation and mitigation are essential parts of the
annual planning cycle and imporiant aspects of the Fitrona intermal
control system.

The ability to monitor, assess and respond to these business risks can
often provide competitive advantage and hence Fittrona's resources
are carefully managed in this area. More details of the Company’s risk
management processes are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on page 45.

Risk

—| EManagement response

Disruption to distribution or production facilities and
information systems

Filtrona would be adversely affected if there was a significant failure
of one or more of its major production facilities, including the koss
of tooling or of a major part of its supply chain. Disruption may be
caused by industrial disputes, fire, information systems failure or
other material businass interruption.

Disruption to distribution or production facilities and
information systems

Many of Filtrona's manufacturing processes are carried out in more
than one location and hence the Company has the ability to
mitigate this risk in part by meeting production requirements with
the use of alternative manufacturing sites.

The Company continues tc invest in the provision of fire protection
systems to minimise the rigk of tooling losses.

|Risk

Management response

Identification and successful integration of acquisitions

The rate of any future growth that Filtrona may achieve will in part be
dependent on making acquisitions. Filtrona has in the past made
and successfully integrated a number of acquisitions but there can
be no assurance thai Filtrona will be able 1o identify, complete and
integrate successfully suitable acquisitions in the future.

Identification and successful integration of acquisitions
Filtrona has a central corporate development team focused on
identifying and completing the acquisition of value enhancing
husinesses in selected niche markets. The corporate development
team reports reguianly to the Executive Committee and Board.
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Business Review
Analysis of Principal Risks

{Risk

i

Management response

Retirement benefits

Volatile capital markets could create a shorifall in funding of
retirement benefits. Filtrona maintains various retlrement benefit plans
for employees that are funded through |nvestments in equities, bonds
and other investments, the value of which is dependent on warld

markets. Filtrona may be required to provide additional funding to cover
any sherifalls in the benefit plan funding, arising from falls in the value of

these investments. Any significant additional fund|ng requirerments

could adversely impact the Company’s financial| posmon There is arisk

that increasing life expectancy and faling equity and bond retums wil
result in a significant rise in Fitrona’s liabilities.

Retirement benefits

The major schemes are regularly reviewed in consultation with
independent actuaries and pension trustees to ensure that costs
are controlled and that employee benefits are reascenable and
competitive. Actions ars taken when required.

Risk

-

Management response

Competitive pressures
Filtroma's niche market positions may be impac!
competitive actions of third parties.

ed by the

Competitive pressures

Filtrona actively works with its customers and suppliers to find
innavative ways to meet changing demands in order to remain at
the forefront of its selected markets. Filtrona's reputation and value
proposition centres around service, expertise and the breadth of
the product offering rather than one of strictly competing on price.

Risk |

Management response

Product liability claims
Like any other manufacturer, Filtrona faces the inherent risk of
exposure to product liability claims if the products supplied by
Filtrona fail to meet specification or the reqmred standard.

If Filtrona does not have adequate insurance,: product liability
claims and costs associated with product recalls including loss of
business, could have a material adverse effect on Filtrona’s
business, its operating results and its fi nancial position.

Product liability claims

Fittrona has quality assurance systems designed to ensure the
highest standards for its customers. Filtrona currently maintains
product liability insurance at levels thought io be appropriate in
relation to the products manufactured or sold by the Company,
with the exception of cigarette filters, for which product liability
insurance, as for other cigarette components, is not available.
There can be no guarantee that this insurance will continue to be
available at reascnable cost or will be adequate to cover product
liahility claims against Filtrona.

Risk

Management response

Customer base
In some of Filirona's businesses, the market, and herice the
customer base, is relatively concentrated. ThlS is true primarily of
Filtrona's cigarette filter and tear tape busmesses Should the
customers of Filtrona decide to satisfy their requwements internally
or from other suppliers, and if Filtlrona were unable to win other
customer orders, this could resuit in a signifi cant loss of business
and a resulting adverse effect on Filtrona's operating results.

Customer base

The development of further innovative products and services
should strengthen Filtrona’s reputation and relationships across
its customer base.
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[Risk

| rManagement response

Relationship with the tobacco industry

A significant part of Filtrona's business relates to the supply of
cigarette filters and tear tape to manufacturers in the tobaceco
industry. Accordingly the future performance of Filtrona's cigarette
filters and tear tape businesses may be affected by changes in
conditions within those sections of the tobacco industry which
they supply, such as in the consumption of cigarettes, demand
for different types of cigarette and in regulations affecting
cigarettes. Whilst Filtrana has no histery of invelvement in tobacco
related litigation, it could be adversely affected by the incidence
of such litigation.

Relationship with the tobacco industry

Filtrona's strategy is continually to offer innovative added value
products and services targeted towards growth areas within the
tobacco industry, Faster growing non tobacce businesses may
reduce Filtrona's exposure to this risk over time and there is
currently no reason to believe that regulation specific to the
tobacco industry is likely to cause a material adverse or rapid
change in demand for Filtrona’s cigarette filters and tear tape.

Risk

—

Management response

International operations

Filtrona has principal operations in North America and Europe
together with facilities in Asia and South America. There are
particular risks arising from managing operations internationalty
including:

¢ fluctuations in currency exchange rates may affect the reported
operating results and financial position;

* changes in tax regulation and international tax treaties could
affect the financial performance of foreign operations; and

+ changes in other regulations/treaties may also affect the ability of
Filirona to repatriate profits from its foreign operations.

The Company's strategy involves manufacture in low cost

production locations. Filtrona may be adversely affected by political
and economic conditions in some of these production jocations.
Transition towards these locations may also give rise to other
execution risks normally associated with such moves, including delays
to the start of production, product quality and the establishment of
new distribution channels and other unforeseen factors.

The principal risks faced by Filtrona and its management
response thereto are summarised in this analysis. Not all
these factors are within the Company’s control. There may
be other risks and uncertainties which are unknown to the
Company or which may not be deemed material now but
which couid turn out to be material in the future.

International operations

Filtrona believes that the benefits of its gecgraphical spread
autweigh the associated risks. The portiolio effect of economic
conditions, exchange rates and other associated factors of having
operations worldwide provide some protection in terms of the long-
term performance of Filtrona.

The Company seeks to manage its {oreign currency risk and the
steps it takes are described in the Financial Review on pages 20
to 22. The Company actively warks with its taxation advisors to
minimise its tax exposure and risk.

The risk management processas within the Company seek 1o identify
and mitigate the risks associated with any transition to new facilities.

Filtrona continually seeks opportunities to increase its business
diversity and has programmes in place to share best practice
across its international operations,




26 Filtrona ple Arvwal Report and Accounts 2006 www.filtrona.com

Board of Directors




27 HltronapléAnwalRepoﬂaMAoooumszoos

www.filtrona.com

Jeff Mark Steve

Harris Harper Dryden

Paul Adrian Warren

Drechsler Auer Knowlton
Jeff Harris

Non-executive Chairman

Jeff Harris was appointed Chairman in
May 2005. He was chairman of Alliance
UniChem Ple from 2001 until 2005. Jeff
was the finance director of UniChem Plg
from 1986 to 1992, chief executive from
1992 and chief executive of the enlarged
Alliance UniChem Plc from 1997 to 2001,
Jeff is also a non-executive director of
Associated British Foods plc, Bunzl plc
and Anzag AG. Jeff is the Chairman of
the Company's Nomination Commitiee.

Paul Drechsler

Senior Independent

Non-executive Director

Paul Drechsler was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of Filtrona in May 2005.
He is chairman and chief executive of
Wates Group, having been appointed to
the position of chief executive in 2004,
Prior to this, Paul spent 25 years at Imperial
Chemical Industries PLC where his
experience included chairmanship of the
ICl pension fund and appointment to the
ICI beard as an executive director in 1999,
Paul is Chairman of the Company's
Remuneration Committee.

Mark Harper

Chief Executive

Mark Harper joined Filtrona in 1986 and
held a number of general ranagement
positions, including managing director of
Moss Plastic Parts in Europe and president
of Aliance Plastics in the US, before
becoming Managing Director of Filtrona in
1996. Mark was an executive director of
Bunzl plc from 2004 until he was appointed
Chief Executive of Filtrona in May 2005.
With effect from 1 December 2006 Mark
was appointed as a non-executive director
of BBA Aviation plc.

Adrian Auer

Non-executive Director

Adrian Auer was appointed a Non-
executive Director of Filtrona in May 2005,
He was formerly group finance director of
RMC Group plc from 2002 to 2005, finance
director of Taylor Woodrow plc from 2000
{0 2002, and has alsc held senior finance
positions with BP and ICI. Adrian is
currently non-executive chairman of
Shanks pic and Readymix plc, andis a
non-executive director of Foseco plc.
Adrian is Chairman of the Company’s
Audit Committee.

Steve Dryden

Finance Director

Steve Dryden was appointed Finance
Director of Filtrona in May 2005. Prior to
that he was divisional finance director of
the Filtrona businesses between 2002 and
2005, and was finance director of a group
of the Plastic Technologies businesses
between 1999 and 2002 and Moss Plastic
Parts between 1996 and 1998. Steve's
career began at Price Waterhouse and,
before joining Filtrona, he held various
finance roles within Rolls-Royce ple.

Warren Knowlton

Non-executive Director

Warren Knowlton was appointed a Non-
executive Director of Filtrona in June 2006.
He is chief executive officer of Graham

*Packaging Company L.P. having been

appointed in December 2006. Warren
spent his earlier career with Owens Goming
in a variety of senior executive positions.
From 1997 to 2002 he was an executive
director of Pilkington plc and from January
2003 to August 2006 he was chief
executive officer of The Morgan Crucible
Company ple. Warren is a non-executive
director of Smith & Nephew plc, and
Ameriprise Financial Inc.
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Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2006

The Directors present their Report and audited financial statemenits of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings for the year
ended 31 December 2006.

Principal activities and business review
The principal activities of Filtrona are the light manufacture and supply of speciality plastic and fibre products.

The principat activity of the Company is a holding company.
The information which fulfils the requirements of the Business Review and should be treated as forming part of this Report is included in

the Chairman's Statement on pages 04 and 05, the Chief Executive's Review on Pages 06 to 19, the Financial Review on pages 20 to 22,
the Analysis of Principal Risks on pages 23 to 25 and in the Corporate Social Responsibility Report on pages 46 to 48,

Key Performance Indicators
Key Performance Indicators are set out in the Financial Review on pages 21 and 22.

Results and dividends
The accompanying financial statements for the year ended 31 December 20086 which were approved by the Board of Directors on
1 March 2007 are set out on pages 49 to 86.

The Company has paid the following dividends in respect of the year ended 31 December 2006

Per share Total
p £m
Interim paid 27 Cctober 2006 23 5.0

The Directors recommend that a final dividend of 4.6p (2005: 4.27p) per share be paid, making a total dividend distribution for the year
of 6.9p (2005; 6.4p).

The final dividend of 4.6p, subject to shareholder approval, will be paid on 4 May 2007 to shareholders on the register at 10 April 2007.

Directors and their interests
During the year ended 31 December 2006 the Board of Directors comprised.

Jeff Harris Non-executive Chairman

Mark Harper Chief Executive

Steve Dryden Finance Director

Paul Drechsler Senior Independent Non-executive Director
Adrian Auer Non-executive Director

Warren Knowlton Nen-executive Director {appointed 1 June 2006)
Paul Heiden Non-executive Director {resigned 26 April 2006)

Directors’ interests in the issued ordinary share capital of the Company are detailed in the Report of the Remuneration Committee on
page 40.

in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Jeff Harris and Adrian Auer are retiring by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting (AGM") and, being eligible, offer themsetves for re-election. Warren Knowlton will retire as a Director of the Comparny with
effect from the conclusion of the AGM.
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Directors’ Report

Share capital
The authorised and issued share capitat of the Company is shown in note 18 to the financial statements.

Substantial shareholders
At the close of business on 1 March 2007, the Company was advised of the following notifiable interests in the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company: .

% of issued
Shareholder sharg rcc:iaw;;?lg;
Amvescap Plc 16.02
Legal & General Investment Management Limited 13.48
Ivory Investment Management LP - 8.00
Ameriprise Financial Inc 5.86
Pernant Capital Management LLC 475
Zurich Assurance Limited 3.98
Property values

In the opinion of the Directors there was no .,lgn:f icant difference between the market and book values of the property held by the Group,
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2006.

Charitable and political contributions
The CGompany made no political contributions dunng the year (2005: £nil). Donations to UK charities amounted to £0.1m (2005: £0.1m), of
which £nil were made by the Company (2005: Enll) with all contributions being made by its subsidiary companies.

Directors' indemnities
As at the date of this Report, indemnities arg in force under which the Company has agreed to indemnify the Directors and the Company
Secretary, in addition to other senior executwes who are directors of subsidiaries of the Company, to the extent permitted by law and the
Company's Articles of Association, in respedt of all losses arising out of or in connection with the execution of their powers, duties and
responsibilities as a director or officer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Employees
Filtrona is guided by its aim to deliver a competntlve and fair employment environment and the opportunity to develop and advance
employees subject to personal performance and business opportunity,

Filtrona encourages its employees to develop and manage their own careers. It facilitates this by providing relevant job training and, where
appropriate, aiming to fill vacancies with emstmg staff where employees are suitably gualified and experienced. ’

Filtrona supports the principle of equal employrnent opportunity and is opposed to all forms of discrimination on the grounds of sex,
race, nationality, ethnic or national origin, re||g|on marital status, sexual orientation, disability or age. Filtrona companies conduct their
businesses in a way that seeks 1o ensure individuals are treated equally and fairly and that alt employment, training and career
development decisions are made on job-based criteria.

Employees' involvement .
Filtrona's policy is to communicate with employees to ensure understanding of the businesses and of the impact business decisions have
on employees. Filtrona is keen to obtain feedback and ideas from employees to improve the operation of the business.

Creditor payment policy
The Company policy for payment to suppliers is 1o pay to terms agreed with suppliers from time to time, subject to the supplier's
performance in accordance with agreed terms and conditions.

Since the Company has no trade creditors, the disclosure of creditor days does not apply.
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Annual General Meeting
The AGM of the Company will be held at the Holiday Inn Hotel, 500 Saxon Gate West, Milton Keynes, Buckinghamshire MKS 2HQ on
Monday, 30 April 2007 at 12 noon. )

In addition to the ordinary business of the AGM, resolutions in respect of the following matters of special business are included in the
Notice of Annual General Meeting:

Authority to allot unissued shares

The Directors will, under Resclution 7 in the Notice of Annual General Meeting, seek power until the next AGM to allot shares up to an
aggregate nominal amount of 5% of the issued share capital at 1 March 2007, equivatent to 10,966,300 shares. The proposal conforms
with the guidelines issued by the institutional investment protection bodies to ensure that existing shareholders’ interests are safeguarded.
The Directors have no present intention of exercising their authority to allot unissued shares, except those relating to share options.

Allotment of shares for cash

The Directors will, under Resolution 8 in the Notice of Annual General Meeting, seek power until the next AGM to allot shares for cash,
otherwise than in accordance with the statutory pre-emption rights, either in connection with a pre-emptive offering or otherwise, up
to an aggregate nominal amount of 5% of the issued share capital at 1 March 2007, equivalent to 10,966,300 shares. The proposal
conforms with the guidelines issued by the institutional investment protection bodies to ensure that existing shareholders' interests
are safeguarded.

Purchase of own shares

The Directors consider it expedient to seek shareholders’ approval to enable the Company to purchase its own shares. Accordingly,
under Resolution 9 in the Notice of Annual Genera! Meeting, authority will be sought to enable the Company to make market purchases
of up to 10% of the issued share capital at 1 March 2007 for the pericd of one year following the date of passing the resolution. In
accordance with the requirements of The Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, the maximum price for shares purchased in the
market shall not exceed an amount equal to 105% of the average middle market quotation taken from the London Stock Exchange Daily
Official List for the five business days before the purchase is made. The minimum price per share shall be not less than 25p, being the
nominal value of the shares. The Directors will only utilise this authority if satisfied that to do so will result in an increase in earnings per
share and that it is in the best long-term interests of the shareholders.

Auditor
KPMG Audit Plc have indicated that they are willing to continue in office. A resolution to re-appoint them, and to authorise the Board to set
their remuneration, will be proposed at the AGM (Resolution 6 in the Nctice of Annual General Meeting).

Recommendation
The Directors believe that the resolutions in the Notice of Annual General Meeting are in the bast interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole and unanimously recommend that shareholders vote in favour of each resolution.

Compliance with the Combined Code
During the year ended 31 December 2006 the Company did not fully comply with the Code in that the posting of the Notice for the
Company's first AGM and related papers to the shareholders did not take place at least 20 working days before the meeting.

Financial Instruments
The information related to financial instruments is included in the Accounting Policies on page 54 and in note 14 on page 68.

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the financial statements
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and parent company financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent company financial statements for each financial year. Under that law
the Directors are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accerdance with International Financial Reporting Standards
('IFRS'} as adopted by the European Union (‘EU" and have elected to prepare its individual company financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and applicable law.
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Directors’ Report

. The Group financial statements are required by law and IFRSs as adopted by the EU to present fairly the financial position and
performance of the Group. The Companies f\ct 1985 prowdes in relation to such financial statements that references in the relevant part
of that Act to financial statements giving a trie and fair view are references to their achieving a fair presentation.

The parent company financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the parent company.

In preparing each of the Group and parent company financial statements, the Directors are required (o:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
* make judgements and estimates that are reascnable and prudent;
» for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;

* for the parent company financial statements state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been fdllowed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explalned in the parent company financial statements; and

* prepare the financial statements on the gomg concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and the parent
company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reascnable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companigs Act 1985. They have
~ general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are also responsible for preparing a Directors’ Report, a Report of the Remuneration Committee and a Corporate
Governance Report in compliance with applicable law and regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and mtegrlty of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company's website. Legislation in the UK governung the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ frorn
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ Statement as to Disclosure of Informatlon to the Auditor
The Directors who were members of the Board at the time of approving this Directors’ Report, having made enquiries of fellow Directors
and of the Auditor, confirm that:

+ {0 the best of each Director’s knowledge and belief, there is no information relevant to the preparation of their report of which the
Auditor is unaware; and

+ each Director has taken all steps a Dlrectorkmlght reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of relevant audit information and
to establish that the Company's Auditor is aware of that informatiaon.

By order of the Board

Jon Green
Company Secretary
1 March 2007
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Report of the Remuneration Committee

This Report to shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2006 sets out the policies under which Executive and Non-executive
Directors were remunerated and tables of information showing details of the remuneration and share interests of all the Directors.

As required by The Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 ('the Regulations'), this Report will be subject to an advisory
shareholder vote at the AGM. The Report is intended to be in full compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. KPMG Audit Plc
have audited the contents of the Report to the extent required by the Regulations {pages 33 to 40).

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commitiee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on remuneraticn policy as applied to Filirona’s
senior executives, including Executive Directors. It consists wholly of independent Non-executive Directors: Paul Drachsler (who chairs the
Remuneration Committes), Adrian Auer and Warren Knowlton.

The Chairman, Chief Executive and Director of Group Human Resources of the Company may, by invitation, attend the Remuneration
Committee meetings, except when their own remuneration is discussed. :

The Remuneration Committee met four times during the year.

Remuneration policy

The Board as a whole establishes remuneration policy. The Remuneration Commitiee determines and recommends to the Board the
frarework of Board policy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors. It also ratifies the Chief Executive's remuneration proposals for
the members of the Executive Committee and for other senior executives reporting directly to him. The Remuneration Committee also
takes note of the remuneration policy and details (as set by the Chief Executive) in respect of other levels of management in the Company.

The remuneration of the Executive Directors and Chairman is the responsibility of the Remuneration Committee and the remuneration
of the Non-executive Directors is the responsibility of the Board as a whole. No Director is involved in determining or voting on their
own remuneration.

In determining the policy for the Executive Directors, the Remuneration Cormimittee's cbjective is to ensure that those individuals are
provided with appropriate incentives to encourage enhanced performance and are, in a fair and résponsible manner, having regard to the
performance of the Company, rewarded for their individual contributions to the success of the Comparny.

The objective of the remuneration policy is 10 provide remuneration in a competitive form and amount to attract, retain and motivate high
quality management. The importance of aligning the interests of Executive Directors and senior executives with shareholders is carefully
considered, particularly in the design of the performance-related elements of their remunaration packages.

Advice
During the year ended 31 December 2006, Filtrona's Director of Group Human Resources was invited by the Remuneration Committee to
provide views and advice.

In addition, with the approval of the Remuneration Committee, the Company recelved services and advice from the following independent
and expert consultants:

¢ New Bridge Street Consultants LLP who provided advice on the structure and rules of the Company’s long-term share
incentive plans.

* Monks Partnership who provided advice on the remuneration of the Executive Directors and other senior executives within
the Company.

* Mercers Human Resource Consulting who provided advice and information on pension matiers.

Components of executive remuneration

Remuneration is reviewed in December each year and is established with reference to the remuneration offered to senior executives with
similar roles, taking proper account of the particular responsibilities, skills, performance and experience required for the executive role
within the Company. Market comparisons are made with the assistance of remuneration surveys, including specific surveys
commissioned with external consultants where appropriate, to ensure relevant benchmarking.
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Report of the Remunenation Committee

Components of executive remuneration ((.ontlnued)

The remuneration of Executive Directors consists of a number of separate elements: base salary, a short-term incentive plan (annual
cash bonus}, long-term equity incentives, car and fuel allowance, benefits in kind (medical expenses insurance) and pension provision
or allowance.

The emoluments of the Directors for the yealr einded 31 December 2006 were as follows:

Seven months

ended

31 Dec

2005

Salary Bonus Benefits Bonus  Benefits Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Executive Directors
Mark Harper - 420 147 21 588 - 214 85 1 310

Steve Dryden 278 88 13 379 - 132t 48 20 200

Non-executive Directors

Jeff Harris 150 - - - 150 86 - - - 86
Paul Drechsler 40 - - - 40 23 - - - 23
Adrian Auer 40 - - - 40 23 - - - 23
Warren Knowlton* 19 - - - 19 - - - - -
Paul Heiden* ;1M - - - 1 18 - - - 18

2 ncludas a supplementary payment of £28,430 in respect of pensien provision above the relevant eamings cap

T Includes a supplementary payment of £14,226 in respect of pension provision above the HM Revenue & Customs eamings cap
¥ Appointed 1 June 2008
* TRasigned 26 April 2006

Annual bonuses
Under the terms of the annual bonus arrangements for 2008, Mark Harper and Steve Dryden were each potentially entitled to a maximum
bonus of up to 100% of basic salary (60% i cash and 50% in shares in the Company, the entitlernent to such shares being deferred for
three years, in accordance with the rules of the Company's Deferred Annuat Share Bonus Plan (DASB'),

For the year ended 31 December 2006, theperformance targets were approved by the Remuneration Committee and based upon
Filtrona's adjusted earnings per share. Company performance was required to reach a minimum adjusted earnings per share target for
a bonus of 30% of basic salary to be payable (15% in cash and 15% in deferred shares under the DASB).

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the Company’s performance exceeded the minimum target and the Remuneration Committee
approved a bonus of 70% of basic salary for each of the Executive Directors (35% in cash and 35% in deferred shares under the DASB]).

For the financial year ending 31 December 2007 the Remuneration Committee determined that for the Executive Directors the same
maximum bonus criteria wilt apply. Targets havs been set relating to the growth in adjusted earnings per share over the prior year. Any
payment is entirely at the discretion of the Fiemuneratnon Committee.

Executive share-based incentive plans

The Remuneration Committee is firmly of the wew that offering Executive Directors and cther senior executives the oppor‘tunlty to be
awarded shares in the Company is an |mportant part of motivating, rewarding and retaining key employees so that they may participate
in the future growth in value of the Company. Itis also of the view that the Executive Directors and other senior executives should be
encouraged to invest directly in the Company through the purchase of shares.

The Company's DASB and Long Term Incentwe Plan ('LTIP") {consisting of Part A — Approved and Unapproved Executive Share Options
and Part B — Performance and Matching Share Awards) are beth intended to support these objectives.




35 Filtrona ple Annual Report and Accounts 2006 www.filtrona.com

Executive share-based incentive plans (continued)
Awards under Part B are performance options exercised at nil cost by the participant.

The award of shares or options under the Executive share-based incentive plans is determined by the Remuneration Committee taking
into account, inter alia, the role of the individual, and other such criteria as they may determine from time to time. The current policy is that
participation in the DASB and Part B of the LTIP is restricted to Executive Directors, members of the Executive Committee and certain
other nominated senior executives. Participation in Part A of the LTIP is extended to a wider group of employees.

The Company's current executive share-based incentive arangements, implernented at demerger, reflected those of Bunzl pic, the
former parent company. In order to determine whether those plans continue to provide a proper alignment of Executive Director and
senior executive interests, with those of shareholders, it is the intention of the Remuneration Committee that they are reviewed prior to the
end of 2007.

The Deferred Annual Share Bonus Plan

The DASB provides for Executive Directors and nominated senior executives to receive existing issued ordinary shares in the Company for
nil payment. The number of shares subject to an award is determined at the time the award is granted, based upon the performance in the
Comparwy's preceding financial year, of the participant and/or the Group and/or the business in which the participant works.

Under the rules of the DASB the aggregate value of shares made subject to awards granted to a participant in any one financial year may
not exceed 100% of their basic salary as at the award date. The Remuneration Committee has determined that, in accordance with the
Company's bonus arrangements, awards under the DASB will not normally exceed 50%.

Shares awarded under the DASB are held in trust until 1 March in the third calendar year after the calendar year in which the award was
made, at which point they are transferred to the participant.

The Long Term Incentive Plan - Part A
Part A of the LTIP provides for participants to receive share option awards over shares worth up to two times basic satary or £250,000
(whichever is the greatest) in any financial year, subject to performance conditions.

During 2006 participants received share option awards over shares worth up ta 90% of basic salary, with the exercise price set equal to
the share price at the date of grant.

A share option award will normally be exercisable betwaen threa and ten years following its grant, but only if the specified performance
condition has been satisfied.

The performance conditions attached to Part A awards made in 2006 were based on the Company’s earnings per share growth {adjusted to
exclude items which did not reflect the Company's underlying financial performance and intangible amortisation) relative to inflation over three
financial years, requiring such earnings per share growth to exceed inflation by an average of at least 3% per annum. The performance
condition will be tested after three financial years and there will be no provision for retesting. To the extent the performance condition has not
been met after three financial years, the relevant share option awards will lapse.

The Remuneration Committee review the performance conditions each time share options are awarded under Part A of the LTIP in order
to ensure that they remain chaflenging and may impose different conditions on share options awarded in subsequent years, provided that
any new conditions are no less challenging.

In addition to the LTIP, the Company operates a Save As You Earn scheme (‘SAYE'). During the year the Company made its first awards
under the rules of the SAYE.



36 Filtrona ple Annual Report and Accounts 2006 www.filtrona.com

Report of the Remuneration Committee

The Long Term Incentive Plan - Part A (contlnued)
Details of the awards granted and outstandmgidunng the year to executive directors under the LTIP Part A and the SAYE are as follows:

Awarded Exercise Eariest

Executive Director At 1 Jan 2006 in year At 31 Dec 2006 price vesting date Expiry date
Mark Harper ! ;

LTIP Part A 156,903 - 156,803 239.00p 23 June 2008 22 June 2015
LTIP Part A - 148,380 148,380 254.75p 8 Sept 2009 7 Sept 2016
SAYE 5 year plan | - 6,793 6,793 23700p 1 Aprit 2011 30 Sept 2011
Steve Dryden A

LTIP Part A 96,234 - 96,234 238.00p 23June 2008 22 June 2015
LTIP Part A - 88,321 88,321 254.75p 8 Sept 2009 7 Sept 2016 -
SAYE 5 year plan . - 6,793 6,793 237.00p 1 April 2011 30 Sept 2011

The Long Term Incentive Plan - Part B
A performance share award under Part B of the LTIP consists of a conditional right to receive shares in the Company subject to

performance conditions, on the basis described below. Participants will make no payment for the grant and exercise of performance
share awards.

Participants may receive performance share awards, excluding matching share awards, of shares worth up to two times their basic salary
in any financial year.

In May 2005, following the demerger, the Executive Directors and other senior executives were granted a one-off matching share award
linked to their investment in the Company's shares.

A performance share award, including any matchrng share award, will not normally be exercisable before the third anniversary of its award
and may only be exercised to the extent that lhe applicable performance conditions have been satisfied. For employees based outside
the US, the options remain capable of being exercrsed up to the sixth anniversary of grant. For employees based in the US, once the
performance conditions have been satisfied thé options must be exercised within 30 days of vesting.

In the case of the vesting of the matching share awards, granted by reference to shares purchased by participants, not only will applicabte
performance conditions have to be satisfied but those awards will anly vest to the extent that participants have retained the shares
they bought in May 2005.

The extent to which performance share awards vest is subject to the Company’s total shareholder return (TSR’) performance ovar a
fixed three year period relative to the TSR performance of a specified group of companies. For the initial performance share awards the
coemparator group is the FTSE 250 companres (excludlng investment trusts) at the start of the three year performance pericd. tdentical
conditions were attached to the matching share awards.

The three year performance period for the TSH usually starts at the beginning of the calendar month in which a performance share award
is made and the relevant TSR figures are averaged over a one month period at the beginning and end of the performance period. In the
case of the initial performance share awards,; ithe three year performance period started on the date of the award.
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The Long Term Incentive Plan - Part B (continued)

A performance share award, including any matching share award, will vest in full enly if the Company’s TSR performance is ranked at
upper quartile or above within the peer group over the performance period. For median performance one quarter of such awards vests,
rising propartionally up to full vesting thereafter. For below median performance, no such awards will vest.

The performance condition will be tested after three years and there will be no provision for retesting. To the extent the performance
condition has not been met after three years, the relevant performance or matching share awards will lapse,

The Remuneration Committee review the performance conditions each time performance share awards are granted under Part B of the
LTIP in orcier to ensure that they remain challenging and may impose different conditions on share awards granted in subsequent years
provided that any new conditions are no less challenging.

Details of the awards granted and outstanding during the year to the Executive Directors under the LTIP Part B and DASB are as follows:

_ . Earliest
Executive Director Al 1 Jan 2006 in year At 31 Dac 2008 vasting date Expiry date
Mark Harper
LTIP Part B ‘Matching' 126,902 - 126,902 7 June 2008 6 Jung 2011
LTIP Part B ‘Performance’ 161,637 141,633 303,170 7 June 2008 12 March 2012
DASB - 48,993 48,993 1 March 2009 1 March 2009
Steve Dryden .
LTIP Part B ‘Matching’ 102,474 - 102,474 7 June 2008 6 June 2011
LTIP Part B ‘Performance’ 99137 84,246 183,383 7 June 2008 - 12 March 2012 .
DASR - 27,503 27503 1 March 2009 1 March 2009

A total of 2,612,304 (2005: 3,453,266) share incentive awards were granted to Executive Directors and senior executives under the LTIP
and the DASB during the year ended 31 December 20086.

The middle market price of an ordinary share in the Company on 31 December 2006 was 261.50p. The middle market price of an
ordinary share in the Company during the year ranged from 251.50p to 354.0p.
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Performance graph
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The graph below represents the comparative @tal shareholder return (share price and dividend) performance of the Company against the
FTSE 250 (excludlng investment trusts) Index from the date of the listing of the Company until 31 Decernber 2006. This index has been

selected as it is considered the most appropnate published general index in which the Company is a constituent.

e Fitrona pic :
it FTSE 250 {axciuding imvastment trusts) Index : Sourca; Thomson Qatastream

Executive Directors’ service contracts

The poficy for senior executive service contracts is that notice periods will normally not exceed 12 months. Both Mark Harper and
Steve Dryden have service contracts with a notn::e period of 12 months from either party. The service contracts for the Executive Directors
are available for inspection by members at gach AGM and during normal busiress hours at the Company’s Registered Office.

The Remuneration Committee’s policy in relatlon to termination of service contracts is to apply an appropriate level of mitigation, having

regard to all of the circumstances of the individual and the termination of employment, and to any legal advice received.

The Company has the right to make a payment in lieu of netice and any such payment may e made in monthly instalments at
the Company's discretion and may be reduced to take into account any sums earned during the payment period by way of

employment elsewhere.

Non-executive Directors

The appointmant of each Non-executive Dlrector is for a fixed term of three years and is reviewed at the end of two years. The Non-
executive Directors do not have service contracts and do not participate in any Company pension, share or incentive scheme. In
accordance with best practice, letters of appomtment have been issued for all Non-executive Directors for an initial period of three
years. These letters are available for |nspectaoﬁ by members at each AGM and during normal business hours at the Company's

Registered Office.

Fees far Non-executive Directors, other than the Chairman, are approved by the Board in accordance with the policy adopted by the '
Remuneration Committes. The fees are subject to appropriate benchmarking and based on a standard fee with additional fees payable
for the chairing of the Audit and Remuneratlon Committees. Fees for the Chairman are subject to appropriate benchmarking and

approved by the Remuneration Committee.




39 Filbrona ple Annual Report and Accounts 20068

Pension schemes

www.filtrona.com

Mark Harper is a member of the Filtrona Senior Pension Scheme (‘FSPS’) which entitles him to a pension at the date of retirement based
on final salary. He accrues pension at the rate of 3% of final salary for each year of membership of the scheme and he contributes 9% of

pensionable salary to the scheme. His normal retirement age is 60.

Steva Dryden is a member of the BRIS section of the Filtrona Pension Plan ('FPP') which entities him to a pension at the date of retirement
based on final salary. He accrues pensicn at the rate of 1.9% of final salary for each year of membership of the plan and he contributes
7% of pensionable salary to the plan. His normal retirement age is 65. Steve's approved pension benefits are affected by the former HM
Revenue & Customs earnings cap, which was retained by the FPP following new pension legistation effective from April 2006. He receives
a supplementary payment of 20% of his pensionable salary above the cap to permit him to secure additional pension benefits.

Both the FSPS and the FPP provide death benefits as shown in the table befow:

FSPS BRIS section of the FPP ” :

Death-in-service
before NRD*
Lump sum 4 x annual salary
and a refund of
member’s
contributions
Spouse's pension Up to 60% of
member’s
pension
entitlerment
as at NRD

Dependants’ pension Share of
SpOUSE’s
pension if
applicable

Death after
retirement
Guaranteed
pension

(5 years)

Up to 60% of
member's
pension
entitlement
asatNRD

Share of
spouse’s
pension if
applicable

Death-in-service

before NRD*

4 x annual salary

and a refund of
member's
contributions

Up to 50% of
member’s
pension
entitlerment
as at NRD

Share of
spouse's
pension if
applicable

Death after
retirement
Guaranteed
pension

(5 years)

Up to 50% of
member's
pension
entitlement
as at NRD

Share of
spouse's
pension if
applicable

* normal retirement date
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Pension Schemes {continued)
The table below shows the accrued pension.in the scheme and plan to date in respect of the Executive Directors, together with the
transfer value of such accrued pensions:

T e e Glog | Wed TS
[GrossRlinc:ease,ingoceris) GESWEY ESENEd GRS
EEIES) &}J- [curing) ifUan] 13 1] Dec)
(Dension Mlolinilation) jthcyyead 20 t[i:aﬂ%
! C000 I 000 £000] 000,
Mark Harper { ’ 35 31 192 420 2,184 2,502 280
Steve Dryden 3 2 22 3 118 122 4)

@ The accrued pension at 31 December 2006 is that whu:h woukl be paid annually on retirernent based on the assumption that service terminated at the year end
i) Thewvalue of the accrued pension is calculated cn a currern transfer value basis and is not the actual cost of providing the pension
(il The change in tha value of the accrued pension dunng 'the year includes the etiact of fluctuations in the transfer value dua to factors beyond the control of the Company.
It is calcuated in accordarce with current legislation ‘arkd is after the deduction of Directors' contributions during the year

A review was undertaken to assess the impact of the changes to UK pension legislation implemented in April 2006. There were no
material additional costs to the Company followmg this review and none are anticipated.

Outside appointments
Executive Directors are permitted to accept up to two appropnate non-executive directorships offered by listed companles and other
organisations, which provide industry expenence or public service. Such outside appointments are subject to prior Board approval, taking
into account existing duties or potential confiicts of interest. From 1 December 2006 Mark Harper was appointed a non-executive director
of BBA Aviation plc and will retain his fees of ©30,000 per annum. -

Directors' shareholdings
The interests (both beneficial and family mterests} of the Directors in office at 31 December 2006 in the ordinary share capital of the

Company were as follows:
20 Cending
. ardEal
A3 DBC20065,

Jeff Harris ‘ 21,651 11,851

Mark Harper 85,986" 75,986"
Steve Dryden 51,237 51,237
Adrian Auer 7,500 7,500
Paul Drechsler . 8519 8,519
Warren Knowlton 7,500 7,500

* 410 shares ara held non-beneficially and the balance ara held beneficially in a nominee account
* held beneficialty in a nomines account

The Executive Directors are regarded as being interested, for the purposes of the Companies Act 1985, in 872,166 (2005: 423,009}
ordinary shares in Filtrona plc currently held by the Filtrona Employee Benefit Trust as they are, together with other Filtrona employees,
potential beneficiaries of the Trust.

By order of the Board ] .

Paul Drechsler
Chairman

Remuneration Committee
1 March 2007
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Corporate Governance Report

Filtrona is committed to a high standard of corporate governance, corporate responsibility and risk management throughout the
Company, The Board is accountable to the Company's shareholders for good governance.

Compliance with the Combined Code

As a listed company, Filtrona is required to comply with the Combined Code on Corporate Governance issued by the Financial Reporting
Council {'the Code’). This Report describes how the Company applies the principles of corporate governance set out in the Code and the
extent 10 which it complies with the provisions contained in Section 1 of the Code.

The Board considers that, during the financial year ended 31 December 2006, the Company has complied with all the provisions in

the Code, except one. The exception relates to the posting of the notice of the Company's first AGM and related papers to shareholders
in 20086. The Company did not post the Notice of Annual General Meeting for 2006 and related papers within the notice period of 20
working days before the meeting, as required under the code provision D.2.4. The period of non-compliance was 6 working days and
papers were posted 14 working days before the meeting. The delay in the posting of the Notice of Annuat General Meeting and related
papers was due to the finalisation of the design of the Company’s first Annual Report and Accounts.

Board of Directors
The Board provides leadership to the Company and has overall respensibility for the business and management of Filtrona.

Composition )

The Board currently comprises a Non-executive Chairman, two Executive Directors, and three Non-executive Directors. Five of these
Directors served throughout the entire financial year ended 31 December 2006. Paul Heiden resigned as a Director on 26 April 2006 and
Warren Knowltion was appointed as a Director on 1 June 2006. Biographies of the Directors, demonstrating the range of experience, skills
and independent judgement available to the Board, appear on page 27. The Board is of the view that it has the appropriate balance of
expertise and ability available to it.

Board roles

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are separately held and are so defined as to ensure a clear separation of
responsibilities. The Chairman leads the Board and ensures its effectiveness, the Chief Executive is responsible for the executive
management and performance of Filtrona's operations.

Non-executive Directors
In the opinion of the Board, Paul Drechsler, Adrian Auer and Warren Knowlton are each considered to be independent of management
and there are no relationships or circumstances which would materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.

The Board is content that the Non-executive Directors devote sufficient time to the business of Filtrona.

The Board considers that the Non-executive Directors provide a sound basis for good corporate governance for the Company,
challenging management’s performance and, in conjunction with the Executive Directors, ensuring that appropriate financial controls and
systems of risk management are maintained.

Senior Independent Director

Paul Drechsler acts as the Senior Independent Non-executive Director. in that role he is available to shareholders to discuss and develop
an understanding of their issues and any concerns which cannot be resolved by discussions with the Chairman, the Chief Executive or
Finance Director or where such coniact is inappropriate.

Board meetings

There were eight scheduled Board meetings during the year, including one day of strategy discussions, with two meetings being held at
operational facilities, including an overseas location. In addition to the scheduled formal meetings, the Board met on an ad hoc basis as
required for particular matters. The Chairman and Chief Executive maintain regular contact with the Directers and the Chairman also
holds periodic informal meetings with the Non-executive Directors, without any of the Executive Directors being present, to review
performance and to monitor corporate control mechanisms.

At each scheduled meeting, the Board considers a report from the Chief Executive on current trading, a financial review, and other
significant business issues such as acquisition proposals and other major investrent plans. Additionally, the Board receives presentations
and considers reports from senior management about matters of material importance to the Company.

Papers for each scheduled formal Board and Committee meeting are usually provided five clear working days beforehand.
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Delegation
The Board delegates specific responsibilities, to the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees which eperate within clearty defined
terms of reference approved by the Board. Thése Committees report regutarly to the Board.

The Board has adopted a schedule of matters which are required to be reviewed by it, including the approval of annual and interim results,
strategic plans, annual budgets, material i increases to borrowing and loan facilities, acquisitions and disposals and major capital and
operating expenditure proposals,

Board procedures
The internal procedures implemented by the Company to ensure the Board maintains averall control for all material, strategic, financial,
operaticnal and compliance matters affecting the Company are included within the internal control section of this Report set out on

page 44.

In furtherance of their duties, there are agreed procedures for the Directors to take independent professional advice, if necessary, at the
Company s expense. All Directors have access 1o the advice and services of the Company Secretary who is responsible to the Chairman
for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with and that applicable rules and regulations are followed.

On appeintment, Directors benefit from an induction programme tailored to their individual needs and designed to assist them in their
understanding of Filtrona and its operations. The programme, which continues throughout a Director's tenure as necessary, includes
details of fiduciary duties, Companies Act requlrements dealing restrictions as outlined in the Disclosure Rules and the Model Code on
directors’ dealings in securities contained in the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authornity, Board and business related matters,
meetings with senior management, site visits!and the opportunity to meet with major sharehotders.

lnsurance
The Company maintains directors and officers liability insurance at a level and with a scope that the Board considers appropriate.

Board Committees
Each Board Committee has established clear and defined terms of reference detailing their responsibilities and powers. The terms of
references for each Board Committee were updated during the year and are available on Filtrona's website at www.iiltrona.com.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee currently comprises Adrian Auer, who chairs the Committee, Paul Drechsler and Warren Knowtton. Adrian Auer has
recent and relevant financial experience. A representatlve of the Company's extermal auditor ordinarily attends all meetings of the Audit
Committee and the Finance Director is normally invited to attend the meetings.

The Audit Committee met four times during the year. Its duties include monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the Company,
reviewing, challenging and approving Filtrona's'accounting policies and scrutinising the effectivenass of the Company’s internal control
and risk management systems.

Additionally, the Audit Committee keeps under review the scope and results of the external audit and its cost effectiveness. The Audit
Committee makes recommendations to the Board regarding the re-appointment or remaoval of the external auditor, their terms of
engagement and the level of their remuneration.

The Audit Committee reviews the process which is in place to ensure the independence and objectivity of the external auditor.

The Company has a policy regarding the engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services. The policy recognises the
importance of maintaining the objectivity and, lndependence of the extemnal auditor by minimising its invotvemnent in projects of a non-audit
nature. It is, however, also acknowiedged that due to its detailed understanding of the Company’s business, it may sometimes be
necessary to involve the external auditor in non -audit related work, principally comprising further assurance services relating to due
diligence and other duties carried out in respect of acquisitions and disposals and tax services.
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Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee currently comprises Jeff Harris, who chairs the Committee, Paul Drechsler and Adrian Auer,

The Committee is responmble for selecting and recommending candidates for appointment as Executive and Non-executive Directors of
the Company.

The Committee meets as required, normally at least once a year.

The Nomination Committee met three times during the year and, with the benefit of assistance from external advisers, made
recornmendations to the Board regarding director appointments.

In furtherance of these duties and when considering succession planning, the Committee looks at the balance, structure and composition
of the Board and takes into account the future challenges and opportunities facing the Company. The selection process is, in the Board's
view, both rigorous and transparent in order to ensure that appo:ntments are made on merit and against objective criteria set by the
Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Paul Drechsler who chairs the Committee, Adrian Auer and Warren Knowlton.
The composition and role of the Remuneration Committee is described more fully in the Report of the Remuneration Committee on
pages 33 to 40.

The following were Directors of the Company and as Cormmittee members attended the following number of mestings during the year
ended 31 December 2006:

Auciit Nomination Remuneration
Board Comimitiee Committee Committee
Held . 8 4 3 4
Attended
Jeff Harris Chairman 8 - 3 -
Mark Harper Chief Executive 8 - - -
Steve Dryden Finance Director 8 - -
Paul Drechsler Senior Independent 8 4 3 4
: Non-executive Director
Adrian Auer Non-executive Direclor 8 4 3 4
Warren Knowlton® Non-executive Director - 6 3 - 3
Pau! Heiden** Non-executive Director 2 1 - 1
* Appointed 1 June 2006

** Resigned 26 Aprit 2006

Performance evaluation

During 2006 the Board carried out its first evaluation of the effectivenass of the Board and its Committees. This involved the Directors
independently completing a questionnaire, provided by external consultants, and reviewing individual performance and the performance
of the Board and its Committees. The results, which served to strengthen the Board's priorities and communication, were discussed at a
Board meeting and the various relevant Committee meetings. Following this detailed review the Directors have concluded that the
processes in place enable the Board, and its Committees, to operate effectively.

As part of the 2006 Board performance evatuation, the Directors (led by the Senior Independant Non-executive Director) also appraised
the Chairman's performance without the Chairman being present.
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Directors’ re-appointments
The Articles of Association of the Company requwe one third of the Directors to retire from office each year and for all Directors to submit
themselvas for re-glection on a date which i |s no more than three years from the date of their appointment or last re-appointment. The
Directors retiring at the forthcoming AGM and subrmttlng themselves for re-appointment are Jeff Harris and Adrian Auer. Following the
Board performance evaluation undertaken dunng the financial year, the Board is satisfied that each of the Directors being put forward for
re-election continues to be effective and that their ongeing commitment to the role is undiminished.

Warren Knowlton was appointed subsequent to the Company's first AGM, held in April 2008. Following his appointment to a full-time
chief executive role in the US in December 2006, Warren is not putting himself forward for re-election. Accordingly he will retire from the
Board with effect from the conclusion of the AGM on 30 April 2007.

Shareholder communications

The Comparny communicates regularly with its major institutional shareholders, and ensures that all the Directors, including the
Non-executive Directors, have an understandmg of the views and concerns of major shareholders about the Company. This is achieved
by the Executive Directors maintaining contact from time to time with representatives of institutional shareholders to discuss matters of
mutual interest relating to the Company and repOrtmg back to the Board, Shareholders have the opportunity to meet any of the Directors
of the Company shoutd they so wish,

Additionally, the Board uses the AGM as an occasion to communicate with all shareholders, including private investors, who are provided
with the opportunity to question the Dlrectors

At the AGM the level of proxy votes lodged on gach resolution will be made available, both at the meeting and subsequently on the
Company's website. Each substantially sepa’rate issue is presented as a separate resolution and the Chairmen of the Audit, Nomination
and Remuneration Committees are available to answer questions from shareholders.

The Notice of the AGM and related papers will this year have been posted to sharehelders more than 20 working 'days before the AGM.

The interim and preliminary results of Filtrona, along with all other press releases, are posted on the Company's website, www filtrona.com, as
500N as they are announced and webcasts of ‘the presentations of the Company’s interim and preliminary resufts are avajlahle for download.

Internal control
In accordance with the Code, the Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that an adequate systern of internal controls is in place.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Oompany s system of internal control and risk management and for reviewing the effectiveness
of this system, Such a system can only be deS|gned to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can therefore only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Operational matters and the responsibility for, the day-to-day management of the businesses are delegated to the Chief Executive
supported by the Executive Committes and to the respective Line of Business Heads within delegated authority limits and in accordance
with clearly defined systems of control. ‘

The Executive Committee, which meets at least twice per month, is made up of the Chief Executive, the Finance Director, the Company
Secretary and General Counsel and the D|rector of Group Human Resources. All Directors receive copies of the minutes from each
Executive Committee meeting and the monthry reports submitted by the individual lines of business.

The Global Executive, which consists of the Executive Committee members and the Line of Business Heads, meets periodically to
discuss the health and safety programme, busmess performance and common operational issues across Filtrona’s international
businesses.

Policies and procedures, which are subject to ongoing review and updated as required, are communicated across the Company and are
designed to ensure significant risks, investment decisions and management issues are escalated as necessary at the earliest opportunity.

The Board befieve that this management structure ensures a strong {ink between Filtrona’s overall corporate strategy and its
implementation within an effective control environment,
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Risk review

The Board is of the view that an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the Company was in
place throughout 2006 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts for 2006. This process is regularty reviewed by
the Board with the assistance of the Audit Committee and accords with the intemnal control guidance for directors as required by the Code.

A Risk Management Committee, which during 2006 consisted of the Executive Committee members and the Head of Internal Audit,
meets at least four times each year and otherwise as necessary. The Committee enhances management’s ability to review and maonitor
the effectiveness of risk control on a regular basis. The terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee include supporting
corporate governance requirements, recommending business risk strategy and developing policies and procedures for risk management
and internal controls. They also include the monitering of the effectiveness of internal controls and the design of processes to test the
effectiveness of controls.

Risk review is a continuing process embedded within the businesses with executives required to include risk management on agendas
for their regular management meetings and to report half yeany to the Risk Management Committee on actions taken to review the
effectiveness of their controls. Businesses are also required to have processes to formally identify risks, consider their financial and
non-financial implications and, so far as possible, take action to reduce those risks.

The Company has an internal audit department. The resources of this department are augmentad with independent expert external
resources wherever necessary to review risk and monitor compliance with the Company's policies and procedures across its international
operations. Accordingly the resources of the department, tegether with additional available resources, are considered adeguate.

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the effectiveness of internal controls based on the processes implemented by the Risk
Management Committee. At each meeting the Audit Committee receives a presentation from the Head of Internal Audit on action taken
to identify and reduce risks and 1o increase awareness of both risk management and the importance of having effective internat controls.

Financial reporting

The Directors have acknowledged, in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 31 and 32, their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company and the Group. The external auditor has included, in the Independent Auditor's Report
set out on page 80, a statement about thair reporting responsibitities.

The Directors are also responsible for the publication of an unaudited interim report of the Company which provides a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s financial position for the first six months of each accounting period.

Going concern
After making appropriate enquiries, the Directors consider that the Company and the Group have adequate resources 1o remain in
operation for the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
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Filtrona values
As a responsible corporate citizen, Filtrona aims to act in a sogially responsible manner at all times. The Company’s organisational
structure is highly decentralised, and as such its businesses devise procedures appropnate to and compliant with local laws, culture
and operating conditions but within the overall context of the Company values as set out in the Chief Executive’s Review on page 6 and
the application of the principles detailed in this Report.

Filtrona policy
The objective of Fittrona's corporate social respon3|b|hty policy is to guide stakeholders, including employees, on the elements that drive
the conduct of Filtrona businesses. The way Filtrona does business reflects its commitrment to profitable growth, sustainable development
and integrity. The Company’s policies continus to promote fair and ethical dealings with customers and competitors as a matter of law
and of conscience.

Filtrona is @ member of the FTSE4Good Index which is designed to measure the performance of companies striving to meet globally
recognised corporate responsibility standards and to facilitate investment in those companies where corporate social responsibility issues
are an influencing factor in an investor’'s dec1s:on making process. The FTSE4Good Committee annually reviews the members for
continued compliance with the criteria as laid'down by the Committee.

Ethical business practices

Filtrona's Standards of Business Conduct Pohcy is applicable to all its businesses around the world. This policy details the standards
expected by Fltrona including free and fair competmon the prohibition of bribery and political donations and provides general guidance
on honestly and fairly dealing with suppllers‘ dustomers and local and national authorities. Filtrona is committed to working with its
suppliers to ensure the welfare of workers and employment conditions within its supply chain meet or exceed internationatty
recognised standards.

Employees

Filtrona recognises that its employees are tha'Company s most vital resource and their impoertance in making the Company successful,
Filtrona is guided by the aim of delivering a competitive and fair employment environment and to providing the opportunity for employees
to develop and advance subject to personal performance and business objectives.

Throughout its worldwide operations, Filtrona supports human rights as set down by the UN Declaration and its applicable International
Labour QOrganisation conventions. Recruitment procedures avoid the employment of under-age staff.,

Filtrona is committed to offering equal opportunities to all people without discrimination as to race, sex, nationality, ethnic or natlonal
ongm language, age, marital status, sexual onentat:on religion or disability. The Company does not tolerate harassment in the workplace
in any form and remunerates fairty with respect to skills, performance, competitors and local market conditions.

Filtrona encourages an open and honest culture in all its dealings with employees. Channels of communication appropriate to Filtrona's
local businesses have been established to allow employees to voice their views and concerns and the Company briefs all employees
and their representatives on all relevant matters on an ongoing basis. For example, the Company has a European Information and
Consultation Forum in respect of fts operatlons in the European Union and this forum met in the UK during 2006 to hear presentations
on Company performance as well as to discuss progress on health & safety matters and environmental issues.

The Filtrana Whistleblowing Policy sets out guidelines under which employees can raise certain issues {regarding ethical behaviour or
legal compliance) with their own business or directly with Filtrona plic in confidence. Under this policy employees may come forward
without fear of their position and have the option to consuit an independent external party.

As part of its commitment to training and development within its businesses, the Company operates a graduate development programme
in Europe and North America together with a, number of local intemiship and apprentice placements. In the course of 2006, the Company
established a Learning Centre at its Fitters facxlny in Jarrow, UK, under a joint funding arrangement with the Trades Union Congress. This
facility is available to all employees and their fammes and since inception over 50% of the employees at the site have accessed a variety of
courses including National Vocational Qualifications.
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Filtrona Health, Safety & Environment ('HS&E’) Councit

The Company has established the Filttrona HS&E Council under the chairmanship of the Director of Group Human Resources, who

reports directly to the Chief Executive, and it includes representatives from all the operating businesses. This body is responsible for
reviewing the HS&E performance, developing appropriate standards and procedures and overseeing the Company's internal HS8E
auditing process.

At the end of 2006 the Company introduced the Filtrona Group Safety Awards whereby sites can achieve gold, silver and bronze status
on the basis of performance assessed against stringent criteria set by the Filtrona HS&E Council. In 2006, ITC Filtrona in India achieved a
silver award. An annual assessment of sites will be conducted for future awards.

Health & safety

A key driver of Filtrona's success has been the high degree of autonomy which has been afforded to local management, allowing them to
serve local markets in the most appropriate manner. Within this decentralised structure the Company has established core health and
safety policies which the businesses are required to implement. These procedures are designed to ensure compliance with applicable
taws and regulations and, wherever possible, to employ best practice.

One of the abjectives of the Company is to achieve improvements in heatth and safety, and ongoing initiatives are designed to monitor,
assess and action performance. This is driven not only by Filtrona's commitment to meeting its legal responsibilities but also by an ethicat
desire to protect all employees from dangers in the workplace.

With the introduction of a new group monitoring system the Company is better equipped than sver before to record accidents and also
1o continually review performance. This system has enabled the implementation of an extensive programme of active monitoring that
measures how the working environments are being managed.

During 2006 comprehensive training occurred at all worldwide locations so that the collection of accurate data is embedded within
the organisation.

The Company believes that the introduction of the new group monitoring system has led to an increased focus on health & safety
performance and provided management with additionatl visibility of relevant performance statistics.

Details of the Company’s health and safety performance for 2006 can be viewed at the Company’s website www.filtrona.com.

The Company manages occupational health by identifying key risk activities, undertaking health assessments and, where appropriate,
implementing health surveillance programmes.

Environment

Filtrona recognises the impact that its businesses have on the envirecnment and, as a minimum standard, complies with current applicable
legislation in the countrigs in which it operates. All of the Company’s European businesses comply with EU and domestic waste
management regulations. It is Company policy that all principal manufacturing sites are ISO 14001 accredited.

In addition, three of the Company’s businesses are accredited to the international standard for Occupational Health & Safety Management
Systems, OHSAS 18001 (twa in the US and one in India),

The group monitoring system is also being used to record raw material usage, energy usage and waste levels. All locations are actively
improving their statistics by recycling raw materials, thus reducing waste levels which would normally go to jandfill. Where raw materials
cannot be recycled on site, alternative uses are being investigated with the aid of third parties.

Filtrona is commited to continuous improvement in ervironmental performance, the prevention of pollution and to improving efficiency in
the use of resources including energy, water, packaging and cther raw materials.

At Alliance Plastics, Erig, US the injection moulding facility has reduced the costs of electrical power over the past two years while
increasing manufacturing throughput. The reduction in costs has been driven through capita! expenditure focused on new energy efficient
equipment combined with energy cost saving initiatives. These reductions have been achieved while the cost of energy has increased.
Also, as part of the ISO 14001 programme, waste reduction initiatives have been undertaken and the volume of raw materials entering
landfill has reduced.
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At Filtrona Filters, Jarrow, considerahle changes were implemented during the year. Prior to 2008, all filter and board waste was going to
tandffill at considerable cost and environmental impact. Following the changes one hundred percent of all filter waste is baled and used as
a low emissions fuel by a manufacturer of bio-diesel from cooking oil.

Filtrona Extrusion, Chicago, installed a pump station in order to more efficiently retum process water to the chill water station. This station
reduces water consurnption by at least 100,000 gallons per year.

Filtrona Filters, Bangalors, was awarded during 2006 the ‘Parisara Premi’, translated as ‘Frignds of Environment'. The award was granted
on the recommendation of the State Government Poliution Control Board.

The eTree™ project, encouragmg shareholders to receive future communications electronically instead of in paper form, ensures that for
each positive response a free is denated to the Woodland Trust.

The wider community

Filtrona is committed to being a responsible corporate citizen through the support for appropriate non-political and non-sectarian projects
across a range of organisations and charltles Regardiess of reglonal or national boundaries the Company aims to support the creation of
prosperous, educated, sustainable and healthy communities in the countries and cuttures in which it operates. With a focus on education
and enterprise, health and welfare and the envuronment it has developed target programmes for local communities, often involving
commercial sponsorship and significant employee engagement through direct involvement or secondment.

There is encouragement to the businesses 1o support local charities both with financial and non-financial donations, be they educational,
sporting or heaith-related:

+ Financial and material assistance for the ﬁood victims of Thailand and the earthquake victims of Indonesia
¢ Inindia, the delivery of a wide range of 3001a1 investment programmes focusing on basic needs including the provision of water, power
and sanitation to nearby community famh{ners kocal school support, an Aids awareness campaign and environmental education
-+ |n Brazil, the provision of IT equipment to!a'loca| institute for disabled children
* InVenezuela, financial support to the toce}l Plood bank and a local orphanage, plus sponsorship of a local youth football team
¢ In the US, the provision of a number of interships, sponsoring of local youth sports teams and charitable donations to a diverse range
of both national and local organisations

* Inthe UK, the provision of work-experience placements the sponsorship of local schoo! activities and charitable donations to a diverse
range of both national and local organusatlons

Applying Filtrona's principles
The business principles reported above are underpinned by a series of policies which can be viewed via the Corporate Social
Responsibility page on the website wwwifi Itrona com.

The Chief Executive is the Director with pnmary responsibility for this area of activity, whilst business managers are responsible for
ensuring the underlying policy comrmtments are applied. The Director of Group Human Resources, supported by the Company
Secretary, is responsible for co-ordinating the ‘operation of the policies and reporting on them to the Chief Executive.
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Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31 December 2006 <

2006 2005

Note £m £m
Revenue 1 544.2 5137
Operating profit before intangible amortisation and demerger expense 61.6 578
Intangible amortisation 0.9) (©.8)
Demerger expense - (1.0}
Operating profit 1.2 60.7 56.0
Finance income 3 8.8 56
Finance expense 3 {14.9) {11.6}
Profit before tax ' 54.6 50.0
Income tax expense 4 (18.6) {17.0)
Profit for the year 36.0 330
Attributable to:
Equity holders of Filtrona plc 34.5 316
Minority interests 1.5 14
Profit for the year 36.0 33.0

Earnings per share attributable to equity holders of Filtrona pic:
Basic 6 15.8p 14.4p

Diluted 6 15.6p 14.4p




50 Filtrona plc Annual Report and Accounts 2006

Consolidated balance sheet

at 31 Decernber 2006

www.filtrona.com

2006 2005
Note £m tm

Assets .
Property, plant and equipmen 7 178.4 180.5
Intangible assets 8 58.5 63.0
Deferred tax assets 15 0.3 1.8
Total non-current assets 238.2 2451
Inventories 9 85.7 59.8
Income tax receivable 1.8 16
Trade and other receivables 10 811 85.6
Derivative assets 14 0.2 01
Cash and cash equivalents 1 20.7 307
Total current assets {f 159.5 1778
Total assets 1} 3977 422.9
Equity
1ssued capital 18 54.8 54.8
Capital redemption reserve 19 0.1 0.1
Qther reserve 19 {132.8) (132.8}
Translation reserve 19 1.6 53
Retained earnings 19 219.0 197.3
Attributable to equity holders of Filtrona pic 142.7 124.7
Minority interests | 19 8.0 5.6
Total equity il 148.7 130.3
Liabilities ’
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 13 17.9 145.2
Retirement benefit ohligations 17 30.9 35.8
Other payables 13 - 21
Provisions 16 2.7 25
Deferred tax liabilities 15 11.6 1.4
Total non-current liabilities 163.1 197.0
Bank overdrafts 1 1.0 50
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 13 0.6 07
Derivative liabilities 14 0.3 0.8
Income tax payable 16.0 15.2
Trade and other payables 12 65.0 68.9
Provisions 16 3.0 50
Total current liabilities i1 85.9 956
Total liabilities i 249.0 2026
Total equity and liabilities 1t 397.7 422.9
i1

The financial statements on pages 49 to 79 were approve

Steve Dryden
Finance Director

d by the Board of Directors on 1 March 2007 and were signed on its behalf by:
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2006
2006 2005
Note £m £m
Operating activities
Profit before tax 54.6 50.0
Adjustments for:
Net finance expense 6.1 6.0
Intangible amortisation o 0.9 08
Depreciation 22.9 221
Share option expense 1.2 1.1
Other items (0.3) 11
Increase in inventories {0.3) (2.2
Increase in trade and other receivables 0N @7
Increase in trade and other payables ] 01 21
Acquisition of employee trust shares {1.2) (1.0}
Additional pension contributions {1.5) 0.7)
Other cash movements (1.9) (3.9
Cash inflow from operating activities 79.9 70.7
Income tax paid (18.8} {13.8)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 611 56.9
Investing activities
Interest received 1.0 1.2
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (34.3) (38.2)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1.8 0.9
Acquisition of businesses net of cash acqguired 22 {0.5) 4.6)
Proceeds from sale of business 23 0.3 -
Otherinvesting cash flows (0.8} {0.4)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (32.5) {41.1}
Financing activities
Interest paid 7.2) 6.7)
Dividends paid to equity holders (14.3} @7}
Repayments of shori-term loans 0.1) (0.8}
{Repayments of}/proceeds from long-term loans (11.8) 133.7
Capital contribution from former parent company - 4.2
Repayment to former parent company - {147.0)
Net cash outflow from financing activities {33.4) (21.1)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivatents ' 4.8) H.3)
Net cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 25.7 29.7
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4.8) 5.3)
Net effect of currency translation on cash and cash equivalents (1.2) 1.3

Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ) 11 19.7 257




52 Filtrona plc Annual Report and Accounts 2006 www filtrona.com
Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
for the year ended 31 December 2006 .
2006 2005
£m tm
Recognition of defined benefit pension schemes on demerger:
Actuarial loss - (34.7)
Deferred tax credit on actuarial loss - 105
Other actuarial gains/losses) on defined bege'ﬁt pension schemes 2.2 (2.0}
Deferred tax (expense)/credit on other actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes (0.7) 0.7
Movement on cash flow hedge - {0.9)
Foreign exchange translation differences:
Attributable to equity holders of Filirona plc (3.7) 6.9
Attributable to minority interests { (0.3) 0.5
Income and expense recognised directly in é&uity (2.5) (18.2)
Profit for the year 36.0 33.0
Total recognised income and expense l ] 335 148
Attributable to:
Equity holders of Filtrona plc 32.3 129
Minority interests 1.2 1.9
Total recognised income and expense i [ 335 14.8
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Accounting policies

a Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU in accordance with EU law (IAS Regulation EC 1606/2002) (‘adopted IFRS"). The Company
has elected to prepare its individual comparny financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (UK GAAP"); these are presented on pages 81 to 85,

The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and future periods if relevant.

The preparation of financial statements that conform with adopted IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial staternents and the reported amounts of income and expense during
the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are detailed below. These poficies have been consistently
applied to all periods presented.

On 6 June 2005 the Filtrona business was demerged from Bunzl plc (‘Bunz!' or *former parent company’) and the ordinary shares of
Filtrona plc ('the Company') were listed on the London Stock Exchange. The demerger was effected by the payment of a dividend in
specie by Bunzl and has been accountad for as if it were a reverse acquisition.

For the purposes of these financial staterments ‘Filtrona’ or 'the Group’ means Filtrona pic, its subsidiaries and joint ventures.

b Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by Filtrona. Control exists when Filtrona has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain economic benefit from its activities. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in
the financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

(i) Joint ventures

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. A joint venture is an entity in which Fittrona has a long-term
interest and exercises joint contrel. Under the equity method, Filtrona’s share of the aggregate assets and liabilities is included

in the balance sheet and Filtrona's share of operating profit, finance and income tax expense of the joint venture is included in the
income statement.

{ii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intragroup balances and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expense arising from intragroup transactions are eliminated
in preparing the financial statements.




54 Filtrona pk: Annuak Report and Accounts 2006 www.filtona.com

Accounting policies

¢ Foreign currency

(i) Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign cumencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling at that date and
recognised in the income statement unless hedglng criteria apply {see policy for derivative instruments).

(i) Financial statements of foreign operatlons

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation, are translated at
the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet ‘date. The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated at average exchange
rates.

(iii} Net investment in foreign operations

Exchange differences since 1 January 2004, the date of transition to adopted IFRS, arising from the translation of the net investment
in foreign eperatlons and related hedges are taken to the translation reserve and released to the income statement upon disposal.
Differences arising prior to 1 January 2004 are included in retained earnings.

d Financial instruments

Under IAS 38, financial instruments are measured initially at fair value. The subsequent measurement depends on the classification of the
financial instrument. Interest bearing loans and borrow:ngs and other financial liabilities (excluding derivatives) are held at amortised cost,
unless they are included in a hedge accountlng relationship.

() Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge the change in fair value is recognised in equity to the extent that it is effective and
any ineffective portion is recognised in the i nncome staterment. Where the undertying transaction results in a financial asset, accumulated
gains and losses are recognised in the i |ncome statement in the same period as the hedged item. Where the hedged item resuits in a non-
financial asset the accumulated gains and lossés praviously recogmsed in equity are included in the initial carrying value of the asset.

(i) Fair value hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is used to hedge the foreign exchange exposure of a monetary asset or liability, any gain or loss on
the hedging instrument is recognised in the income statement.

{iii} Hedges of net investment in foreign operations

The gain or loss on an instrument used to hedge a netinvestment in a foreign operation that is deemed effective is recognised in equity.
Any ineffective portion is recogmsed in the income statement.

e Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Previously revalued properties
were treated as being held at deemed cost upon transition to adopted IFRS.

Where parts of an item of property. plant and eguipment or other assets have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
itemns, The carrying values of property, plant and equipment and other assets are periodically reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrylng values may not be recoverable.
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f  Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their estimated remaining useful lives on a straight line basis at the following
annual rates:

Freehoid land Not depreciated

Buildings . ' 2% or life of lease if shorter .
Plant and machinery 7-20%

Fixtures, fittings and equipment 10-33%

The assets' useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

g Leases

Where Filtrona has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset subject to a lease, the lease is treated as a finance
lease. Ali other leases are treated as operating leases and the rentals expensed to the income statement on a straight line basis.
Lease incentives are amortised in the income statement over the life of the lease.

h  Intangible assets . T
(i) Goodwill
Goodwil is stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Acquisitions are accounted for using the purchase method. For acquisitions that have occurred since 1 January 2004 goodwill represents
the difference between the cost and fair value of identifiable assets acquired. For acquisitions made before 1 January 2004, goodwill
is included on the basis of its deemed cost, which represents the amount previously recorded under UK GAAP.

(i) Research and development
Research costs are expensed to the income statement in the year in which they are incurred.

Development costs relating to new products are capitalised if the new product is technically and commercially feasible.
Other development costs are recognised in the income statement and expensed as incurred.

" (i} Customer relationships
Customer relationships are identified on acquisition of businesses and valued using discounted cash flows based on historical custormer
attrition rates. Amortisation is expensed in the income statement on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life, being
a period of up to 25 years.

i  Impairment )
All assets, except intangible assets, deferred tax assets and inventories, are reviewed annually to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. Intangible assets are tested annually. If an indication of impairment exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
being the greater of value in use and net selling price, and is recognised in the income statement. Value in use is estimated based on
future cash flows discounted using a pre-tax discount rate.

i Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (on a first in, first out basis) and net realisable value. For work-in-progress and finished goods,
cost includes an appropriate proportion of labour cost and overheads.

k Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and fixed term investments whose maturities are three months or less from the date
of acquisition. Bank overdrafts repayable on demand which form an integral part of Filtrona's cash management are included as part of
cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows.




56 Filtrona ple Annual Report and Accounts 2006 wwwi filtrona.com

Accounting policies

|  Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less impairmant losses.

m Income tax
tncome tax in the income statement comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised-in edquity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the,taxable | income for the year using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date and any adjustment 1o tax payabls in prior years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temparary differences arising between the tax bases
and the carrying amounts of assets and f|ab|||t:es in the financial staternents. The following temporary differences are not provided for:
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the |n|t|a| recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit,
and differences relating to investments in sub5|d|ar|es to the extent that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates that are expacted to apply when the related deferred tax asset/liability is settled.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the asset
can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the refated tax benefit will be realised.

n  Revenue
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised | |n the income staterment when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recogn sed if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due,
associated expenses or the possible return of goods.

o Finance income and expense
Finance income and expense is recognised in the income statement as it accrues.

The finance expense prior to demerger '.ncludes interest payable to Bunz!. Following demerger the net reported finance expense only
reflects the cost of external borrowing.

p Segment reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of F|Itrona that-is engaged in providing products (business segment), or in providing products
within a particular economic environment (ge ograph|c segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of

other segments.

For operational and financial reporting purposes, Filtrona identifies two business segments which are characterised by shared technology
and raw material inputs.
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q Pensions
() Defined contribution schemes
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are expensed to the income statement as incurred.

(i) Defined benefit schemes

The significant pension schemes in Europe and the US have been accounted for on a defined benefit basis under IAS 19 (revised):
Employee benefits (1AS 19 (revised)'). Under IAS 19 (revised) Filtrona had to account for defined benefit pension charges up to the period
of demerger on a defined contribution basis and on a defined benefit basis thereafter. Accordingly, Filtrona recognised the retirement
benefit obligation of £34.7rm at demerger in the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense.

Actuarial gains and losses that have arisen subsequently are recognised in full in the statement of recognised income and expense.

The net obligations in respect of defined benefit pension schemes are calculated separately for each scheme by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have eamed in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value, and the fair value of any scheme assets is deducted. The discount rate is the vield at the balance sheet date
on AA credit-rated bonds that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of Filtrona’s obligations. The calculation is performed by a
qualified independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. ’

The amounts charged to operating profit are the current service cost, past service cost and gains and lossas on settlement and
curtailments. The expected increase in the present value of scheme liabilities is included within finance expenss and the expected return
on scheme assets is included within finance income.

r Share-based payments

Filtrona operates equity-settled, share-based incentive plans. A charge is made in the income statement based on the fair value of options
using the Black-Scholes model with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and spread over the
period between grant and vesting date of the options. The amount recognised as an expense will be adjusted to reflect the actual number
of share options that vest.

The expense for share-based payments prior to demerger was the charge allocated by Filtrona’s former parent company based on the
participation of Filtrena employees in schemes that it operated.

The shares held in the Filtrona Employee Benefit Trust for the purpose of fulfilling obligations in respect of share option plans are treated
as belonging to the Company and are deducted from its retained earnings.

s Provisions
A provision is recognised when there is a probable legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and a reliable estimate can
be made of the outflow of economic resources that will be required to settle the obligation.

t Netdebt
Net debt is defined as cash and cash equivalents, net of interest bearing loans and borrowings.

u Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.
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Notes

1. Segment analysis
Filtrona comprises the following business segments:

Plastic Technologies produces, sources and dlstnbutes protection and finishing products, self-adhesive tear tape and certain security
products as well as proprietary and customiged plastic extrusions and packaging items for consumer products.

Fibre Technologies focuses on the productlon and supply of special filters for cigarettes and bonded fibre products such as reservoirs
and wicks for writing instruments and pnnters ‘household products and medical devices.

Business segments

Plastic Fibre Central

Technologies Technologies Services! Filtrona

£m £m £m £m

Revenue I l : 288.5 254.7 - 544.2
Operating profitdloss) before intangible amoriigation 14 281 (7.9 61.6
Intangible amortisation ! ©0.8) ©.1) - 0.9}
Operating profit/{loss) 1 } 40.6 28.0 (7.9) 60.7
Segment assets 175.0 1391 1.2 315.3
Intangible assets 56.3 32 - 59.5
Unallocated items 229 229
Total assets } 231.3 142.3 241 397.7
Segment liabilities it 357 291 6.7 715
Unallocated items 3 177.5 1775
Total liabilities It 35.7 29.1 184.2 2490

Other segment items

Capital expenditure _ 21.2 12.9 0.2 34.3
Depreciation 136 2.0 03 229
Closing number of employees 3,159 2,413 33 5,605
Average number of employees ] 3,055 2,385 33 5,473

1 Central Services includes group accounts, tax, treasury, legal, internal audit, corporate develepment, human rescurces, information technology and other sarvices provided
centrally to support the business segments
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1. Segment analysis (continued)

Plastic Fibre Central I
Technologies  Technologies Services? Filtrona
tm £m m i £m
Revenue 273.3 240.4 - 513.7
Operating profit/{loss) before intangible amortisation and demerger expense 376 269 6.7) 57.8
Intangible amortisation 0.7 [{(4R)] - {0.8)
Demerger expense - - (1.0 0.0
Operating profit/{loss) 369 26.8 77 56.0
Segment assets 180.1 1431 45 3277
~ Intangible assets ' 59.7 33 - 63.0
Unallocated items 322 32.2
Total assets 239.8 146.4 36.7 4229
Segment liabilities 354 327 91 7.2
Unallocated items 2154 2154
Total ligbilities 35.4 327 2245 202.6

Other segment items

Capital expenditure 218 16.4 0.2 38.2
Depreciation 13.3 85 0.3 221
Closing number of employees 2,873 2,340 3 5,246
Average number of employees 2,953 2,270 30 5,253

t Centrat Services includes group accounts, tax, treasury, legal, internat audit, corporate development, human resources, information technology and other services provided
cantrally to support the businass segments

Inter-segment sales are not significant in either year. Net finance expense of £6.1m (2005: £6.0m} and income tax expense of £18.6m
(2005:; £17.0m) cannot be meaningfully allocated by segment. The majority of unallocated assets relate to cash and cash equivalents and
the majority of unallocated liabilities relate to interast bearing loans and borrowings, retirement benefit obligations, deferred tax liabilities,
bank overdrafts and income tax payable.
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1. Segment analysis {continued}
Geographic segments
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REELUT Segment Intangible Capital
by destination assets assels expenditure
£m Em £m £m
Europe j 191.7 128.3 40.0 147
North America 1 219.6 115.6 19.2 11.6
Rest of World ’ it 1329 714 03 8.0
| l 544.2 315.3 59.5 34.3
Unallocated items - 299 - -
it 5442  338.2 59.5 34.3
{i
2005
Revenue Segment  Intangible Capital
by cestination assets assetls  expenditure
£m £m m £m
Europe 183.7 124.5 40.7 16.7
North America 215.5 1331 219 14.2
Rest of World 1145 701 0.4 73
5137 3277 63.0 38.2
Unallocated items [ - 32.2 - -
i1 5137 3509 63.0 38.2
All segments are continuing operations.
2. Net operating expense
2006 2005
£m £m
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work—in-progress 0.2 03
Raw materials and consumables 250.0 2320
Personnel expense (note 5) 129.9 124.8
Depreciation and other amounts written off plroperty plant and equipment 22.9 221
Amortisation and other amounts written off |mang|ble assets 09 08
Demerger expense - 1.0
Hire of ptant and rnachinery - rentals payablg under operating leases 0.6 0.5
Other operating expenses i 79.0 76.6
Net operating expense 1 [ 483.5 a57.7
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2. Net operating expense (continued)
Auditor’s remuneration

2006 2005
Note £m jitm
Audit of these financial statements i 0.2 0.2
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 0.6 06
Total audit fees 0.8 0.8
Cther services pursuant to such legislation i 01 01
Cther services relating to tax il 01 0.2
Services relating to corporate finance transactions entered into or proposed to be entered
into by or on behalf of the Company or the Group ’ iv 0.3 -
Total non-audit fees v 0.5 0.3
Total fees 1.3 1.1
Notes

i Includes remuneration and expenses for the audit of the Company for the year of £4,115 (2005: £4,000)

i Fees for other services pursuant 1o such legislation related principally to the review of the interim financial statements

i Other services relating to tax are fees paid for tax compliance services and tax advice

iv Tha Company believes that, given their detailed knowledge of Filtrona’s operations, its structure and accounting policies and the importance of carrying out detailed due diligence
as part of the acquisition process, it is eppropriate for certain audit-retatad work to be carried out by the Company's auditor rather than another firm of accountants. The Audit
Commitiee, which consists of independent Non-axacutive Directors, reviews and approves the level and nature of non-audit work which the auditor performs, incluging the fees
paid for such work, thus ensuring that their objectivity and independence is not compromised

v B0.4m (2005: £0.3m) of the total non-audit fees were charged in the UK

vi Feas of £23,000 (2005: £22,000) were paic in relation to the audit of the Filirona pension schemes

3. Net finance expense

2006 2005
] &m
Finance income
Bank deposits 1.0 11
Other finance income 0.t 0.1
Expected return on pension scheme assets 7.7 4.4
8.8 56
Finance expense
lLoans and overdrafts (7.4) 5.4
Former parent company financing - (1.7
Other finance expense - o1
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (7.5) 4.9

(14.9) (11.6)
Net finance expense (6.1) (6.0}
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Notes

-

4. Income tax expense

505,
Components of tax expense:
Current tax 22.0 17.3
Prior years' tax ) 1.7) (1.2)
Double tax relief (2.9) 0.2
Deferred tax {note 15) 07 11
Income tax expense 1t 18.6 170

Incormne tax expense in the UK is £2.4m (2005: £1.1m).

Factors atfecting income tax expense for the year
Filtrona operates across the world and is sulbject 1o income tax in many different jurisdictions. Filtrona calculates its average expected tax
rate as a weighted average of the national corporate income tax rates in the tax jurisdictions in which it operates.

L

[200€] [2005] |
G0
Profit before income tax 54.6 50.0
Tax at weighted average 18.0 16.0
Effects of: .
Permanent disallowables 0.8 0.2
Overseas state and local tax 0.8 05
Unrelieved tax losses ‘ 0.2 1.8
Prior year adjustments .7 (1.2
Other items 0.5 0.3)
Income tax expense ! E 18.6 17.0
5. Personne! expense
(2606} 2
]
Wages and salaries 10.2 105.2
Social security expense ] 131 131
Pension expense (note 17} ‘ ‘ 54 54
Share option expensa 1.2 11
11 129.9 124.8

Ll :

The Report of the Remuneration Committee on pages 33 to 40 sets out information on Directors' remuneration.
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6. Earnings-per share
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Earnings attributable to equity holders of Filtrona plc

34.5 31.6
Adjustment* 0.6 1.2
Adjusted eamings 351 328

Basic weighted average ordinary shares in issue (millior)

218.8 219.4*

Dilutive effect of employee share option plans (miflicn} 1.8 08
Diluted weighted average ordinary shares {million) 220.6 2189
Basic eamings per share 15.8p 14.4p
Adjustment* 0.2p 06p
Adjusted earnings per share 16.0p 15.0p
Diluted basic earnings per share 15.6p 14.4p
Adjusted eamings per share is provided to reflect the undertying earnings performance of Filtrona.
* The adjustment relates to intangible amortisation (2005: intangible amcrtisation and demerger expense) less tax relief thereon
*# The number of ordinary shares issued on demerger was used as the weightad average number for the period prior to demerger
7. Property, plant and equipment
T -
' Fixturesy
1

fittings and
buildings mmm equipment
i £m @ ]

Cost
Beginning of year 58.2 2671 40.9 367.2
Acquisition -7 041 - 0.1
Divestment - 0.7 0.2) (0.9)
Additions 39 270 34 34.3
Disposals (1.5) 4.8} (1.5) (7.8}
Currency translation 3.5 (17.3} 2.1 (22.9)
End of year 581 271.4 40.5 370.0
Depreciation
Beginning of year 12.7 147.3 26.7 186.7
Expense in year 1.5 176 3.8 22.9
Divestment - {0.7) 0.2 (0.9}
Disposals {0.4) 4.4) (1.5) (6.3)
Currency translation (0.8) (9.0 (1.0) (10.8}
End of year 13.0 150.8 27.8 16
Net book value at end of year 451 120.6 127 178.4
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Notes

7. Property, plant and equipment (conﬁml eid)

— gana ]
L

Cost :
Beginning of year : ‘ 46.5 230.5 36.0 313.0
Additions |} 8.8 25.2 4.2 38.2
Disposals ; - (0.4 (5.9 0.8) (71)
Currency transtation ' 4.3 17.3 1.5 231
End of year } 59.2 267.1 409 367.2
Depreciation
Beginning of year . ) 10.8 126.6 231 160.5
Expense in year 13 174 34 221
Disposals i 0.2} (5.6} 0.7} (6.5)
Currency translation 0.8 8.9 0.9 10.6
End of year 1} 12.7 147.3 267 186.7
Net book value at end of year } ] 46.5 119.8 14.2 180.5
Net book value at beginning of year 1} 357 103.9 12.9 152.5
8. Intangible assets
[26051
[Cistomey
[Goodwill lrelationships krotal)
R

Cost 5‘ '
Beginning of year 54.5 210 75.5
Acquisition (note 22) - 0.6 0.6
Currency translation (3.7) 0.2} {3.9)
End of year 4 i: 50.8 214 72.2
Amortisation ‘
Beginning of year 1.2 1.3 1256
Expense in year - 0.9 0.9
Currency translation {1 0.7 - {0.7)
End of year 10.5 2.2 127
Net book value at end of year 40.3 19.2 59.5
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8. Intangible assets (continued)

Customer
Goodwill relationships
£m £m
Cost .
Beginning of year 46.9 21.9 68.8
Acquisitions (note 22) - 51 - 51
Currency translation 25 0.9 1.6
End of year 54.5 21.0 75.5
Amortisation
Beginning of year 10.7 0.5 11.2
Expense in year ) - 0.8 0.8
Currency tranglation 05 - 0.5
End of year 1.2 1.3 12.5
Net book value at end of year . 433 19.7 63.0
Net book value at beginning of year 36.2 21.4 57.6

Filtrana tests intangible assets annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that they are impaired. Intangible assets
are allocated o cash generating units and a discounted cash flow analysis is computed to compare discounted estimated future operating
cash flows to the net carrying value of sach business, as discussed in the Business Review. The analysis is based on forecast cash flows,
with zero growth used to determine terminal values. The estimated cash flows are discounted using Filtrona's weighted average cost of
capital and any impairments identified are charged to the income statement. The testis dependent on management estimates and
judgements, in particutar in relation to the forecasting of future cash flows, and the discount rate applied to these cash flows.

9. Inventories

2006 2005
£m L Em

Raw materials and consumabiles 23.9 257
Work-in-progress 3.1 3.0
Finished goods and goods for resale 287 311
’ 557 598

Inventories held at net realisable value and amounts recognised as income from the reversal of impairments were not significant.

10. Trade and other receivables

2006 2005

tm ffm
Trade receivables 68.2 713
Other receivables ’ 6.6 71
Prepayments and accrued income 6.3 7.2

a1 85.6
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11. Cash and cash equivalents
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[5006) 3005, |
&0
Bank balances | 18.3 29.7
Short-term bank deposits nct repayable on demand 24 - 10
Cash and cash equivalents 20.7 30.7
Bank overdrafts (1.0) (5.0
Cash and cash equivalents in the stateme’h_t’ of cash flows 19.7 257
12. Trade and other payables
ml
[£m]
Trade payables 381 39.5
Other tax and sociat securnity contributions 3.2 28
Other payables 6.7 7.2
Accruals and deferred income 170 19.4
{1 65.0 68.9
13. Interest bearing loans and borrowingsl
2005, I
: [£m]
Non-current liabilities
Unsecured bank loans 117.9 145.2
Current liabilities
Unsecured bank loans 01 01
Unsecured non-bank loan 0.5 06
{1 0.6 07

Terms and debt repayment schedule

2005 o
ai M% @@& Total) < Tl

& m % R "B
Unsecured bank loans 01 01 1178 118.0 01 01 1451 145.3
Unsecured non-bank loan 0.5 - - 0.5 0.6 - - 0.6
1} o6 0.1 117.8 118.5 0.7 0.1 145.1 145.9

{
All debt due for repayment in two to five years must be repaid no later than May 2010.
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13. Interest bearing loans and borrowings (continued)
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At 31 December 2006, the majority of Filtrona's interest bearing loans and borrowings were at floating rates of interest set with

reference to LIBOR for periods ranging from seven days to three months. €30m and up to US$65m of net debt was protected from
adverse movements in interest rates with interest rate caps for a period of 20 months. On 24 February 2006 the interest rate on US$40m
of net debt was effectively fixed at 5.1775% with an interest rate swap for a period of two years. With effect from 24 November 2006 the
interest rate on a further US$30m of net debt was effectively fixed at 5.4313% with an interest rate swap for a period of two years.

At 31 December 2005, the majority of Filtrona’s interest bearing loans and borrowings were at floating rates of interest set with reference
to LIBOR for periods ranging from seven days to three months.

After taking into account foreign exchange swaps, the currency and interest rate profile of Fitrona's financial assets and liabilities is as

follows:
:
[Nony T (s Gﬂ%
Fixcd SN Fioating N ntcres Il exchiang ol % Gz ESiEgR
[rate) Tate Bearing % Total) Learing] % E)
Bm : i Bm [
Assets i
Sterling - 3.4 1.0 - 14.4 3.5 223 - 25.8
US doltar - 50 29.8 - 34.8 49 30.2 - 351
Euro - 4.3 20.7 - 25.0 75 1.7 - 18.2
Other - 8.0 21.4 - 2384 14.8 231 - 379
- 20.7 829 - 103.6 307 873 - 118.0
Liabilities . :
Sterling - 311 18.9 61.3} {11.3) 379 274 (78.) (12.8)
US dollar 357 525 35.2 9.5 1329 M7 357 20.2 167.8
Euro - 0.2 16.5 5241 68.8 0.3 9.1 586 68.0
Other - - 104 - 10.4 10 141 - 15.1
35.7 83.8 81.0 0.3 200.8 150.8 86.3 0.7 2379

£nil (2005: £2.1m) of Filtrona's non-interest bearing financial liabilities are due for payment in one to two years.

Filtrona’s available undrawn committed facilities at 31 December were:

Expiring within one year

Expiring after one but within two years

Expiring after two years

97.2 70.0

97.2 70.0

Any loans drawn on these facilities would bear interest at floating rates with reference to LIBOR for the period of the loan.
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Notes

14, Derivative instruments
Filtrona uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from operational,

financing and investment activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, Filtrona does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes.

Assets Liabilities
Contractual m
Fair or notional Fair ornotional
values amounts values amounts
£m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2006
Fair value hedges
Forward foreign exchange contracts 3 - 1.6 - 9.7
Cash flow hedges
Forward foreign exchange contracts i - 18 - 25
Interest rate swaps ] 0.2 358 - -
Hedges of net investments .
Cross currency swaps - 4.4 0.3 57.2
183 0.2 43.7 {0.3) 69.4
Agsets Liabilities
Contractual m
Fair  or notional Fair  or notional
valles amounts values amounts
Cm m £m £m
At 31 December 2005
Fair value hedges 4
Forward foreign exchange contracts 0.1 4.9 {0.1) 9.6
Cash flow hedges .
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 08 - 08
Hedges of net investments ;
Cross currency swaps - 14.6 0.7 64.2

i 01 20.3 0.8) 74.6

Fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts and cross currency swaps have been cafculated at year end exchange rates compared
to contracted rates. Fair values of interest rate swaps have been calculated by discounting cash flows at the rates of interest prevailing at
the year end. Fair values of other financial assets and liabilities are not significantly different from their carrying amounts in 2006 and 2005.

The net fair value gains on open forward foreigq exchange contracts that hedge foreign currency risk of anticipated future sales
and purchases will be transferred to the i income statement when the forecast sales and purchases occur over the next 12 months,
With the exception of the interest rate swaps discussed in note 13 all other derivative instruments mature within the next 12 months.

Filtrona has US dollar denominated borrowmgs and US dollar and euro currency swaps which it has designated as hedges of its net
investments in subsidiary undertakings. The exohange gains of £15.5m (20086: losses of £11.3m) on these borrowings and the gains of
£2.1m (2005 losses of £0.1m) on the US dollar rurrency swaps and gains of £0.8m (2005: gains of £0. Bm) oN euro currency swaps have
been recognised in reserves.
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15. Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following;

Liabilities Liabilities
Cm £m
Property, plant and equipment (0.6} 17.8 17.2 (0.7) 13.2 125
Intangible assets - 7.2 7.2 - 5.1 51
Employee benefits (10.0 - (10.0) (11.4) - (11.4)
Other {3.8) 07 (3.1) 4.6) 8.2 36
Tax {assets)/liabilities (14.4) 257 13 (16.7) 26.5 9.8
Set off of tax 14.14 (14.9) - 151 (15.1) -
Net tax (assets)/liabilities {0.3) 1.6 1.3 (1.6) 1.4 9.8

Movements in temporary differences in the year:

Beginning of year 9.8 18.4
Charge to the income statement in respect of current vear (note 4) 0.7 13
Charge to the income statement in respect of prior years ’ 0.9 17
Recognition of defined benefit pension schemes on demerger - (10.5)
Chargefcredit) to reserves on movements of defined benefit pension schemes 0.7 0.3)
Currency translation (0.8) {0.6)
End of year . 1.3 9.8

No deferred tax liability is provided in respect of any future remittance of earnings of foreign subsidiaries where Filtrona is able to control
the remittance of earnings and it is probable that such earnings will not be remitted in the forseeable future. A deferred tax asset of £0.7m
(2005: £0.7m) has not been recognised in respect of capital losses as the realisation of this deferred tax asset is not considered probable.
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Notes

16. Provisions

2006 2005
£m £m
Movements I
Beginning of year i 7.5 56
Expensed in the income statement - 25
Acquisition i 0.3 -
Reclassified from other payables . - 34
Utilised - (2.0 (3.8)
Currency translation (0.1) 041
End of year 11 5.7 75
Nen-current : 2.7 2.5
Current 3.0 50
1 j 5.7 75

Provisions relate primarily to vacant properties, F"employees’ compensation claims, legal claims and environmental clean up expenses.
Non-current provisions are generally long-term in nature with the timing of utilisation uncertain.

17. Employee benefits

Post-retirement benefits '

For the period prior to demerger Filtrona employess were members of the former parent company’s defined benefit and defined
contribution pension schemes. The liabilities and assets of these schemes were transferred to successor Filtrona schernes following
demerger. Liabilities were actuarially allocated between Filtrona and the former parent company and scheme assets were split in the
same proportion as liabilities.

Under 1AS 19 {revised) Filtrona had to account for defined benefit pension costs up to the period of demerger on a defined contribution
basis and on a defined benefit basis thereaftgr.fAccordingly. Filtrona recognised the retirerent benefit obligation of £34.7m at demerger
in the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense.

Trustees administer the schemes and the aséets are held independently from Filtrona.

Pension costs of the defined benefit schemes are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent professionally qualified
actuaries. Full triennial actuarial valuations wérg carried out on the principal European defined benefit schemes as at 5 April 2006 and
annual actuarial valuations are performed on the principal US defined benefit schemes. The assets and liabilities of the defined benefit
schemes have been updated to the balance sheet date from the most recent actuarial valuations taking account of the investment retums
achieved by the schemes and the level of contributions.

Contributions to all schemmes are determined in line with actuarial advice, local conditions and practices. Defined benefit contributions in
2007 are expected to be £5.9m, which consists of payments to fund future service accruals and contributions to amortise the deficit in
respect of past service.
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17. Employee benefits {continued)

The amounts included in the consolidated financial statements in respect of arrangements in Europe and the US are as follows:
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=&

Amounts charged to operating profit

Defined contribution schemes 2.2 3.6
Defined benefit schemes:

Service cost 3.2 1.8
Total operating expense (note 5) 5.4 54
Amounts included as finance (income)/expense
Expected return on scheme assets {7.7) 4.9
Interest on scheme liabilities 75 4.4
Net financial retum {0.2) -
Amounts recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense
Recognition of actuarial losses on demerger - 34.7)
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets 5.5 57
Impact of changes in assumptions relating to the present value of scheme liabilities (3.3) 7.7
Actuarial gainfloss) 2.2 {36.7)
The principal assumptions used by the independent qualified actuaries for the purposes of IAS 19 (revised) were:

=m

[Erope] [E0T0rE]
Rate of increase in salaries 3.90% 4.00% 3.75% 3.00%
Rate of increase in pensions 2.90% n/a* 2.75% n/a*
Discount rate 5.00% 5.75% 4.75% 5.50%
Inflation rate 2.90% n/a* 2.75% na"
Expected retum on scheme assets 6.10% 8.30% 5.90% 8.30%
*not applicable

The assumptions used by the actuaries are the estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions which, due to the

timescale covered, may not be borne out in practice.

The life expectancy assumptions used to estimate defined benefit obligations at 31 Decernber 2006 are:

[EGrOpe]
Male retiring today at age 65 21.8 18.1
Female retiring tcday at age 65 24.7 20.4
Male retiring in 20 years at age 65 23.0 18.1
Fernale retiring in 20 years at age 65 25.8 20.4
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17. Employee benefits {continued)
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The fair value of scheme assets, which are nat intended to be realised in the short-term and may be subject to significant change before
they are realised, and the present value of the scheme liabilities, which are derived from cash flow projections over long periods and are

therefore inherently uncertain, are:

€]

Equities 6.90% 73.2 9.75% 17.5 90.7
Bonds 4.70% 13.3 5.75% 104 23.7
Gilts 3.90% 19.9 - 19.9
Other 4.70% 0.3 4.50% 0.2 0.5
Fair value of scheme assets 106.7 281 134.8
Present value of scheme liabilities {131.6) (34.1) {165.7)
Retirement benefit obligations I (24.9) (6.0} (30.9)
= nglem pEm Q
frate ol % [rate o] B 1ot}
oiU] ] 1]
Equities 6.80% 64.7 9.75% 18.8 83.5
Bonds 4.45% 125 5.76% 10.2 227
Gilts 3.80% 181 - 18.1
Other - 4.50% 0 0.1
Fair value of scheme assets 95.3 294 124.4
Present value of scheme liabilities (123.3) (36.9) (160.2}
Retirement benefit obligations il (28.0) (7.8) {35.8)
Movement in fair value of scheme assets/(li?bi!ities) during the year
i .
20086,
[—— — ] ————
[Scheme i cheme) Selizms
[assorc Illiabilitics! Totall [occcis I Zhilies proial
Bn Gn B0 8
Beginning of year 124.4 {160.2) {35.8) - - -
Recognition of defined benefit pension scherpgs on demerger - - - 116.2 (150.9) (34.7)
Contribution to defined benefit pension schemes by former
parent company - - - 14 - 14
Service cost - (3.2) (3.2) - (1.8 (1.8)
Employer contributions 4.7 - 4.7 25 - 25
Employee contributions 0.8 {c8) . - Q7 0.7 -
Actuarial gains/{losses) 55 3.3 2.2 57 (77 2.0
Finance income/expense) 77 (7.5} 0.2 44 4.4 -
Benefits paid {@.7} 4.7 - {1.7) 17 -
Curtailment - - - (7.3) 75 0.2
Changes in scheme coverage - - - 0.3 .1 0.8
Currency translation {3.6} 4.6 1.0 2.2 (2.8) {0.6)
End of year 1 134.8 {165.7) (30.9) 124.4 (160.2) (35.8)
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Bt
[scheme]

Jassets/]
liabilities

Experience gains and losses
Difference between actual and expected return on scheme assets

Net actuarial gains/{losses) recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense

4.1
1.3

5.5
2.2

48

(1.2

8.7
2.0

Sensitivity

For the significant assumptions used in determining post-retirement costs and liabilities, the following sensitivity analysis gives the
estimate of the impact on the income statement and balance sheet for the year ended 31 December 2006.

Scheme,liabilities

Annual service cost
5] Totat

£ E R
1
i -

0.5% decrease in the discount rate 15.0 26 17.6 04 0.1 0.5
1.0% increase in the rate of inflation 25.0 - 25.0 0.9 - 0.9
1 year increase in life expectancy 35 11 4.6 01 - 01

Q.5% increase in the discount rate . (13.0) {2.2) (15.2) 0.4 0.1) (0.5}
1.0% decrease in the rate of inflation (20.0y - (20.0) (0.8) - (C.8)

Share-based incentives

Filtrona operates share-based incentive plans for its Executive Directors and employees. The total charge in respect of these plans during

the year was £1.2m (2005: £1.1m). Details of these plans are set out below:

Share options outstanding

EEETR Grantod IlEverage Exercised]
Me iy EEEED EXEICISE [dliring|

BvEr2ge
EXE(CISE

fat31]Declexercise

the,year prceMliNEyear price, 200¢ price,
LTIP Part A 2,133,262 239.5p 1987174 2570p (138,812} 239.5p - - 3,981,624 248.2p -
LTIP Part B ‘
‘Matching’ 600,666 - - - - - - - 600,666 - -
LTIP Part B
‘Performance’ 515,347 - 496,810 - - - - - 1,012,157 - -
DASB - - 128,320 - - - - - 128,320 - -
SAYE 3 year plan - - 764,823 2370p (931220 237.0p (843) 237.0p 670,858 237.0p -
SAYE 5 year plan - - 710677 2370p (46,191 237.0p - - 664,486 237.0p -
3,249,275 4,087,804 (278,125) {843) 7,058,111 -
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17. Employee benefits (continued}

2005

Grantec] BVETH0E averagoJllExercisable]
Aidm [clLiring] BXEICISE eEnin ASIp cEmE asiEm
00! ' i (he,yea; [orice] 2005 [rice]

LTIP Part A : - 2.&81 608 2395p (148,346) 2390p 2,133,262 239.5p -
LTIP Part B ‘Matching’ 15 - 600,666 - - - 600,666 - -
LTIP Part B ‘Performance’ - 570,992 - (55,645} - 515,347 - -
1V - 3453266 - (203,991} 3,249,275 -
1

Fair value model inputs for share options i)t;tstanding
2006
SAYE]
M
Weighted average fair value at grant 41.1p 211.9p 237.1p 276.4p 77.6p 92.2p
Weighted average share price at grant ‘ 248.2p 232.0p 262.1p 296.8p 296.3p 296.3p
Weighted average exercise price ‘ 248.2p - - - 2370p 237.0p
Weighted average volatility 1 22.7% 23.6% 241% 20.5% 20.3% 24.2%
Weighted average dividend yield 2.87% 3.07% 2.75% 2.40% 2.40% 2.40%
Weighted risk free rate 4.36% 4.10% 4.23% 4.35% 4.39% 4.36%
Expected employee retention rates 76.9% 85.0% 91.5% 98.0% 55.0% 55.0%
Expected term b 3.25years 3.00years 3.75years 3.00years 3.00years 5.00 years
| Weighted average fair value at grant f 406p - 211.9p 207.2p
Weighted average share price at grant it 239.5p 232.0p 232.0p
Weighted average exercise price : 239.5p - -
Weighted average volatility ] 24.0% 23.6% 23.8%
Weighted average dividend yield , 2.98% 3.07% 3.07%
Weighted risk free rate 412% 410% 4.15%
Expected employee retention rates : ‘ 73.7% 85.0% 85.0%
Expected term 3.25years 3.00years 3.75years

All options have been valued using the Black-Scholes model.

Volatility has been calculated over the length 'pfﬁthe expected term, for the period immediately before the grant date. The volatility of the
former parent company’s shares has been used as a proxy for Filtrona plc’s share price volatility in the period prior to demerger.
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17. Employee benefits (continued)

|
i
Contractual life 3-10years 3-6years 3-Gyears 3years 3years 5 years

Contractual life 3-10years 3-6years 3-6years

Details of the vesting conditions of the LTIP Part A, LTIP Part B ‘Matching’, LTIP Part B ‘Performance’ and DASB share option schemes
are set out in the Report of the Remuneration Committee on pages 33 to 40.

All options are settled with equity.

18. Share capital

Autherised: 500 million (2005: 500 million) ordinary shares of 25p (2005: 25p) each 125.0 125.0
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 25p (2005: 25p) each 54.8 54.8

Number of shares in issue
Beginning and end of year 219,326,795 219,326,795

On 8 June 2005 a resolution was passed reducing the ordinary share capital by 100p per share (total: £219.3m), and on 8 June 2005 this
was confirmed by an Qrder of the High Court. The amounts arising were used to create retained earnings in the Company.

19. Movements on reserves

2006 |

Capita B
. Transiation] Minority
' merests fotal

Gp: @ £m
At 1 January 2006 0.1 (132.8) 5.3 197.3 5.6 75.5
Total recognised income and expense for the year (3.7 36.0 1.2 335
Acquisition of employee trust shares (1.2 {1.2)
Share option expense 1.2 1.2
Dividends paid (14.3) 0.8) {15.1)

At 31 December 2006 01 {132.8) 1.6 213.0 6.0 93.9
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19. Movements on reserves {continued)
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[2005)
[CanE] e
° Giher, [Neqaing Il ansiation [hingrity]
resarve TRSErVe, [interesis) hTota)]
Bm Gn 8m
At 1 January 2005 ! ; - {132.8) - (1.6) (28.7) 3.9 {(159.2}
Adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39 041 01
At 1 January 2005 restated - (132.8) 01 (1.6) (28.7) 3.9 (159.1}
Total recognised income and expense for th? year o 6.9 6.1 19 148
Transier to retained earnings on reduction in share capital 219.3 219.3
Acquisition of employee trust shares {1.0) (1.0}
Share option expense 1.1 1.1
Dividends paid 4.7} {0.4} (5.1)
Arising on acquisition 0.2 0.2
Redemption of £1 preference shares 01 0.1
Former parent company's capital contributio|n 4.2 4.2
Former parent company’s contribution to the defined
benefit pensicn scheme net of deferred tax 1.0 1.0
At 31 December 2005 4 04 (132.8) - 5.3 197.3 56 75.5

Employee trust shares are ordinary shares of the Company held in an employee benefit trust. The purpose of this trust is to hold shares in
the Company for subsequent transfer to Executlve Directors and employees relating to options granted and awards made in respect of
market purchase shares under the Company 3 share-based incentive plans. Full details are set out in the Report of the Remuneration
Committee on pages 33 to 40. The assets, Iaab:hnes and expenditure of the trust have been incorporated in these financial statements. At
31 December 20086, the trust held 872,166 (2005 423,009) shares, upon which dividends have been waived, with an aggregate nominal

value of £0.2m {2005: £0.1m) and market value of £2.3m (2005: £1.2m).

The other reserve relates to the Group reorgamsatuon which tock place as part of the demerger and represents the difference between

Filtrona plc’s share capital and Filtrona International Ltd's share capital and share premium on 6 June 2005 and is not distributable.

20. Analysis of net debt

[ lan] EXChanoe [51[Dec)
s ity ooEnEns [2006]
Cir] i) Bm_

Cashatbank andinhand 226 5.8) (1.0} 15.8
Short-term bank deposits repayable on demar;nd 7 4.3) 0.3 25
Short-term bank deposits not repayable on demand 1.0 14 - 2.4
Cash and cash equivalents 307 8.7) (1.3 20.7
Overdrafts (5.0 39 01 (1.0)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 257 4.8) {1.2) 19.7
Debt due within one year 0.7 a1 - {0.6)
Debt due after one year (145.2) 11.8 155 {(117.9)
Net debt { [ {120.2) 71 14.3 (98.8)
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21. Operating lease commitments
At 31 December Filtrona had the following commitments under non-cancellable operating Ieases

2006 2005

£m 1£m

Payable within one year 1.6 1.4
Payable between one and five years 4.5 44
Payable after five years 4.4 4.4
10.5 10.2

22. Acquisitions

In May 2006 Filtrona purchased certain assets and the business of the CSL Digital Print division of CORGI Services Limited and,
concurrently, entered into a five year agreement with CORG! Group Limited for the exclusive supply of registered gas installer
identity cards.

In December 2005 Fittrona purchased an additional 30% of FractureCode Corporation ApS {FractureCode’), taking Filtrona's share in
FractureCode to 80%. FractureCode was previously accounted for as a joint venture using equity accounting. Following the purchase it is
now fulty consolidated and contributed £nil to operating profit before intangible amortisation in 2005.

The remaining 20% of shares in FractureCode could be acquired between March 2009 and December 2012, The consideration for the
remaining 20% of shares is dependent on various profit related targets with a minimum consideration payable of €3.1m and a maximum
of €40m.

Cn acquisition the assets and liabilities of the businesses acquired were adjusted to reflect their fair values to Filtrona. The fair value
adjustments are provisional and subject to finalisation for up to one year from the date of acquisition.

The principal fair value adjustments are as follows:

In 2006:
There were no adjustments to the book value of assets and liabilities acquired.

In 2005:
The adjustment to intangibles represents the write-off of goodwill in the entity on acquisition in accordance with IAS 38: Intangible Assels.

The adjustment to investment in associate and minority interest reflects the change from equity accounting to full consolidation.

A summary of the acquisition of CSL Digital Print in 2006 is detailed below:

Bookand
fair \.:alue

of assets
acquired
I £m

Property, plant and equipment 0A
TFrade and other receivables 01
Provisions 0.3

{eR)]
Customer relationships 06

Consideration, satisfied in cash 0.5
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22. Acquisitions (continued)

A summary of the effect of the acquisition ofIFEactureCode in 2005 is detailed below:
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@ RfneEhp
[Bookvalue) m] ol assals)
[nolicy S acauired]
i S 8p
Intangible assets 0.5 {0.5) -
Trade and other receivables 07 - 07
Trade and cther payables (0.4) - 0.4
Cash and cash equivalents 01 - QA
Investment in associate - {0.5) {0.5)
Minority interast - 0.2 0.2)
0.9 {1.2) 0.3
Goodwil 51
Consideration 4.8
Satisfied by:
Accrued expenses 01
Cash consideration 47
The net cash outflow in the period in respect’of the acquisition of FractureCode comprised:
Cash consideration 4.7
Cash and cash equivalents acquired {01}
Nst cash outflow in respect of acquisition of EréctureCode 46

23. Disposals
In March 2006 Filtrona completed tha sale of
business passed to the acquirer.

This disposal had the following effect on Hltr?n’a's assets and liabilities:

the High Profile business for £0.3m, which was satisfied in cash, and the control of the

™

Inventories 0.3
Trade and other receivables 0.1
Trade and other payables 01
Net identifiable assets and liabilities (at date of Complation) 0.3
Consideration, satisfied in cash l l 0.3
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24, Dividends ,
Per share
2005
o
2005 interim; paid 31 October 2005 213 a7
2005 final: paid 28 April 2006 . 427 9.3
20086 interim: paid 27 October 2006 2.30 5.0
2006 proposed final: payable 4 May 2007 4.60 101
6.90 6.40 15.1 14.0

25. Transactions with related parties
Other than the acquisition of FractureCode in 2005, Filtrona has not entered into any material transactions with related parties.
Furthermore, throughout 2006 and 2005, no Director had a personal interest in any significant transaction of Filtrona.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Filtrona plc

We have audited the Group financial staternents of Filtrona plc for the year ended 31 December 2006 which comprise the Group income
statement, the Group balance sheet, the Group statement of cash flows, the Group statement of recognised income and expense and
the related notes. These Group financial statéments have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Filtrona plc for the year ended 31 December 2006 and on the
information in the Report of the Remuneration Committee that is described as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Gompany’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might : State to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor's report and for no other purpose. To, the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsubsllty to anyone
other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this Report, or for the opinions we have formed,

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing theé Annual Report and the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
Intermnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EL are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 31
and 32,

Our responsibility is to audit the Group fi nancnal statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Iréland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the Group financial
statements have been propedy prepared in accordance with the Companles Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We also report
to you whether in our opinion the information’given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the Group financial statements. The
information given in the Directors’ Report includes that specific information presentad in the Business Review that is cross referred from
the Business Review section of the Durectorsl Report. In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding Directors' remuneration and other
transactions is not disclosed. ‘ ‘

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the Company's compliance with the nine provisions of the 2003
Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not
required to consider whether the Board's statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited Group financial
statements. We consider the implications for our Report if we become aware of any apparent misstaternents or material inconsistencies
with the Group financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemiational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Issued by the Audiiting Practices Board. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of ewdence relevant fo the amounts and disclosures in the Group financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant esumates and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of the Group financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in arder to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregutarity or.error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the Group financial statements!

Opinion

In our opinion:

» the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRS as adopied by the EU, of the state of the Group’s
affairs as at 31 December 2006 and of its proﬂt for the year then ended,;

» the Group financial statements have been'properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS
Regutation; and

+ the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the Group financial statements.

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants ‘ 8 Salisbury Square
Registered Auditor London, EC4Y 8BB

1 March 2007 ! United Kingdom
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Filtrona plc balance sheet
at 31 December 2006

2005

Restated
lem

Fixed assets

Investment in subsidiary undertaking : 28 275.8 274.6
Current assets
Debtors 3 0.1 -

Current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 4 (21.5) 6.7
Net current liabilities (21.4) (5.7
MNet assets ) ' 254.4 268.9

Capital and reserves

Issued capital 5 548 54.8
Capital redemption reserve 6 0.1 a4
Profit and loss account 6 189.5 214.0
Shareholders’ funds: equity interests 254.4 268.9

* Restated cn adoption of FRS 20: Share-based payment
The financial staterments on pages 81 to 85 were approved by the Board of Directors on t March 2007 and were signed on its behalf by;

Steve Dryden
Finance Director

Reconciliation of movement in shareholders' funds

2005
2006 Restated”

£m f|cm
Opening shareholders’ funds as previously reported 268.4 -
Prior year adjustment (adoption of FRS 20) 0.5 -
Opening shareholders’ funds restated 268.9 -
Loss for the financial period {0.2) 0.1
Dividends paid {14.3) (4.7)
New share capital subscribed - 2741
Share-based payments 1.2 0.5
Acquisition of employee trust sharas (1.2) (1.0)
Redemption of £1 preference shares - 0.1
Closing shareholders' funds 254.4 268.9

* Restated on adoption of FRS 20: Share-based payment
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Accounting policies

a Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and have been prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 and applicable UK accounting standards.

Under Section 230(4} of the Companies Act 1985, Filtrona pic is exempt from the requirements to present its own profit and loss account.
The following accounting policies have been consistently applied except as noted in paragraph b below.

b Change in accounting policy
During the year the Company adopted the following accounting standards:

FRS 20: Share-based payment ('FRS 20’ )land UITF 41: Scope of FRS 20
The impact of recognising the value of share options granted to employees working in subsidiary undertakings as an increase in the cost
of investment in those subsidiary undertakmgs was to increase shareholders’ equity at 1 January 2006 by £0.5m.

¢ Investment in subsidiary undertaking
Investment in subsidiary undertaking is held at cost less any provision for impairment.

d Share-based payments
The fair value of share options is measured at grant date. It is recognised as an addition to the cost of investment in the subsidiary in
which the relevant employees work over the ‘period between grant and vesting date of the options, with a corresponding adjustment
to reserves.

The shares held in the Filtrona Employee Benefit Trust for the purpose of fulfiling obligations in respect of share option plans are treated
as belonging to the Company and are deducted from shareholders’ funds.

e Dividends
Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a liability if they are authorised and no longer at the discretion of the
Company. Dividends that do not meet these'criteria are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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Notes

1. Net operating charges
The auditor was paid £4,115 (2005: £4,000) for the statutory audit of the Company. Fees paid to the Company's auditor for services other
than the statutory audit of the Company are disclosed on page 61.

The Directors’ remuneration, which was paid by Filtrona International Ltd, is disclosed in the Report of the Remuneration Committee on
pages 33 to 40.

2. Investments held as fixed assets

Investment in

subsidiary

undertéking

2006

| gm

At beginning of year as previously stated 2741

Adoption of FRS 20 0.5

At beginning of year restated . 2746

Additions 1.2

At end of year 275.8

3. Debtors

2006 2005

£m tfm

Corporate taxes 0.1 -
4. Creditors

2006 12005

£m [ €m

Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 215 57

5. Share capital

2006 2005

£m | £m

Authorised: 500 milfion (2005: 500 million) ordinary shares of 25p (2005: 25p) each 125.0 125.0

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 25p (2005: 25p} each 54.8 548
Number of shares in issue

Beginning and end of year 219,326,795 219,326,795

On B June 2005 a resolution was passed reducing the ordinary share capital by 100p per share (total: £219.3m), and on 9 June 2005 this
was confirmed by an Qrder of the High Court. The amounts arising were used to create a profit and loss account reserve in the Company.

Redeemable preference share capital ~
On 6 May 2005 the Company issued 50,000 redeemable preference shares of £1 each to Bunzi. On 11 May 2005 all the redeemable
preference shares were redeemed for cash at par from existing resources.
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Capital Proiit

redemption and loss

reserve account

£m £m

At beginning of year as previously stated 04 213.5
Adoption of FRS 20 . 0.5
At beginning of year restated 01 2140
Retained loss for the year ended 31 Decembar 2006 0.2
Acquisition of employee berefit trust shares (1.2)
Share-based payments 1.2
Dividends paid (14.3)
At end of year i 0.1 199.5

As permitied by section 230 of the Companies Act 1885, the profit and loss account of the Company has not been separately presented
in these financial statements. The loss attributable to equity holders included in the accounts of the Company is £0.2m (2005: £0.1m).

Included in the profit and loss account are accumutated share-based payments of £1.7m (2005 £0.5m) which are not distributable.

7. Dividends
Per share Total
2006 2005 2006 2005
4] p £m om
2005 interim: paid 31 October 2005 213 4.7
2005 final: paid 28 April 2006 427 9.3
2008 interim: paid 27 October 2006 2.30 5.0
2006 proposed final: payable 4 May 2007 4.60 101
il 6.90 6.40 15.1 14.0
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B. Principal subsidiary undertakings

Country of
incorporation

Filtrona Extrusion Inc Uus
Globalpack Ind e Comercio Ltda Brazil
Moss Plastic Parts Ltd UK
Filtrona BV The Netherlands
Cigarette Components Ltd UK
Filtrona de Mexico S de RL de CV Mexico
PT Filtrona Indonesia Indonesia
Filtrona International GmbH Germany
Filtrona International Ltd UK
Filtrona United Kingdom Ltd UK
FIL International Ltd UK
Filtrona Finance Ltd UK
Filtrona Holdings Corp . us
FiL Holdings Corp us

The companies named above are the principat subsidiary undertakings of Filtrona plc and are included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The wholly owned investments in the companies above relate to ordinary shares or common stock. The
principal country in which each company operates is the country of incorporation.

Filtrona International Ltd is the only direct subsidiary of Filtrona plc.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Filtrona plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Filirona plc for the year ended 31 December 2006 which comprise the
balance sheet and the related notes. These parent company financial statements have been prepared under the accounting poficies set
out therain. We have also audited the information in the Report of the Remuneration Committee that is described as having been audited.

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Filtrona ple for the year ended 31 December 2006.

This Report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we mnght ‘state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to themin an
auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respons:btllty to anyone
other than the Company and the Company’ s members as a body, for our audit work, for this Report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

The Directors’ respeonsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the Report of the Remuneration Committee and the parent company
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and UK Accounting Standards {UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are
set out in the Statement of Directors’ Hespons:brlltles on pages 31 and 32.

Our rasponsibility is to audit the parent company financial statements and the part of the Report of the Remuneration Committee to be
audited in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland}.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the parent
company financial statements and the part of the Report of the Remuneration Committee to be audited have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report is
consistent with the parent company fi nancual statements The information given in the Directors’ Report includes that specific information
presented in the Business Review that is cross referred from the Business Review section of the Directors’ Report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding Directors’ remuneration and other
transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited parent company
financial statements. We consider the |mplrcat|ons for our Report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the parent company findncial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with 1ntemat|onal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, pf evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the parent company financial
statements and the part of the Report of the Remuneration Committee to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of the parent company financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order fo
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company financial statements and the part of the Report
of the Remuneration Committee to be audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other iregularity or emor.
In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the parent company financial
statements and the part of the Report of the Remuneratlon Committee.

Opinion

In our opinion:
the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2006;

* the parent company fi financial statements and the part of the Report of the Remuneration Committee to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Comparues Act 1985; and

« the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the parent company financial statements.

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants 8 Salisbury Square
Registered Auditor . l.ondon, EC4Y 8BB

1 March 2007 _ : United Kingdom .
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Advisors’ details and investor information

Secretary and Registered Office
Jon Green

Avebury House, 201-249 Avebury Boulevard, Milton Keynes, Buckinghamshire MK9 1AU

Company Number 05444853
www filtrona.com

Financial advisor and stockbroker
JPMorgan Cazenove
20 Moorgate, London EC2R 6DA

Solicitors
Slaughter and May
One Bunhill Row, London EC1Y 8YY

Auditor
KPMG Audit Plc
8 Salisbury Square, London EC4Y 8BB

Principal bankers
Loyds TSB Bank ple
25 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7HN

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc
135 Bishopsgate, London EC2M 3UR

Registrar

If you have any questions about your shareholding, please contact, in the_ first instance:

Cormputershare Investor Services ple

PO Box 82, The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 7NH

Telephone 0870 702 0003

www filtrona.com

Computershare also has an internet facility whereby shareholders in Filtrona plc are able to access details of their shareholding.

You can access this service at www.computershare.com.

Electronic communication

As an alternative to receiving documentation through the post, the Company offers shareholders the option to receive by email, a
notification that shareholder documents (including the Annual and Interim Reports, Notice of Shareholder Meetings, Proxy Forms

etc) are available for access on the Company's website. If you wish to make such an election, you should register online at

www.computershare.com, If you have already made such an election you need take no further action. Registration is entirety

voluntary and you may request a hard copy of the shareholder decuments or change your election at any time.

CREST
Share Settlement System

The Company entered the CREST systermn on listing and the ordinary shares are available for settiement in CREST. As the membership

system is voluntary, shareholders not wishing to participate can continue to hold their own share certificates.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual Generat Meeting of the Company will be held at the Holiday inn Hotel, 500 Saxon Gate West, Milton Keynes,
Buckinghamshire MK 2HQ on Monday 30 April 2007 at 12 noon.
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1%

Financial calendar 2007

Annual General Meeting 30 April 2007
Final dividend 4 May 2007

Interim announcement August 2007
Interim dividend October 2007
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Filtrona plc (the ‘Company') will be held at the Holiday Inn Hotel,
500 Saxon Gate West, Milton Keynes, Buckinghamshire MK9 2HQ on Monday 30 April 2007 at 12 noon for the following

purposes:

Ordinary Business

bk~

To receive and adopt the accounts for he year ended 31 December 2006 and the Reports of the Directors and Auditor thereon.
To receive and adopt the Report of the‘Remuneratlon Committee for the year ended 31 December 2006.

To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2006.

To re-elect Jeff Harris, who retires by rotatlon as a Director.

To re-glect Adrian Auer, who retires by 1 rotatlon as a Director.

6. “To re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditor and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Special Business
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following Resolutions:

7.

Ordinary Resolution (Authority to allot unissued shares)

THAT the Directors be and they are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised, in substitution for all previous authorities, to
exercise all the powers of the Company to allot relevant securities {within the meaning of Section 80 of the Companigs Act 1985)
up to an aggregate nominal amount of 22 741,575 provided that this authority shall expire, unless previously revoked or varied, at
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company after the passing of this Resolution save that the Company
may, befcre such expiry, make an offerlor agreement which would or might require relevant securities to be allotted after such
expiry and the Directors may allot relevant securities in pursuanoce of such offer or agreement as if the authority conferred hereby
had not expired.

Special Resolution (Allotment of shares for cash)

THAT subject 1o the passing of Resolution 7 above the Directars be and they are hereby empowered pursuant to section 85 of the
Companigs Act 1985 to allot equity securmes {within the meaning of secticn 94 of that Act) for cash pursuant to the authority
granted by that Resolution, as if section 89(1) of that Act did net apply to any such allotment provided that this power shall be
limited to:

{a) the allotment of equity securities ln'connectton with a rights issue, open offer or any other pre-emptive offer in favour of
ordinary shareholders, where the equity securities respectively attributable to the interests of such ordinary shareholders are
proportionate {or as nearly as may be) to the respective numbers of ordinary shares held by them, subject to such exclusions
or other arrangements as the Dlrectors may deem fit to deal with fractional entittements or legal or practical problems arising
under the laws of. or the requirements of any stock exchange or regulatory body in, any territory or otherwise howsoever; and

{b) the alloiment or sale (otherwise than'pursuant to paragraph (a) above) of equity securities up to an aggregate nominal
amount of £2,741,575,

and shall expire, unless previously revoked or varied, at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company
after the passing of this Resolution, save that the Company may before such expiry make an offer or agreement which would
or might require equity securities to be:allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot equity securities pursuant to such
offer or agreement as if the power hereby granted had not expired.

Special Resolution (Purchase of own;shares)

THAT the Company be and is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of section 166 of the Companies
Act 1985 to make market purchases {within the meaning of section 163(3) of that Act) of ordinary shares of 25p each in its capital
("‘Ordinary Shares') provided that:

(@} the maximum aggregate number of Ordinary Shares which may be so purchased is 21,932,600,
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() the maximum price at which any Ordinary Share may be so purchased is an amount equal to 105% of the average of the
middle market quotations for an Ordinary Share taken from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five business
days immediately preceding the day of purchase and the minimum price is 25p per Ordinary Share; and

(c) this authority shall expire, unless previously revoked or varied, at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company after the passing of this Resolution, save that the Company may, before such expiry, make contracts for purchases
of Ordinary Shares which would or might be completed wholly or partly after such expiry and may make a purchase of
Ordinary Shares in pursuance of any such contract.

By order of the Board

Jon Green
Company Secretary
1 March 2007

Fittrona plc

Avebury House

201-249 Avebury Boulevard
Milton Keynes
Buckinghamshire

MKS 1AL

Notes

1. Amember of the Company entitled to attend and vote may appoint ane or more proxies to attend and, on & pall, vota in their stead. A proxy need not be a
member of the Company.

2. Aform of proxy is enclosed. To be valid the form of proxy and (unless previously registered with the Company) the power of attorney (if any) under which it is
signed {or a duly certified copy thereof) must be delivered to Computarshare Investor Services PLC, PO Box 1975, The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol
BS99 3FA not later than 48 hours before the time appeinted for holding the Maeting, Shareholders submitting a proxy are not precluded from attending the
Meeting and voling if they wish tc do so.

To vete using the Internet, go to www.computershare.com/uk/voting/ftr. You will need an Internet enabled computer with minimum web browser of Internet
Explorer 4 or Netscape 4. You will ba asked to anter tha Shareholder Reference Number and PIN number as printed on your form of proxy, and to agree to
certain terms and conditions.

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so for the Meeting and any
adjournment(s) of the Meeting by using the procedurss described in the CREST Manual. CREST Personal Members or other CREST sponsared members
and those CREST members who have appointed a voting sarvice provider(s) shouid refer to their CREST sponsor or voling service provider(s), who will be
able to take the appropriate action on their behalf.

In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST sarvice to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (@ ‘CREST Proxy Instruction’)
must be properly authenticated in accerdance with CRESTCo Limited's specifications and must contain the information required for such instructions, as
described in the CREST Manual. The message, regardless of whether it constitutes the appeintment of a prexy or an amendment to the instruction given by
a previously appointed proxy must, in order 10 be valid, be transmitted so as 10 be received by the Company’s agent {ID 3RA50) by the latest time(s} for
receipt of proxy appointments set out above. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the timestamp applied 1o
the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the Company’s agent is abla to retriave the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner
prescribed by CREST. After this time any change of instructions 1o proxies appointed through CREST should be cormmunicated to the appointee through
other means.

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsers or voting service providers should note that CRESTCo Limited does not make available
special procedures in CREST for any particular messages. Nermal system timings and limitations will therefore apply in refation to the input of CREST Proxy
Instructions. It is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST Personal Member or sponsored member
or has appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor or voling provider(s) 1ake(s)) such action as is necassary to ensure that a
message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST
SpOnsars or voting service providers ara refarred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical limitations of the CREST system
and timings.

The Comparny may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35{(5Ka) of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001.

3. The register of interests of the Directors and their families in the share capital of the Company and copies of the Directors' service contracts are available for

inspection by members at the Company's registered office at Avebury House, 201-249 Avebury Boulevard, Milton Keynes, Buckinghamshire MKS 1AU

between 8.30 am and 5.0C pm on any weekday, (Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excluded}) from the date of this Notice until the date of the Meeting
and will be available for inspection at the place of the Mesating from 15 minutes prior to the Meeting until its conclusion.

The Company holds nc shares as treasury shares within the meaning of section 1624 of the Companies Act 1985.

Pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertified Securities Regulations 2001, the Company gives notice that only those shareholders on the Register of

Members of the Company at 12 noon on Saturday 28 April 2007 or, in the gvent of the adjourned Meeting, 48 hours prior to the time of the adjourned

Meeting, will be entitled 1o attend and vete at the Meeting in respect of the number of shares registered in their respective names at that time. Changes tc

entries on the Register of Members after 12 noon on Saturday 28 April 2007, or 48 hours before the time appointed of any adjourned Meeting, will be

disregarded in determining the rights of any persen to attend and vote at the Mesting.

o
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Contact details

Holiday Inn Hotel

500 Saxon Gate West
Milton Keynes
Buckinghamshire

MKS 2HQ

United Kingdom

Tel: +44 (Y870 400 9057
www.holiday-inn.com

How to get to Milton Keynes

By road
From M1 leave the motorway at Junction 14, following signs to
Milten Keynes Central. Ge straight over seven roundabouts

staying on the HE, Childs Way.

At the eighth roundabout (South Saxon) turn right.

The Holiday inn Hotel is located on the left, immediately after the
traffic lights (opposite Debenhams).

From M40, follow the A34 to Bicester—Buckingham.

Tongwelt

Frem Buckingham the A421 will take you info Milton Keynes. Straet
To get to the Holiday Inn Hotel follow signs t to Milton Keynes

Central and the hotel is on V7, Saxon Gate West.

By rail
Virgin Trains and Silverlink Services provide direct and regular
train services to Milton Kevnes.

For further information, please contact Nat[or al Rail Enquiries on

08457 48 49 50 (24 hours) or www. nationalrail.co.uk.
Saxon
Street
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Filtrona ple, the international, market leading, speciality plastic and fibre products supplier,
today announces annual results for the year ended 31 December 2006.

Financial Highlights

e Revenue up 5.9% to £544.2m (2005: £513.7m)

e Operating profit before intangible amortisation up 6.6% to £61.6m (2005: £57.8m) with
underlying operating profit growth up 9.0%"

e Profit before tax up 9.2% to £54.6m (2005: £50.0m)
e 81% increase in net cash inflow before financing activities to £28.6m (2005: £15.8m)
¢ Diluted earnings per share up 8.3% to 15.6p

e Full year dividend of 6.9p per share providing an increase of 7.8% compared with 6.4p
' for 2005

" after taking account of the impact of foreign currency translation and a Sfull year of central service cost.

Operational Highlights

e Strong growth of higher margin businesses in Plastic Technologies with Protection and
Finishing Products now the largest profit contributing line of business

o Continued expansion of manufacturing and supply operations in lower cost regions
including the Ningbo factory in China

e Significant investment in geographic expansion, product innovation and intellectual
property development to drive organic growth '

¢ Company remains active in the pursuit of value enhancing acquisitions in selected niche
markets

Commenting on today’s announcement, Jeff’ Harris, Chairman of Filtrona, said:-

“These are a strong set of results for Filtrona’s first full year as an independent listed
company. The achievement of above trend organic operating profit growth reflects our
continued investment to drive improved operational efficiency, geographic expansion and
product innovation. Filtrona’s international niche market positions and strong balance sheet
give the Board confidence in the Company’s continued progress.”
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Enquiries

Filtrona plc

Mark Harper, Chief Executive
Steve Dryden, Finance Director
Tel: 01908 359100

Finsbury

James Leviton
Gordon Simpson
Tel: 020 7251 3801

Note: :
A webcast of today’s analyst presentation will be available on www.filtrona.com ne later
than 3.p.m. today.
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Chairman’s Statement

Results Summary

This is Filtrona's first full financial year as an independent listed company following the
separation from Bunzl ple in June 2005. Our management has shown the benefits of that
independence by delivering revenue growth of 5.9%, profit before tax growth of 9.2%, and
increasing diluted carnings per share by 8.3%. Underlying operating profit grew by 9.0%,
after taking account of foreign currency translation and a full year of central service cost,

which is well ahead of our historical trend of organic growth.

The Company is established as an international group with strong market positions and

manufacturing facilities in most major markets in the world.

Both business segments made real progress in 2006, with Plastic Technologies showing
particularly strong profit and margin improvement. Fibre Technologies recovered from the
tough conditions in the first half of the year and delivered both revenue and profit growth for

the full financial year.

The Company achieved an 81% improvement in net cash inflow before financing activities,
increasing from £15.8m in 2005 to £28.6m. This was largely achieved by operational
management focusing on stronger working capital control. During the year interest cover
increased to 10.1 times (2005: 9.6 times) and, at the year end, the ratio of net debt to earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation had improved from 1.5in2005t0 1.2 in

2006.
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Dividend

The Board is recommending a final dividend of 4.6p per share, which if approved at the
Annual General Meeting will make a total of 6.9p (2005: 6.4p) per share for the full year.
This represents a 7.8% increase on last year. The final dividend will be paid on 4 May 2007

to shareholders on the register at 10 April 2007.

Employees

After the challenges presented by the demerger, Filtrona’s employees renewed their focus on
generating sustained growth of revenue and profit throughout 2006. The performance of the
Company demonstrates the commitment and skill of Filtrona employees across the many
regions in which the businesses operate. On behalfoft.h_e Board and the shareholders, I would

like to thank them all for their continuing contribution to the strong development of Filtrona.

Outlook

Looking forward, Filtrona expects 2007 to be a year of further good underlying progress,
although the headline results will be affected by an anticipated £5m restructuring charge. As
previously announced, this charge relates to the restructuring of Cigarette Filters’

manufacturing facilities to match the expected reduction in demand for conventional carbon

dual filters.

| In Plastic Technologies, the combination of strong market positions and the expected

favourable trading conditions give the Company confidence in continued positive progress in

2007.
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Within Fibre Technologies, further progress is expected in revenue and operating profit from

the Bonded Fibre Components business and the Company remains confident in the future

prospects for Cigarette Filters.

The Company will continue to invest in the organic growth of the business and it 1s
anticipated that capital spend in 2007 will again be ahead of depreciation.

Capital investments will reduce unit costs of production and improve both quality and service
performance. Revenue investments will drive geographic expansion, product innovation and
intellectual property development. In addition, the Company remains active in the pursuit of

value enhancing acquisitions in selected niche markets.

With a clear strategy, a committed team and a strong balance sheet, the Board remains
confident the Company will continue to achieve good underlying growth and deliver

attractive returns.

Jeff Harris
Chairman

| March 2007
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Chief Executive’s Review

Overview
Filtrona is an international, market leading, speciality plastic and fibre products supplier with

activities segmented into Plastic Technologies and Fibre Technologies.

Plastic Technologies produces, sources and distributes protection and finishing products, self-
adhesive tear tape and security products as well as proprietary and customised plastic

extrusions and packaging items for consumer products.

Fibre Technologies focuses on the production and supply of special filters for cigarettes and
bonded fibre products such as reservoirs and wicks for writing instruments and printers, ..

household products and medical devices.

Filtrona derives strength from serving a diverse group of customers across a selected range of

niche markets. Filtrona is a supplier throughout the world to many internaticnal, blue chip,

market leading customers.

In 2006, the geographic destination of the Company’s revenue was:

£m % of total
Europe 191.7 352
North America 219.6 404
Rest of World 132.9 244
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The Rest of World segment includes many of the lower cost manufactu'ring regions and has
grown from 22.5% of revenue in 2004 to 24.4% in 2006. As the Company moves into new
regions for manufacture and supply it seeks to maximise the opportunities across all of its
lines of business. It is expected that the expansion of the Ningbo, China factory, which was
opened in 2004 by the Bonded Fibre Components business, will facilitate the introduction of
both Protection and Finishing Products and Plastic Profile and Sheet activities into the

Chinese market during 2007.

Performance

Last year Filtrona reported that it had made a promising start as an independent listed
company. In its first full financial year since the June 2005 demerger, the Company
continued to perform well with revenue up 5.9% to £544.2m (2005: £513.7m} and operating
profit before intangible amortisation and demerger expense up 6.6% 1o £61.6m (2005:
£57.8m). Underlying operating profit growth was 9.0% after taking account of the impact of
foreign currency translation and a full year of central service cost. The net cash inflow from
operating activities was strong at £61.1m (2005: £56.9m) up 7.4%. The return on average
operating capital excluding intangibles improved from 23.7% to 23.8% in 2006 and adjusted

earnings per share grew by 6.7% from 15.0p to 16.0p.

Strategy

Filtrona's strategy is to continue to grow profitably through investing organically and by
acquisition in selected niche international markets within Plastic Technologies and Fibre
Technologies. The Company endeavours to strengthen its competitive position through

product innovation, sourcing and distribution expansion, supply chain improvement and cost
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reduction. In addition, investments in people, systems and infrastructure, combined with the

acquisition of selected value enhancing businesses, will also drive the future performance of

Filtrona.

Plastic Technologies

Plastic Technologies had another very successful year with revenue up 5.9% to £289.5m
(2005: £273.3m) and operating profit before intangible amortisation up 10.1% to £41.4m
(2005: £37.6m). The operating margin improved again to 14.3% (2005: 13_.8%) reflecting the
stronger performance of the higher margin businesses. During 2006, polymer input costs rose
progressively throughout the year in Europe but showed some easing during the final quarter
in the Americas after three consecutive quarters of increases. These increases were fully
recovered, through selective pricing action, thereby underlining the strength of Filtrona’s
niche market positions. Revenue per employee increased by 2.4% to £94,763 (2005: £92,550)
and operating profit before intangible amortisation per employee increased by 6.4% to

£13,552 (2005: £12,733).

Protection and Finishing Products again performed particularly well. It has now grown to
become Filtrona’s largest profit contributing line of business and is expected to continue in
this position. The key strategic drivers behind its progress remain geographic development,

product range expansion and investment in marketing programmes.

Moss, the pan-European plastic parts supplier, continued to gain market share in Continental
Europe and maintained its market leading position in the UK where the ongoing decline of
manufacturing industry is generating tough trading conditions. The mix of proprietary and

custom lines strengthened further in favour of proprietary products. The expansion of the
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Moss North European distribution hub in Germany was completed in April 2006 and this will '

yield important service benefits to the Continental European operations. The Company
intends 1o continue the development of the distribution network and the opening of the next
unit in Hungary is planned for the first half of 2007. In China, the headcount within the
sourcing organisation in Ningbo was further increased and reliable, high quality sources for
both finished products and tooling have now been established. Production output improved
as a result of investment in larger machines and tooling, and a new tool handling and storage
system was completed in the second half of the year at the Oxfordshire facility. The disposal

of a small non-core plastic promotional products business was completed in March 2006.

Skiffy, the European specialist small nylon parts producer, achieved strong sales growth and

continued to perform well ahead of the forecasts set at the time of its acquisition in 2004, All
locations benefited from further investment in marketing programmes which, combined with

improved productivity, increased margins. Internet ordering via the website,

www.skiffy.com, is an important component of the business model and usage again increased

to account for 22.0% of Skiffy’s 2006 revenues. The new Skiffy distribution facility in

Poland is now fully operational.

In the Americas, Alliance, the US-based plastic parts supplier, continued to progress as
planned with good growth despite the weakness in the automotive sector. During 2006
substantial internal resources were dedicated to the implementation programme for a new
computer system which will streamline operations and improve customer service. The new
system went live successfully over the year end period without business disruption and
benefits from the improvements to overall efficiency are already being seen. The new

manufacturing operation in Sad Paulo started up on schedule and the improved
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competitiveness from manufacturing locally is already having a positive impact on revenuc

growth rates in Brazil. The configuration of the Erie, Pennsylvania central warehouse was

modified to improve stocking density by 35%. Unit production costs continued to fall at the

Erie facility as a result of further investment in new machinery and high cavitation tooling.
Preparations were made for a new Alliance Express location in Chicago, US which is now

open.

Performance at MSI, the oil country tubular goods thread protector business, was again

strong resulting from favourable trading conditions, market share gains and investment-
driven productivity improvements. At the end of the year, trial orders were placed by an
important new international customer and the benefit from this new account should feed
through in 2007. Additional investments in new production machinery and tooling were
made at Houston, Texas and Vera Cruz, Mexico and the purchase of land adjacent to the

Houston facility was completed to secure space for the future growth of that operation.

Protection and Finishing Products has a clear strategy and good momentum behind it.

Looking ahead to 2007, it is expected to again perform well.

Coated and Security Products continued to pursue its strategy of developing new security
technologies and applications, whilst sustaining its world leadership position in the self-
adhesive tear tape market. A modest revenue increase was achieved, with the good growth in

security products and FractureCode partly offset by reductions in tear tape.

The tear tape business suffered from continued weakness in demand for promotional tapes as

some important customers in the tobacco sector reduced promotional activity. Sales into
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other fast-moving consumer goods (‘FMCG’) sectors were strong. The facility in Richmond,

US was upgraded to enable the printing of security products and, during the second half of
the year, new slitting lines were installed in the UK and US to enhance both productivity and
quality. In January 2007, a labour cost reduction programme was announced within the tear

tape business.

Supplies of the laminate for the new generation UK passport were strong throughout 2006
and a new label placing line for this project was commissioned in the first half of the year. In
May, the acquisition of the CORGI identity card printing operation was announced and
production was successfully relocated to the Payne facility in North Wales where a major
upgrade programme was completed. Machinery for the production of security labels was
ordered and this, combined with the development of proprietary security technologies for use

across the business, is anticipated to stimulate sales within Payne during 2007.

in August 2006, the first FractureCode licence for its patented track and trace technology was
agreed with a major FMCG company and the roll out is progressing well. The losses
incurred in the first half of the year were substantially reversed in the second half and the
business incurred a small deficit for the year. Since the launch in May at the Intergraf
Symposium, a major international industry event, the FractureCode organisation has been
strengthened progressively to facilitate growth as new prospects are developed. A new

Managing Director has been recruited with relevant experience in the 1T industry.

The increasing investment in the development of new security technologies and the focus on
reducing cost are anticipated (o result in a satisfactory performance for the Coated and

Security Products business in 2007 despite the ongoing weak demand for promotional tapes.
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Plastic Profile and Sheet achieved strong growth in the year resulting from the combination
of good market demand and significant restructuring to reduce cost and enhance
6rganisati0nal effectiveness. Sales in the North American facilities were particularly
encouraging and performance was assisted by the closure of the small Phoenix, Arizona
facility at the start of 2006 and the transfer of production to the facilities at Chicago and
Tacoma in the US and Monterrey in Mexico. F)urther factory rationalisation has been
announced involving the cons_c)lidation in the US of the two Massachusetts facilities into one
at Athol, where a significant redevelopment is being undertaken, including the construction
of a new clean room for medical products. The Monterrey facility has been expanded to
support business growth and the addition of a new clean room for medical products is

planned for 2007.

During 2006 the North American organisation has been restructured with a reduction from
three 1o two operating regions and the establishment of a central marketing and sales function
for the key product groups. Sector specialist sales groups have been formed to sharpen focus
and to facilitate improved market penetration. Sales into the key aerospace and point of
‘purchase markets in Nofth America have been very strong with point of purchase revenue in
2006 being more than double the level of circa US $12m achieved in 2004. Further
investment in machinery took place across the network of facilities which, in conjunction
with continuous improvement activities, assisted in reducing conversion costs. Good .revenue
.growth continued at the Enitor business in the Netherlands and a major factory expansion was

completed in the summer.




File No: 82-34882
With the benefits accruing from the strengthened management team, the new structure and

the streamlined plant configuration, it is anticipated that the US Plastic Profile and Sheet
business will have another good year in 2007, subject to underlying activity in the US
economy remaining healthy. The European Plastic Profile and Sheet business should

continue to experience good growth.

The Globalpack Consumer Packaging business in Brazil experienced very tough trading
conditions in the first half as performance was held back by market overcapacity, particularly
in tubes, and rising raw material prices. The improved performance in the second half, which
was consistently ahead of the comparable period in 2005, was driven by the combination of
greater demand, recovery of rising raw material costs through pricing and improvements in

manufacturing efficiencies.

The third deodorant roll-on ball line came on stream successfully at the end of the first
quarter of 2006 and ball volumes continue to grow satisfactorily. The investment programme
continued throughout the year and important new machinery for tube production and
decoration has been ordered for delivery in the first half of 2007. A minor expansion at one
of the two Globalpack locations will facilitate a partial plant re-layout and an increase in

warehouse space to drive the programme of productivity and service improvement.

Globalpack’s recovery is expected to continue into 2007.
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Fibre Technologies

Fibre Technologies achieved good revenue growth in the year of 5.9% to £254.7Tm (2005:
£240.4m). Operating profit, before intangible amortisation, which was flat at the half year,
improved in the second half to deliver a full year increase of 4.5% to £28.1m (2005: £26.9m).
The operating margin reduced to 11.0% (2005: | 1.2%). Revenue per employee increaséd by
0.8% to £106,792 (2005: £105,903) whilst operating profit, before intangible amortisation,

per employee decreased by 0.6% to £11,782 (2005: £11,850).

In Cigarette Filters, total volumes reduced by 1.6% or 1.1 billion filter rods with the
increase of 14.1% in special filters volumes offset by a reduction of 19.0% in monoacetate
filters. In response to changing customer demands, the strategy for the business has evolved
with an increased focus on the research and development of innovative and more complex
filter solutions to complement the core manufacturing capability. Much progress was made
during 2006 in strengthening the management team, including the recruitment of two senior

level operations specialists to drive improvement in factory performance.

In the Americas, overall revenue was flat as growth in North America was offset by a decline
in South America. The losses incurred by the Monterrey facility in the first half of the year
were substantially reversed in the second half due to productivity gains. Although the full
year position remained loss making, the operation moved into profit in the fourth quarter.
Revenue and operating profit grew in Europe as performance at the UK facility improved
with productivity gains derived from the development of manufacturing expertise in the
products formerly manufactured in Switzerland. An important European customer launched
a new brand into the Polish market featuring Filtrona’s proprietary Active Patch™

technology as the product differentiator. In Asia, strong revenue and profit growth was
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achieved. The transfer of the indonesian business to a new and larger facility was

successfully completed in the early part of the year and volumes produced in Indonesia were

up 94.2% from 2005.

The market conditions for the Cigarette Filters business in 2007 will remain challenging as
customers respond to mature and declining Western markets with significant capacity
reconfiguration. Customer discussions have confirmed that Filtrona will experience a
reduction in volumes of conventional carbon dual filters during 2007 which will impact the
Company’s facilities in both North America and Europe. Significant plant restructuring is
underway to reduce costs and improve productivity. These actions, together with increased
volumes in Asia, will mitigate the impact from the reduction in activity. The plant
restructuring will result in an anticipated charge of £5m in 2007. Filtrona remains confident
in the future prospects for the Cigarette Filters business due to the growing demand for
innovative fifters for PREPs (potentially reduced exposure products) and other differentiated
tobacco smoking products and for research and development services. To this end, increased
investment is planned in 2007 to strengthen the research and development capability and to

continue the progressive movement of production to lower cost regions.

Bonded Fibre Components continued to make important progress. Fibe_nec strengthened its
position in its core markets through the development of new products and technologies and
also experienced good growth in Asia. The Ningbo facility moved into profit as productivity
and quality improved and 1S09000:2000 accreditation was achieved during the year.
Volumes in China continued to grow following production transfers and the development of

new business won in the region. The pace of progress at Ningbo has generated the need for a
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plant expansion and construction of a factory extension began late in the year for completion

in the third quarter of 2007.

The recovery of volumes in household products continued throughout the year and was
assisted by customer requireménts for multiple wicking devices in air fresheners which
provide a selection of fragrances in one unit. The writing instrument product segment
progressed well and important business was won in Europe and Asia from a principal
competitor. The Reinbek, Germany facility performed strongly due to improved activity
levels and the impact of the cost reduction programme which commenced in 2005. A plant

upgrade programme at Reinbek has now begun.

The research and development centre in Richmond continued to develop potentially valuable
technologies for the medical device market and 11 patents were filed during the year. A key
customer in the pregnancy test kit market signed a long term contract with Fibertec for the
supply of wicks. During 2007 it is expected that the business will benefit from important
new product introductions both in the medical and inkjet printer reservoir product sectors.
Filtrona has been selected as the exclusive supplier of reservoirs by a major US corporation

for its entry into the inkjet printer market.

Mark Harper
Chief Executive

1 March 2007
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Note 2006 2005
£m £m

Revenue 1 £544.2 5137
Operating profit before intangible amortisation and demerger expense 61.6 57.8
intangible amortisation (0.9) (0.8)
Demerger expense - (1.0}
Operating profit 1.2 60.7 58.0
Finance income 8.8 56
Finance expense 3 {14.9) (11.8)
Profit before tax 54.6 50.0
Income tax expense 4 (18.6) (17.0)
Profit for the year 36.0 33.0
Attributable to:
Equity holders of Filtrona plc 345 316
Minority interests 1.5 1.4
Profit for the year 36.0 33.0
Earnings per share attributable to equity holders of Filtrona ple:
Basic 6 15.8p 14.4p
Diluted 6 15.6p 14.4p




Consolidated halance sheet
at 31 December 2006
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Note 2006 2005
£m £m

Assets
Property, plant and equipment 7 178.4 180.5
Intangible assets 8 59.58 63.0
Deferred tax assets 15 0.3 1.6
Total non-current assets 238.2 2451
Inventories 9 55.7 59.8
Income tax receivable ' 1.8 16
Trade and other receivables 10 81.1 85.6
Derivative assets 14 0.2 0.1
Cash and cash equivalents 11 20.7 30.7
Total current assets 159.5 177.8
Total assets A97.7 422 .9
Equity
Issued capital 18 54.8 54.8
Capital redemption reserve 19 0.1 0.1
Other reserve 19 (132.8) (132.8)
Translation reserve 19 16 53
Retained earnings 19 219.0 197.3
Attributable to equity holders of Filtrona pic 142.7 1247
Minority interests 19 6.0 56
Total equity 148.7 130.3
Liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 13 117.9 1452
Retirement benefit obligations 17 30.9 358
Cther payables 13 - 2.1
Provisions 16 2.7 25
Deferred tax liabilities 15 11.6 11.4
Total non-current liabilities 163.1 197.0
Bank overdrafts 11 1.0 5.0
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 13 0.6 0.7
Derivative liabilities 14 0.3 0.8
Income tax payable 16.0 15.2
Trade and other payables 12 65.0 68.9
Provisions 16 3.0 5.0
Total current liabilities 85.9 95.6
Total liabifities 249.0 2926
Total equity and liabilities 397.7 422.9




Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2008
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Note 2006 2005
£m £m
Operating activities
Profit before tax 54.6 50.0
Adjustments for.
Net finance expense 6.1 6.0
Intangible amortisation 0.9 08
Depreciation 22.9 2214
Share option expense 1.2 1.1
Other items (0.3} 1.1
Increase in inventories (0.3) (2.2}
Increase in trade and other receivables {0.7) (4.7}
Increase in trade and other payables 01 2.1
Acquisition of employee trust shares {1.2} (1.0)
Additional pension contributicn (1.5) (0.7)
Other cash movements (1.9) (3.9) I
Cash inflow from operating activities 79.9 70.7 ,
Income tax paid {18.8) (13.8)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 61.1 56.9
Investing activities
Interest received 1.0 1.2
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (34.3) (38.2)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and eguipment 1.8 0.9
Acquisition of businesses net of cash acquired 22 {0.5) {4.6)
Proceeds from sale of business 23 0.3 -
Other investing cash flows (0.8) (0.4)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (32.5) (41.1)
Financing activities
Interest paid (7.2) (6.7)
Dividends paid to equity holders (14.3) {4.7)
Repayments of short-term loans (0.1) (0.6}
{Repayments of)/proceeds from long-term loans {11.8) 133.7
Capital contributions from former parent company - 42
Repayments to former parent company - {147.0)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (33.4) (21.1)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {(4.8) (5.3}
Net cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 25.7 29.7
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents T {4.8) (5.3)
Net effect of currency translation on cash and cash equivalents (1.2) 1.3
19.7 25.7

Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

11
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Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
for the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005
£m £m |
Recognition of defined benefit pension schemes on demerger: .
Actuarial loss - {34.7}
Deferred tax credit on actuarial loss - 10.5
Other actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes 2.2 (2.0)
Deferred tax (expense)/credit on other actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension (0.7) 0.7
schemes
Movement on cash flow hedge - (0.1} -
Foreign exchange translation differences:

Attributable to equity holders of Filtrona plc (3.7} 6.9
Attributable to minority interests {0.3) 0.5
Income and expense recognised directly in equity {2.5) {18.2)
Profit for the year 36.0 33.0 -
Total recognised income and expense 335 14.8

Attributable to:
Equity holders of Filtrona plc 323 12.9
Minority interests 1.2 1.9

Total recognised income and expense 335 14.8
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Accounting policies

a Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial information has been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU in accordance with EU law (IAS Regulation EC
1606/2002) {‘adopted IFRS').

Filtrona plc’s 2006 Annual Report will be despatched to shareholders at the end of March 2007. The financial
information set out does not constitute the Company's statutory accounts for the year ended 31 December 2006
but is derived from those accounts. Statutory accounts for 2006 will be delivered to the Registrar of Companies
following the Company's Annual General Meeting which will be held on 30 April 2007. The auditor has reported
on those accounts: their reports were unqualified and did not contain statements under Section 237 (2) or (3) of
the Companies Act 1985.

The financial infarmation is prepared on a historical cost basis except for derivative financial instruments which
are stated at fair value.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongaing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods if relevant.

The preparaticn of financial information that conforms with adopted IFRS requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial information and
the reported amounts of income and expense during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on
management's best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates.

The accounting policies used in the preparation of this financial information are detailed below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all periods presented.

On 6 June 2005 the Filtrona business was demerged from Bunz! plc ('Bunzl’ or ‘former parent company’) and the
ordinary shares of Filtrona plc {‘'the Company’) were listed on the London Stock Exchange. The demerger was
effected by the payment of a dividend in specie by Bunzl and has been accounted for as if it were a reverse
acquisition. .

For the purposes of this financial information 'Filtrona’ or ‘the Group' means Filtrona plc, its subsidiaries and joint
ventures.

b Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiarigs

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by Filtrona. Control exists when Filtrona has the power, directly or indirectly,
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain economic benefit from its activities. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the financial information from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

(ii} Joint ventures

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. A joint venture is an entity .in which
Filtrona has a long-term interest and exercises joint control. Under the equity method, Filtrona's share of the
aggregate assets and liabilities is included in the balance sheet and Filtrona’s share of operating profit, finance
and income tax expense of the joint venture is included in the income statement.

(it} Transactions efiminated on consolidation
\ntragroup balances and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expense arising from intragroup
transactions are eliminated in preparing the financial information.

c Foreign currency

(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated into sterling at
the exchange rate ruling at that date and recognised in the income statement unless hedging criteria apply {see
policy for derivative instruments).

(i} Financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
consolidation, are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date. The revenues and expenses
of foreign operations are translated at average exchange rates.
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Accounting policies (continued)

c Foreign currency {continued)

(iiiy Net investment in foreign operations

Exchange differences since 1 January 2004, the date of transition to adopted IFRS, arising from the transiation of
the net investment in foreign operations, and related hedges are taken to the translation reserve and released to
the income statement upon disposal. Differences arising prior to 1 January 2004 are included in retained
earnings.

d Financial instruments

Under IAS 38, financial instruments are measured initially at fair value. The subsequent measurement depends
on the classification of the financial instrument. Interest bearing loans and borrowings and other financial
liabilities {(excluding derivatives) are held at amortised cost, unless they are included in a hedge accounting
relationship.

() Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge the change in fair value is recognised in equity to the
extent that it is effective and any ineffective portion is recognised in the income statement. Where the underlying
transaction results in a financial asset, accumulated gains and losses are recognised in the income statement in
the same period as the hedged item. Where the hedged item results in a non-financial asset the accumulated
gains and losses previously recognised in equity are included in the initial carrying value of the asset.

(ii} Fair value hedges
Where a derivative financial instrument is used to hedge the foreign exchange exposure of a monetary asset or
liability, any gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in the income statement.

(iij} Hedges of net investment in foreign operations
The gain or loss on an instrument used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation that is deemed effective
is recognised in equity. Any ineffective portion is recognised in the income statement.

e Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Previously revalued properties were treated as being held at deemed cost upon transition to adopted IFRS.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment or other assets have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items. The carrying values of property, plant and equipment and other assets are
periodically reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values
may not be recoverable.

f Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their estimated remaining useful lives on a straight line basis
at the following annual rates:

Freehold land Not depreciated
Buildings 2% or life of lease if shorter
Piant and machinery 7-20%

Fixtures, fittings and equipment 10 - 33% L
The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

g Leases

Where Filtrona has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset subject to a lease, the lease is
treated as a finance lease. All other leases are trealed as operating leases and the rentals expensed to the
income statement on a straight line basis, Lease incentives are amortised in the income statement over the life
of the lease.

h Intangible assets
(i) Goodwill
Goodwill is stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Acquisitions are accounted for using the purchase method. For acquisitions that have occurred since 1 January
2004 goodwill represents the difference between the cost and fair value of identifiable assets acquired. For
_acquisitions made before 1 January 2004, goodwill is included on the basis of its deemed cost, which represents
the amount previously recorded under UK GAAP, .
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Accounting policies (continued)

h Intangible assets (continued}
(i) Research and development
Research costs are expensed to the income statement in the year in which they are incurred.

Development costs relating to new products are capitalised if the new product is technically and commercially
feasible. Other development costs are recognised in the income statement and expensed as incurred.

(i) Customer relationships

Customer relationships are identified on acquisition of businesses and valued using discounted cash flows based
on historical customer attrition rates. Amortisation is expensed in the income statement on a straight line basis
over the estimated useful economic life, being a period of up to 25 years.

i Impairment

All assets. except intangible assets, deferred tax assets and inventories, are reviewed annually to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment, Intangible assets are tested annually. If an indication of
impairment exists the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, being the greater of value in use and net selling price, and is recognised in the income
statement. Value in use is estimated based on future cash flows discounted using & pre-tax discount rate.

i Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost {on a first in, first out basis) and net realisable value. For work-in-
progress and finished goods, cost includes an appropriate proportion of labour cost and averheads.

k Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash balances and fixed term investments whose maturities are three
months or less from the date of acquisition. Bank overdrafts repayable on demand which form an integral part of
Filtrona's cash management are included as part of cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows.

| Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses.

m Income tax
Income tax in the income statement comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and any adjustment to tax payable in prior years.

Deterred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences arising
between the tax bases and the carrying amounts of assets and iiabilities in the financial information. The
following temporary differences are not provided for. goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates that are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset/liability is settled.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will ba realised.

n Revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in the income statement when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties
regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated expenses or the possible return of goods.

] Finance income and expense
Finance income and expense is recognised in the income statement as it accrues.

The finance expense prior to demerger includes interest payable to Bunzl. Following demerger the net reported
finance expense only reflects the cost of external borrowing.
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Accounting policies (continued)

p  Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of Filtrona that is engaged in providing products (business segment),
or in providing products within a particutar economic environment (geographic segment), which is subject to risks
and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

For operational and financial reporting purposes, Filtrona identifies two business segments which are
characterised by shared technology and raw material inputs.

q Pensions

(i) Defined contribution schemes

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are expensed to the income statement as
incurred.

(if) Defined benefit schemes

The significant pension schemes in Europe and the US have been accounted for on a defined benefit basis under
IAS 19 (revised); Employee benefits ('|AS 19 (revised}). Under IAS 19 (revised) Filtrona had to account for
defined benefit pension charges up to the period of demerger on a defined contribution basis and on a defined
benefit basis thereafter. Accordingly Filtrona recognised the retirement benefit obligation of £34.7m at demerger
in the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense.

Actuarial gains and losses that have arisen subsequently are recognised in full in the statement of recognised
income and expense.

The net obligations in respect of defined benefit pension schemes are calculated separately for each scheme by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and :
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any scheme assets is
deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the batance sheet date on AA credit-rated bonds that have maturity

dates approximating to the terms of Filtrona’s obligations. The calculation is performed by a qualified independent

actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The amounts charged to aperating profit are the current service cost, past service cost and gains and losses on
settlement and curtailments. The expected increase in the present value of scheme liabilities is included within
finance expense and the expected return on scheme assets is included within finance income.

r Share-based payments

Filtrona operates equity-settled, share-based incentive plans. A charge is made in the income statement based
on the fair value of options using the Black-Scholes model with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date and spread over the period between grant and vesting date of the options. The
amount recognised as an expense will be adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest.

The expense for share-based payments prior to demerger was the charge allocated by Filtrona's former parent
company based on the participation of Filtrona employees in schemes that it operated.

The shares held indirectly in the Filtrona Employee Benefit Trust for the purpose of fulfilling obligations in respect
of share option plans are treated as belonging to the Company and are deducted from its retained earnings.

s Provisions
A provision is recognised when there is a probable legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and
a reliable estimate can be made of the outflow of economic resources that will be required to settle the obligation.

t Net debt
Net debt is defined as cash and cash equivalents, net of interest bearing loans and borrowings.

u Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.
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Notes
1. Soegment analysis
Filtrona comprises the following business segments:

Plastic Technologies produces, sources and distributes protection and finishing products, self-adhesive tear
tape and certain security products as well as proprietary and customised plastic extrusions and packaging items
for consumer products.

Fibre Technologies focuses on the production and supply of special fitters for cigarettes and bended fibre
products such as reservoirs and wicks for writing instruments and printers, household products and medical
devices.

Business segments

2006
Plastic Fibre Central ,
Technologies Technologies Services' Filtrona
fm Em £m £m
Revenue 289.5 254.7 - 544.2
Operating profit/(loss) before intangible
amortisation 41.4 28.1 (7.9} 616
Intangible amortisation {0.8) c.1) - {0.9)
Operating profit/{loss) 40.6 28.0 {7.9) 60.7
Segment assets 175.0 1391 1.2 3153
Intangible assets 56.3 32 - 59.5
Unallocated items 229 229
Total assets 231.3 142.3 241 397.7
Segment liabilities 357 291 6.7 715
Unallocated items 177.5 177.5
Total liabilities 35.7 291 184.2 249.0
Other segment items
Capital expenditure 21.2 12.9 0.2 34.3
Depreciation 138 9.0 0.3 229
Closing number of employees 3,159 2,413 33 5,605
Average number of employees 3,055 2,385 33 5,473
2005
£m £m £m £m
Revenue 273.3 240.4 - 513.7
Operating profit/{loss) before intangible ‘
amortisation and demerger expense 3786 28.9 (6.7} 57.8
intangible amortisation (0.7) (0.1} - (0.8)
Demerger expense - - (1.0} {1.0}
QOperating profit/{loss) 36.8 26.8 (7.7} 56.0
Segment assels 180.1 143.1 4.5 327.7
Intangible assets 59.7 33 - 63.0
Unallocated items 32.2 32.2°
Total assets 239.8 146.4 36.7 422.9.
Segment liabilities 35.4 32.7 9.1 772
Unallocated items 215.4 2154
Total liabilities 35.4 32.7 2245 292.6
Other segment items
Capital expenditure 216 16.4 0.2 38.2
Depreciation 13.3 85 0.3 221
Closing number of employees 2,873 2,340 33 5,246
Average number of employees 2,853 2,270 30 5,253

T Central Services includes group accounts, tax, treasury, legal, internal audit, corporate development, human resources,
information technology and other services provided centrally to support the business segments
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1. Segment analysis (continued)

Inter-segment sales are not significant in either year. Net finance expense of £6.1m (2005: £6.0m) and income
tax expense of £18.6m (2005: £17.0m) cannol be meaningfully allocated by segment. The majority of unallocated
assets relate to cash and cash equivalents and the majority of unallocated liabilities relate to interest bearing
toans and borrowings, retirement benefit obligations, deferred tax liabilities, bank overdrafts and income tax

payable.

Geographic segments

2006
Revenue by Segment Intangible Capital
destination assets assets expenditure
£m Em £m £m
Europe 191.7 128.3 40.0 14.7
North America 2196 1156 18.2 116
Rest of World 132.9 71.4 0.3 8.0
544.2 315.3 59.5 343
Unallocated items - 22.9 - -
544.2 338.2 59.5 34.3
2005
£m £m £m £m
Europe 183.7 124.5 407 16.7
Morth America 2155 1331 219 14.2
Rest of World 114.5 70.1 0.4 7.3
513.7 327.7 63.0 38.2
Unaliocated items - 32.2 - -
513.7 359.9 63.0 38.2
All segments are continuing operations.
2. Net operating expense
2006 2005
£m £m
Changes in inventaries of finished goods and work-in-progress 0.2 (0.1)
Raw materiais and consumables 250.0 232.0
Personnel expenses (note 5) 129.9 124.8
Depreciation and other amounts written off property, plant and equipment 229 221
Amortisation and other amounts written off intangible assets 0.9 0.8
Demerger expense - 1.0
Hire of plant and machinery - rentals payable under operating leases 0.6 05
Qther operating expenses 79.0 76.6
Net operating expense 483.5 4577
Auditor's remuneration
Note 2006 2005
£m £m
Audit of this financial information i 0.2 0.2
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 0.6 0.6
Total audit fees 0.8 0.8
Cther services pursuant to such legislation ii 0.1 01
Other services relating to tax iii 0.1 0.2
Services relating to corporate finance transactions entered into or iv 0.3 -
proposed to be entered into by or on behalf of the Company or the
Group
Total non-gudit fees 0.5 0.3.
Total fees 1.3 1.1,
Notes

i Includes remuneration and expenses for the audit of the Company for the year of £4,115 (2005: £4,000)
i Fees for other services pursuant to such legislation related principally to the review of the interim financial statements
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2, Net operating expenses (continued)

iii Other services relating to tax are fees paid for tax compliance services and tax advice

iv The Company believes that, given their detailed knowledge of Filtrona's operations, its structure and accounting policies
and the importance of carrying out detailed due ditigence as par of the acquisition process. it is appropriate for certain
audit-related work to be carried out by the Company's auditor rather than another firm of accountants. The Audit
Committee, which consists of independent Nan-executive Directors, reviews and approves the level and nature of non-
audit work which the auditor performs, including the fees paid for such work, thus ensuring that their objectivity and
independence is not compromised. £0.4m (2005; £0.3m) of the total fees for non-audit services were charged in the UK

v Fees of £23,000 (2005: £22,000) were paid in relation to the audit of the Filtrona pension schemes

3. Net finance expense
2006 2005
£m £m
Finance income :
Bank deposits 1.0 1.1
Other finance income 0.1 01
Expected return on pension scheme assets 7.7 4.4
8.8 5.6

Finance expense
Loans and overdrafts (7.4) (5.4}

Former parent company financing (1.7)
Other finance expense - (0.1)
Interest on pensicn scheme liabilities (7.5) (4.4}
(14.9) {11.6)
Net finance expense (6.1) (6.0)
4, Income tax expense
2006 2005
£m £m
Components of tax expense: !
Current tax 22.0 17.3
Prior years’ tax (1.7} (1.2)
Double tax relief {2.4) (0.2)
Deferred tax {note 15) 0.7 1.1
Income tax expense 18.6 17.0
Income tax expense in the UK is £2.4m (2005: £1.1m).
Factors affecting income tax expense for the year
Filtrona operates across the world and is subject to income tax in many different jurisdictions. Filtrona calculates
its average expected tax rate as a weighted average of the national corporate income tax rates in the tax
jurisdictions in which it operates.
2006 2005
£m £m
Profit before income tax 546 50.0
Tax at weighted average . 18.0 16.0
Effects of:
Permanent disallowables _ 0.8 02
Overseas state and local tax 0.8 0.5
Unrelieved tax losses 0.2 1.8
Prior year adjustments (1.7) {1.2)
QOther items 0.5 (0.3)

Income tax expense 18.6 17.0
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Notes (continued)

5. Personnel expense

2006 2005

£m £m

Wages and salaries 110.2 105.2
Social security expense 131 131
Pension expense (hote 17) 54 54
Share option expense 1.2 1.1

129.9 124.8
6. Earnings per share

2006 2005

£m £m

Earnings atfributable to equity holders of Filtrona plc 345 316
Adjustment 0.6 1.2
Adjusted earnings 351 32.8
Basic weighted average ordinary shares in issue (million) 218.8 219.1%
Dilutive effect of employee share option plans (million) 1.8 0.8
Diluted weighted average ordinary shares {million} 220.6 2199
Basic earnings per share 15.8p 14.4p
Adjustment* 0.2p 0.6p
Adjusted earnings per shars 16.0p 15.0p
Diluted basic earnings per share 15.6p 14.4p

Adjusted earnings per share is provided to reflect the underlying earnings performance of Filtrona.

* The adjustment relates to intangible amortisation (2005: intangible amortisation and demerger expense) less tax relief thereon
* The number of ordinary shares issued on demerger was used as the weighted average number for the pericd prior to
demerger .

7. Property, plant and equipment
2006
Fixtures,
Land and Plant and fittings and
buildings machinery equipment Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost
Beginning of year 59.2 2671 40.9 367.2
Acquisition - 0.1 - 041
Divestment - 0.7} (0.2) (0.9)
Additions 39 27.0 3.4 34.3
Disposals (1.5) (4.8) {1.5) {7.8)
Currency translation (3.5) {17.3) (2.1} (22.9)
End of year 58.1 271.4 40.5 370.0
Depreciation
Beginning of year 12.7 147.3 267 186.7
Expense in year 15 17.6 38 229
Divestment - (0.7} (0.2) (0.9)
Disposals (0.4) (4.4) (1.5) (6.3}
Currency translation (0.8) (9.0) (1.0} {10.8)
£nd of year 13.0 150.8 27.8 1916

Net book value at end of year 451 120.6 12.7 178.4




Notes (continued)

File No: 82-34882,

7. Property, plant and equipment {continued)
2005
Fixtures,
Land and Plant and fittings and
buildings machinery equipment Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost
Beginning of year 46.5 230.5 36.0 313.0
Additions 8.8 252 42 38.2
Disposals (0.4) (5.9) (0.8) (7.1}
Currency translation 43 17.3 1.5 231
End of year 59.2 26871 40.9 367.2
Depreciation
Beginning of year 10.8 126.6 231 160.5
Expense in year 1.3 17.4 3.4 22.1
Disposals (0.2) {5.8) (0.7) (6.5)
Currency translation 0.8 8.9 0.9 10.6
End of year 12.7 147.3 26.7 186.7
Net book value at end of year 46.5 119.8 14.2 180.5
Net book value at beginning of year 357 103.8 129 152.5
8. Intangible assets
2006
Customer
Goodwill relationships Total
£m £m £m
Cost
Beginning of year 545 21.0 75.5
Acquisition (note 22) - 06 0.6 )
Currency translation (3.7} (0.2) (3.8)
End of year 50.8 21.4 72.2 ;
Amortisation
Beginning of year . 11.2 13 12.5
Expense in year - 0.9 0.9
Currency translation (0.7} - (0.7)
End of year 10.5 2.2 12.7
Net book value at end of year 40.3 19.2 59.5
2005
Customer
Goodwill relationships Total
£m £m £m
Cost .
Beginning of year 46.9 21.9 68.8
Acquisition (note 22) 5.1 - 5.1
Currency translation 25 {0.9) 1.6
End of year 54.5 21.0 75.5
Amortisation
Beginning of year 10.7 0.5 1.2
Expense in year - 08 0.8
Currency transfation 0.5 - 05
End of year 11.2 1.3 12.5
‘Net book value at end of year 43.3 19.7 63.0
Net book value at beginning of year 36.2 214 57.6
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Notes (continued)
8. Intangible assets (continued)

Filtrona tests intangible assets annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that they are
impaired. Intangible assets are allocated to cash generating units and a discounted cash flow analysis is
computed to compare discounted estimated future operating cash flows to the net carrying value of each
business. The analysis is based on forecast cash flows, with zero growth used to determine terminal values. The
estimated cash flows are discounted using Filtrona’s weighted average cost of capital and any impairment write-
downs identified are charged to the income statement. The test is dependent on management estimates and
judgements, in particular in relation to the forecasting of future cash flows, and the discount rate applied to these
cash flows.

9. Inventeries
2006 2005
£m £m
Raw materials and consumables 239 25.7
Work-in-progress 31 3.0
Finished goods and goods for resale 28.7 A
55.7 50.8

Inventories held at net realisable value and amounts recognised as income from the reversal of write-downs were
not significant. ’

10. Trade and other receivables
2006 2005
£m £m
Trade receivables 68.2 71.3
Other receivables 6.6 71
Prepayments and accrued income 6.3 7.2
81.1 856
-11. Cash and cash equivalents
2006 2005
£m £m
Bank balances 18.3 297
Short-term bank deposits not repayable on demand 2.4 1.0
Cash and cash equivalents 20.7 30.7
Bank overdrafts 1.0y (5.0
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 19.7 25.7
12. Trade and other payables
2006 2005
£m £m
Trade payables 38.1 39.5
Other tax and social security contributions 3.2 28
Other payables 6.7 7.2
Accruals and deferred income 17.0 19.4
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Notes (continued)

13. Interest bearing loans and borrowings
2006 2005
£m £m
Non-current liabilities
Unsecured bank loans 117.9 145.2
Current liabilities
Unsecured bank loans 0.1 o1
Unsecured non-bank loan 0.5 0.6
0.6 0.7
Terms and debt repayment schedule
2006 2005
<1yr 1-2yrs 2-5yrs Total <1yr 1-2yrs 2-5yrs Total
£m £m £m £m £Em £m £m £m
Unsecured bank loans 0.1 0.1 117.8 118.0 0.1 0.1 1451 1453
Unsecured non-bank loan 0.5 - - 0.5 0.6 - - 0.6
0.6 0.1 117.8 118.5 0.7 0.1 1451 145.9

All debt due for repayment in two to five years must be repaid no later than May 2010.

At 31 December 2008, the majority of Filtrona's interest bearing foans and borrowings were at floating rates of
interest set with reference to LIBOR for periods ranging from seven days to three months. €30m and up to
US$65m of net debt was protected from adverse movements in interest rates with interest rate caps for a period
of 20 months. On 24 February 2006 the interest rate on US$40m of net debt was effectively fixed at 5.1775%
with an interest rate swap for a period of two years. With effect from 24 November 2008 the interest rate on a
further US$30m of net debt was effectively fixed at 5.4313% with an interest rate swap for a period of two years.

At 31 December 2005, the maijority of Filtrona's interest bearing loans and borrowings were at fioating rates of
interest set with reference to LIBOR for periods ranging from seven days to three months.

After taking into account foreign exchange swaps, the currency and interest rate profile of Filtrona’s financial
assets and liabilities is as follows:

2006 2005

Impact of Impact of
Non- foreign Non- foreign .
Fixed Floating interest exchange Floating interest exchange '
rate . rate bearing swaps Total rate bearing swaps Total
£m Em Em £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Sterling - 3.4 11.0 - 14.4 35 223 - 258
US dollar - 5.0 298 - 34.8 4.9 30.2 - 351
Euro - 43 207 - 250 . 7.5 11.7 - 19.2
Other - 8.0 21.4 - 29.4 14.8 23.1 - 37.9
- 20.7 82.9 - 103.6 30.7 87.3 - 1180
Liabilities
Sterling - 311 18.9 (61.3) (11.3) 37.9 274 (78.1) (12.8)
US dollar 357 525 35.2 95 : 1329 11.7 357 202 1676
Euro - 0.2 16.5 52.1 68.8 0.3 9.1 58.6 68.0
Other - - 10.4 - 10.4 1.0 14.1 - 15.1
35.7 83.8 81.0 0.3 200.8 1509 86.3 07 2379

£nil {2005: £2.1m) of Filtrona's non-interest bearing financial liabilities are due for payment in one to two years.
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Notes (continued)

13.  Interest bearing loans and borrowings (continued)
Filtrona's available undrawn committed facilities at 31 December were:
2006 2005
£m £m
Expiring within one year - -
Expiring after one but within two years - -
Expiring after two years 97.2 70.0
97.2 70.0

Any loans drawn on these facilities would bear interest at floating rates with reference to LIBOR for the period of
the loan.

14, Derivative instruments

Filtrona uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks
arising from operational, financing and investment activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, Filtrona does
not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

Assets Liabilities
Contractual Contractual
Fair or notional Fair or notional
values amounts values amounts
£m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2006
Fair value hedges
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 1.6 - 9.7
Cash flow hedges
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 1.8 - 25
Interest rate swaps 02 35.9 - -
Hedges of net investments
Cross currency swaps - 4.4 {0.3) 57.2
0.2 43.7 {0.3) 69.4
Assets Liabilities
Contractual Contractual
Fair or notional Fair or notional
values amounts values amounts
£m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2005
Fair value hedges
Forward foreign exchange contracts 0.1 4.9 (C.1} 96
Cash flow hedges
Forward foreign exchange contracts - - 0.8 - 0.8
Hedges of net investments
Cross currency swaps - 14.6 (0.7) 64.2
0.1 20.3 {0.8) 74.6

Fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts and crass currency swaps have been calculated at year end
exchange rates compared to contracted rates. Fair values of interest rate swaps have been calculated by
discounting cash flows at the rates of interest prevailing at the year end. Fair values of other financial assets and
liabilities are not significantly different from their carrying amounts in 2006 and 2005.

The net fair value gains on open forward foreign exchange contracts that hedge foreign currency risk of
anticipated future sales and purchases will be transferred to the income statement when the forecast sales and
purchases occur over the next 12 months. With the exception of the interest rate swaps discussed in note 13 all
other derivative instruments mature within the next 12 months.

Filtrona has US dollar denominated borrowings and US dollar and euro currency swaps which it has designated
as hadges of its net investments in subsidiary undertakings. The exchange gains of £15.5m (2005 losses of
£11.3m) on these borrowings and the gains of £2.1m (2005: losses of £0.1m) on the US dollar currency swaps
and gains of £0.8m (2005: gains of £0.3m) on euro currency swaps have been recognised in reserves.
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15. Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

2006 2005
Assets Liabilities Net Assets Liabilities Net
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Property, plant and equipment (0.6) 17.8 17.2 (0.7) 13.2 12.5
Intangible assets - 7.2 7.2 - 51 51
Employee benefits (10.0} - {10.0) (11.4) - (11.4)
Other (3.8) 0.7 (3.1} {4.6} 82 36
Tax (assets)/liabilities {14.4) 25.7 11.3 (16.7} 286.5 9.8
Set off of tax 14.1 {14.1) - 15.1 (15.1) -
Net tax (assets)/liabilities {0.3) 11.6 1.3 (1.6} 11.4 9.8
Movements in temporary differences in the year:
2006 2005
£m £m
Beginning of year 9.8 18.4
Charge to the income statement in respect of current year (note 4) 0.7 11
Charge to the income statement in respect of prior years 0.9 1.7
Recognition of defined benefit pension schemes on demerger - (10.5)
Charge/(credit) to reserves on mavements of defined benefit pension schemes 0.7 (0.3)
Currency translation (0.8) {0.5)
End of year 11.3 9.8

No deferred tax liability is provided in respect of any future remittance of earnings of foreign subsidiaries where
Filtrona is able to control the remittance of earnings and it is probable that such earnings will not be remitted in
the foreseeable future. A deferred tax asset of £0.7m (2005: £0.7m) has not been recognised in respect of
capital losses as the realisation of this deferred tax asset is not considered probable.

18. Provisions
2006 2005

£m £m
Movements
Beginning of year 7.5 5.6
Expensed in the income statement - 2.5
Acquisitions 0.3 -
Reclassified from other payables - 3.1
Utilised (2.0) (3.8)
Currency transtation (0.1) 0.1
End of year 5.7 7.5
Non-current 2.7 25
Current 3.0 5.0

5.7 7.5

Provisions relate primarily to vacant properties, employees’ compensation claims, legal claims and environmental
clean up expenses. Non-current provisions are generally long-term in nature with the timing of utilisation
uncertain.

17. Employee benefits
Post retirement benefits

For the period prior to demerger Filtrona employees were members of the former parent company's defined
benefit and defined contribution pension schemes. The liabilities and assets of these schemes were transferred
to successor Filtrona schemes following demerger. Liabilities were actuarially allocated between Filtrona and the
former parent company and scheme assets were splitin the same proportion as liabilities.




File No: 82-34882

Notes (continued)
17. Employee benefits (continued)

Under IAS 19 {revised) Filtrona has to account for defined benefit pension costs up to the period of demerger on
a defined contribution basis and on a defined benefit basis thereafter. Accordingty Filtrona recognised the
retirement benefit obligation of £34.7m at demerger in the consolidated statement of recognised income and
expense.

Trustees administer the schemes and the assets are held independently from Filtrona.

Pension costs of the defined benefit schemes are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent
professionally qualified actuaries. Full triennial actuaria! valuations were carried out on the principal European
defined benefit schemes as at 5 April 2006 and annual actuarial valuations are performed on the principal US
defined benefit schemes. The assets and liabilities of the defined benefit schemes have been updated to the
balance sheet date from the most recent actuarial valuations taking account of the investment returns achieved
by the schemes and the level of contributions.

Contributions to all schemes are determined in fine with actuarial advice, local conditions and practices. Defined
wenefit contributions in 2007 are expected to be £5.9m, which consists of payments to fund future service
accruals and contributions o amortise the deficit in respect of past service.

The amounts included in the consolidated financial information in respect of arrangements in Europe and the US
are as follows.

2006 2005
£m £m
Amounts charged to operating profit
Defined contribution schemes 2.2 36
Defined benefit schemes:
Service cost 3.2 1.8
Total operating expense (note 5) 5.4 5.4
Amounts included as finance (income)/expense
Expected return on scheme assets (7.7} (4.4)
Interest on scheme liabilities 7.5 4.4 ‘
Net financial return {0.2) - !
Amounts recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense
Recognition of actuarial losses on demerger - {34.7)
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets 5.5 57
Impact of changes in_ assumptions relating to the present value of scheme liabilities (3.3) (7.7}
Actuarial gain/(loss} 2.2 (36.7)

The principal assumptions used by the independent qualified actuaries for the purposes of IAS 18 (revised) were:

2006 2005

Europe us Europe us

Rate of increase in salaries 3.90% 4.00% 3.75% 3.00%
Rate of increase in pensions 2.90% nfa* 2.75% nfa*
Discount rate 5.00% -~ 5.75% 4.75% 5.50%
Infiation rate 2.90% nfa* 2.75% n/a*
Expected return on scheme assets 6.10% 8.30% 5.90% 8.30%

* not applicable

The assumptions used by the actuaries are the estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions
which, due to the timescale covered, may not be borne out in practice.

The life expectancy assumptions used to estimate defined benefit obligations at 31 December 2006 are:

2006

Europe us

Male retiring today at age 65 21.8 181
Female retiring today at age 65 247 204
Male retiring in 20 years at age 65 23.0 18.1
Female retiring in 20 years at age 65 25.8 20.4
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The fair value of scheme assets, which are not intended to be realised in the short-term and may be subject to
significant change before they are realised, and the present value of the scheme liabilities, which are derived

from cash flow projections over fong periods and are therefore inherently

uncertain, are:

2006
Long- Long-
term term
rate of Europe rate of us
return £m return £m Total
Equities 6.90% 73.2 9.75% 17.5 90.7
Bonds 4.70% 13.3 5.75% 10.4 23.7
Gilts 3.90% 19.9 - 19.9
Other 4.70% 0.3 4.50% 0.2 0.5
Fair value of scheme assets 106.7 281 134.8
Present value of scheme liabilities (131.6} (34.1) (165.7)
Retirement benefit obligations (24.9) (6.0) {30.9)
2005
Long- Long-
term rate Eurcpe term rate us
of return fm  of return £m Total
Equities 6.80% 64.7 9.75% 18.8 835
Bonds 4.45% 125 5.75% 10.2 22,7
Gilts 3.80% 18.1 - 18.1
Other - 4.50% 0.1 0.1
Fair value of scheme assets 95.3 291 124.4
Present value of scheme liabilities {123.3) {36.9} {160.2)
Retirement benefit obligations (28.0} (7.8) (35.8)
Movement in fair value of scheme assets/(liabilities) during the year
2006 2005
Scheme Scheme Scheme  Scheme
assets liabilities Total assets liabilities Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Beginning of year 124.4 (160.2) {35.8} - - -
Recognition of defined benefit pension - - - 116.2 (150.9) (34.7)
schemes on demerger :
Contribution to defined benefit pension - - - 1.4 - 1.4
schemes by former parent company
Service cost {3.2) (3.2) - (1.8) (1.8)
Employer contributions 4.7 - 4.7 2.5 - 2.5
Employee contributions 0.8 (0.8) - 07 (0.7) -
Actuarial gains/(losses) 55 (3.3) 2.2 5.7 (7.7} (2.0)
Finance income/(expense) 7.7 (7.5} 0.2 44 (4.4) -
Benefits paid (4.7) 4.7 - (1.7) 1.7 -
Curtailment - - - (7.3) 7.5 0.2
Changes in scheme coverage - - - 0.3 {1.1) (0.8) -
Currency translation {3.6) 4.6 1.0 2.2 (2.8) {0.6)
End of year 134.8 (165.7) (30.9) 124.4 {160.2) (35.8)
2006 2005
% of scheme % of scheme
assets/ assets/
liabilities £m liabilities £m
Experience gains and losses
Difference between actual and expected return on 4.1 5.5 4.6 5.7
scheme assets )
Net actuarial gains/{losses) recognised in the 1.3 2.2 (1.2) (2.0}

statement of recognised income and expense
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Sensitivity

For the significant assumptions used in determining pos
analysis gives the estimate of the impact on the income s

December 2006.

Scheme liabilities
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t retirement costs and liabilities, the following sensitivity
tatement and balance sheet for the year ended 31

Annual service cost

Europe us Total Europe us Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
0.5% decrease in the discount rate 15.0 26 17.6 0.4 0.1 0.5
1.0% increase in the rate of inflation 25.0 - 25.0 09 - 0.9
1 year increase in life expectancy 35 1.1 4.6 C1 - 0.4
0.5% increase in the discount rate {13.0) (2.2} (15.2) (0.4} {0.1) (0.5)
1.0% decrease in the rate of inflation {20.0} - {20.0) (0.8) - (0.8)
Share-based incentives
Filtrona operates share-based incentive plans for its Executive Directors and employees. The total charge in
respect of these plans during the year was £1.2m (2005: £1.1m). Details of these plans are set out below;
Share options outstanding
2006
Weighted Weighted Weightad Weighted Weighted
average Granted average Lapsed average Exercised average average  Exercisable
At 1 Jan axercise during the exercise  during the exercise during the exercise At 31 Dec exercise at 31 Dec
2008 price year price year price year price 2008 price 2006
LTIP Parl A 2,133,262 239.5p 1,987 174 257.09 {138.812) 239.5p - . 3,981,624 248.2p -
LTIP Pant 8
‘sMatching’ £00,666 - - - - - €00,666
LTIP Part B
‘Performance’ 515347 - 496,810 - - - - 1,012,157 - -
DASB - - 128,320 - - - - - 128,320 . -
SAYE 3 year
plan - 764,823 237.0p (83,122) 237.0p {842) 237.0p 670,858 237.0p -
SAYE 5 year
plan - - 710,677 237.0p (46,181) 237.0p - 664,486 2371.0p
3,245,275 4,087,504 {278,125} {843) 7,058,111 -
i
2005
Weighted Weighted Weighted '
Granted average Lapsed average average Exercisable
during the exercise during the exercise At 31 Dec exercise at 31 Dec
At 1 Jan 2005 year price year price 2005 price 2008
LTIF Part A - 2,281,608 239.5p {148,3486) 23%.0p 2,133,262 239.5p -
LTIP Part 8 ‘Matching' - 600,666 - - - 800,666 - -
LTIP Part B 'Perfcrmance’ - 570,992 - (55,645) - 515 347 - -
- 3,453,266 (203,991} 3,249,275 -
Fair value model inputs for share options outstanding
2006
LTIP Part A LTIP PartB LTIP PartB DASB SAYE 3 year SAYE 5 yoar
‘Matching’ ‘Performance’ plan plan
Waighted average fair value at grant 41.1p 211.8p 237 .1p 276.4p 77.6p 92.2p
Weighted average share price ai grant 248 .2p 232.0p 262.1p 296.8p 296.3p 296.3p
Weighted average exercise price 248.2p - - - 237.0p 237.0p .
Weighted average volatility 22.7% 23.6% 24.1% 20.5% 20.3% 24.2%
Weighted average dividend yield 2.87% 3.07% 2.75% 2.40% 2.40% 2.40%
Weighted risk frae rate 4.36% 4.10% 4.23% 4.35% 4.39% 4.36%
Expected employee retention rates 76.9% 85.0% 91.5% 98.0% 55.0% 55.0%
Expected tarm J.25 years 3.00 years 3.75 years 3.00 years 3.00 years 5.00 years
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File No: 82-34882

17. Employee benefits (continued)

2005
LTIP Part A LTIP Part B LTIP Part B
‘Matching'  ‘Performance’

Weighted average fair value at grant 40.6p 211.9p 207.2p
Weighted average share price at grant 239.5p 232.0p 232.0p
Weighted average exercise price 239.5p - -
Weighted average volatility 24.0% 23.6% 23.8%
Weighted average dividend yield 2.98% 3.07% 3.07%
Weighted risk free rate 4.12% 4.10% 4.15%
Expecled employee retention rates 73.7% 85.0% B5.0%
Expected term 3.265 years 3.00 years 3.75 years

All options have been valued using the Black-Scholes model.

Volatility has been calculated over the length of the expected term, for the period immediately before the grant
date. The volatility of the former parent company's shares has been used as a proxy for Filtrona plc's share price

volatility in the period prior to demerger.

2006
LTIP LTIP SAYE SAYE
LTIP PartB Part B 3 year 5 year
Part A ‘Matching’ ‘Performance’ DASB plan plan
Contractual life 3-10years 3 -6years 3-6years dyears 3 years 5 years
2005
LTIP LTIP
LTIP PartB Part B
Part A ‘Matching'___‘Performance’
Contractual life 3-10 years 3 -Byears 3-6years
All options are settied with equity. R
18. Share capital
2006 2005
£m £m
Authorised: 500 million {2005: 500 million) ordinary shares of 25p (2005: 25p}) each 125.0 125.0
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 25p (2005: 25p} each 54.8 548

Number of shares in issue
Beginning and end of year

219,326,795 219,326,795

On 8 June 2005 a resolution was passed reducing the ordinary share capital by 100p per share (total: £219.3m),
and on 9 June 2005 this was confirmed by an Order of the High Court. The amounts arising were used to create

retained earnings in the Company.
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Notes (continued)

19. Movements on reserves
2006
Capital
redemption Other Translation Retalned  Minority
resorve reserve reserve earnings  interests Total
£m £m £m £m £m fm
At 1 January 2006 01 (132.8) 53 197.3 56 75.5
Total recognised income and expense for
the year 3.7 36.0 1.2 335 .
Acquisition of employee trust shares {1.2) (1.2) .
Share option expense 1.2 12
Dividends paid {14.3) (0.8) (15.1) -
At 31 December 2006 0.1 {132.8) 1.6 219.0 6.0 93.9
2005
Capital Cash flow
redemption Other hedging  Translation Retained Minority
reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings interests Total
fm £m £m £m £m Em £m
At 1 January 2005 - {132.8) - (1.6} (28.7) 3.9 (159.2)
Adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39 0.1 0.1
At 1 January 2005 restated - (132.8) 0.1 (1.6) {28.7) 3.9 (159.1)
Total recognised income and
expense for the year 0.1) 6.9 6.1 1.9 14.8
Transfer to retained earnings
on reduction in share capital 219.3 2193
Acquisition of employee trust
shares (1.0) (1.0}
Share opticn expense 1.1 1.1
Dividends paid 4.7) (c.4) (5.1}
Arising on acquisition 0.2 0.2
Redemption of £1 preference
shares 0.1 01
Former parent company’s
capital contribution 4.2 42
Former parent company's
contribution to the defined
benefit pension scheme net of .
deferred tax 1.0 1.0
At 31 December 2005 0.1 (132.8) - 5.3 197.3 5.6 75.5

Employes trust shares are ordinary shares of the Company held in an employes benefit trust. The purpose of
this trust is to hold shares in the Company for subsequent transfer to Executive Directors and employees relating
to options granted and awards made in respect of market purchase shares under the Company's share-based
incentive plans. The assets, liabilities and expenditure of the trust have been incorparated in this financial
information. At 31 December 2006, the trust held 872,166 (2005: 423,008) shares, upon which dividends have
been waived, with an aggregate nominal value of £0.2m (2005: £0.1m) and market value of £2.3m (2005: £1.2m}),

The other reserve relates to the Group reorganisation which took place as part of the demerger and represents
the difference between Filtrona plc's share capital and Filtrona International Ltd's share capital and share
premium on 6 June 2005 and is not distributable.
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Notes (continued)

20. Analysis of net debt
Exchange
1 Jan 2006 Cashflow movements 31 Dec 2006
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 228 (5.8) (1.0) 15.8
Short-term bank deposits repayable on demand 71 (4.3) {0.3) 25
Short-term bank deposits not repayable on demand 1.0 1.4 - 2.4
Cash and cash equivalents 07 (8.7} (1.3} 20.7
Qverdrafis {5.0) 3.8 01 (1.0}
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 257 {4.8) (1.2) 19.7
Debt due within one year (0.7) 0.1 - (0.6)
Debt due after gne year {145.2) 11.8 156.5 {117.9}
Net debt (120.2} 7.1 14.3 (98.8)
21. Operating lease commitments
At 31 December Filtrona had the following commitments under non-cancellable operating leases:
2006 2005
£m £m
Payable within one year ) 1.6 1.4
Payable between one and five years 4.5 4.4
Payable after five years 4.4 4.4
10.5 10.2

22. Acquisitions

in May 2006 Filtrona purchased certain assets and the business of the CSL Digital Print division of CORGI
Services Limited and, concurrently, entered into a five year agreement with CORGI Group Limited for the
exclusive supply of registered gas installer identity cards.

In December 2005 Filtrona purchased an additional 30% of FractureCode Corporation ApS ('FractureCode’),
taking Filtrona's share in FractureCode to 80%. FractureCode was previously accounted for as a joint venture

using equity accounting. Following the purchase itis now fully consolidated and contributed £nil to operating
profit before intangible amortisation in 2005,

The remaining 20% of shares in FractureCode could be acquired between March 2009 and December 2012,
The consideration for the remaining 20% of shares is dependent on various profit related targets and is capped at
a maximum of €40m,

On acquisition the assets and liabilities of the businesses acquired were adjusted to reflect their fair values to
Filtrona. The fair value adjustments are provisional and subject to finalisation for up to one year from the date of
acquisition,

The principal fair value adjustments are as follows:

In 2006:

There were no adjustments to the book value of assets and liabilities acquired.
In 2005:

The adjustment to intangibles represents the write-off of goodwill in the entity on acquisition in accordance with
IAS 38: Intangible Assets.

The adjustment to investment in associate and minority interest reflects the change from equity accounting to full
consolidation.
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Notes {(continued)

22. Acquisitions (continued)

A summary of the acquisition of CSL Digital Print in 20086 is detailed below:

Book and fair
value of agsets

acquired
£m
Property, piant and equipment 0.1
Trade and other receivables 0.1
Provisions (0.3}
{0.1}
Customer relationships 0.6
Consideration, satisfied in cash 0.5
A summary of the effect of the acquisition of FractureCode in 2005 is detailed below:
Book value at Consistency of Fair value of
acquisition  accounting policy  assets acquired :
£m £m £m h
Intangible assets 0.5 (0.5) - '
Trade and other receivables 07 - 0.7
Trade and other payables (0.4} - (0.4)
Cash and cash equivalents 0.1 - 0.1
Investment in associate - {0.5) (0.5)
Minority interest - (0.2) (0.2)
0.9 (1.2) (0.3)
Googwill 5.1
Consideration 4.8
Satisfied by:
Accrued expenses 01
Cash consideration 47
The net cash outflow in the period in respect of
the acquisition of FractureCode comprised:
Cash consideration 47
" Cash and cash equivalents acquired (0.1)
Net cash outflow in respect of acquisition of
FractureCode 4.6
23. Disposals

in March 2006, Filtrona completed the sale of the High Profile business for £0.3m, which was satisfied in cash,
and the contro! of the business passed to the acquirer.

This disposal had the following effect on Filtrona’s assets and liabilities:

£m
Inventories 0.3
Trade and other receivables 0.1
Trade and other payables (0.1)
Nel identifiable assets and liabilities (at date of completion) 0.3

Consideration, satisfied in cash 0.3
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24. Dividends

File No: 82-34882

Per share Total

2006 2005 20086 2005

P p £m £m

2005 interim; paid 31 October 2005 2.13 47

2005 final; paid 28 April 2006 4.27 9.3
2006 interim: paid 27 October 2006 2.30 5.0
2006 proposed final: payable 4 May 2007 4.60 10.1

6.90 6.40 15.1 14.0

25. Transactions with related parties

Other than the acquisition of FractureCode in 2005, Filtrona has not entered into any material transactions with
related parties. Furthermore, throughout 2006 and 2005, no Director had a personal interest in any significant

transaction of Filtrona.




NOTIFICATION OF TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS, PERSONS DISCIEARNING2-34882
MANAGERIAL RESPONSIBILITY OR CONNECTED PERSONS

This form is intended for use by an issuer to make a RIS notification required by DR 3.1.4R(1).

(n An issuer making a notification in respect of a transaction relating to the shares or debentures
of the issuer should complete boxes | to 16, 23 and 24.
(2) An issuer making a notification in respect of a derivative relating to the shares of the issuer
should complete boxes 1 to 4, 6, 8, 13, 14, 16,23 and 24.
-(3) An issuer making a notification in respect of options granted to a director/person discharging
managerial responsibilities should complete boxes 1 to 3 and 17 to 24.
4 An issucr making a notification in respect of a financial instrument relating to the shares of
the issuer (other than a debenture) should complete boxes 1104, 6,8,9,11, 13, 14, 16,23
and 24. R S
DT e
bl o T
Please complete all relevant boxes in block capital letters. —3-1'2.' e f
= ' )
1. Name of the issuer ;:‘,?2 oz
FILTRONA PLC 3 o
o 9
2. State whether the notification relates to T 'U_\
(i) atransaction notified in accordance with DR 3.1.4R(1)a); or E

(ii) DR 3.1.4(R)(1)(b) a disclosure made in accordance with section 324 (a'ns:"extdgnded by
section 328) of the Companies Act 1985; or

(iiiy  both (i) and (ii)

THE NOTIFICATION RELATES TO A TRANSACTION NOTIFIED TN
ACCORDANCE WITH DR 3.1.4R(1)(A)

3. Name of person discharging managerial respon.sibiIities/director

PAUL DRECHSLER

State whether notification relates to a person connected with a person discharging managerial
responsibilities/director named in 3 and identify the connected person

N/A

Indicate whether the notification is in respect of a holding of the person referred to in 3 or 4
above or in respect of a non-beneficial interest

THE NOTIFICATION IS IN RESPECT OF THE HOLDING OF THE PERSON
REFERRED TO IN (3) ABOVE

Description of shares (including class), debentures or derivatives or financial instruments
relating to shares

ORDINARY SHARES OF 25P EACH

7. Name of registered shareholders(s) and, if more than one, the number of shares held by each
of them

PAUL DRECHSLER



8. State the nature of the transaction File No: 82-34882
PURCHASE OF SHARES

9. Number of shares, debentures or financial instruments relatiﬁg to shares acquired
10,000 SHARES

10. Percentage of issued class acquired (treasury shares of that class should not be taken into
account when calculating percentage)

0.005%
H. Number of shares, debentures or financial instruments relating to shares disposed
N/A

12. Percentage of issued class disposed (treasury shares of that class shouid not be taken into
account when calculating percentage)

N/A

13. Price per share or value of transaction
£2.45 per share

14.  Date and place of transaction
1 MARCH 2007, UK

15. Total holding following notification and total percentage holding following notification (any
treasury shares should not be taken into account when calculating percentage)

18,519 SHARES
16. Date issuer informed of transaction
1 MARCH 2007

If a person discharging managerial responsibilities has been granted options by the issuer complete
the following boxes — '

17. Date of grant

18. Period during which or date on which it can be exercised

19. Total amount paid (if any) for grant of the option

20. Description of shares or debentures involved (class and number).

21 Exerc_ise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be fixed at the time of
exercise :

22 Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following notification



23

24.

Any additional information File No: 82-34882

N/A

Name of contact and telephone number for queries
PATRICIA KINGDON - 01908 359 100

Name and signature of duly authorised officer of issuer responsible for making notification

JON GREEN
COMPANY SECRETARY

Date of notification
1 MARCH 2007

END

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange




NOTIFICATION OF TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS, PERSONS pischilaBeng?2-34882
MANAGERIAL RESPONSIBILITY OR CONNECTED PERSONS

This form is intended for use by an issuer to make a RIS notification required by DR 3.1.4R(1).

(n An issuer making a notification in respect of a transaction relating to the shares or debentures
of the issuer should complete boxes 1 to 16, 23 and 24.
(2) An issuer making a notification in respect of a derivative relating to the shares of the issuer
should complete boxes 1 to 4, 6, 8, 13, 14, 16, 23 and 24, ;
3) An issuer making a notification in respect of options granted to a director/person discharging
managerial responsibilities should complete boxes | to 3 and 17 to 24.
(4)

An issuer making a notification in respect of a financial instrument relating to the shares of
the issuer (other than a debenture) should complete boxes | to 4, 6,8,9,11,13,14,16,23
"

and 24, 9,-_‘ =
. . T P, Th
Please complete all relevant boxes in block capital letters. S=osB My
=F L M
, TS o S
1. Name of the issuer :‘1,13 -
FILTRONA PLC T
=T e O
2. State whether the notification relates to £ n
(1) a transaction notified in accordance with DR 3.1.4R(1)a); or mynoogT

(ii) DR 3.1.4(R)(1)(b) a disclosure made in accordance with section 324 (zi'é'extended by
section 328) of the Companies Act 1985, or
(i)  both (i) and (ii)

THE NOTIFICATION RELATES TO A TRANSACTION NOTIFIED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH DR 3.1.4R(1)}(A)

3. Name of person discharging managerial responsibilities/director
JEFF HARRIS
4, State whether notification relates to a person connected with a person discharging managerial
responsibilities/director named in 3 and identify the connected person
N/A
5. Indicate whether the notification is in respect of a holding of the person referred to in 3 or 4
above or in respect of a non-beneficial interest
THE, NOTIFICATION IS IN RESPECT OF THE HOLDING OF THE PERSON
REFERRED TO IN (3) ABOVE
6. Description of shares (including class), debentures or derivatives or financial instruments
relating to shares
ORDINARY SHARES OF 25P EACH
7.

Name of registered shareholders(s) and, if more than one, the number of shares held by each
of them

JEFF HARRIS




8. State the nature of the transaction File No: 82-34882

PURCHASE OF SHARES
9, Number of shares, debentures or financial instruments relating to shares acquired
10,000 SHARES
10. Percentage of issued class acquired (treasury shares of that class should nat be taken into

account when calculating percentage)

0.005%
11. Number of shares, debentures or financial instruments relating to shares disposed
N/A
12, Percentage of issued class disposed (treasury shares of that class should not be taken into

account when calculating percentage)

N/A

3. Price per share or value of transaction
£2.468 per share

14. Date and place of transaction

1 MARCH 2007, UK

15. Total holding following notification and total percentage holding following notification (any
treasury shares should not be taken into account when calculating percentage)

31,651 SHARES 0.01%
16. Date issuer informed of transaction
1 MARCH 2007

if a person discharging managerial responsibilities has been granted options by the issuer complete
the following boxes —

17. Date of grant

18. Period during which or date on which it can be exercised

19, Total amount paid (if any) for grant of the option

20. Description of shares or debentures involved (class and number)

21. Exerc.ise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be fixed at the time of
exercise

22, Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following notification



File No: 82-34882

23. Any additional information
N/A

24, Name of contact and telephone number for queries
PATRICIA KINGDON

T: 01908 359 100

Name and signature of duly authorised officer of issuer responsible for making notification

JON GREEN
COMPANY SECRETARY

Date of notification
1 MARCH 2007




NOTIFICATION OF TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS, PERSONS DISCIARNNG2-34882
MANAGERIAL RESPONSIBILITY OR CONNECTED PERSONS

This form is intended for use by an issuer to make a RIS notification required by DR 3.1.4R(1).

() An issuer making a notification in respect of a transaction relating to the shares or debentures
of the issuer should complete boxes 1 to 16, 23 and 24.

(2) An issuer making a notification in respect of a derivative relating to the shares of the issuer
should complete boxes | to 4, 6, 8, 13, 14, 16, 23 and 24.

3) An issuer making a notification in respect of options granted to a director/person discharging
managerial responsibilities should complete boxes | to 3 and 17 to 24.

(4) An issuer making a notification in respect of a financial instrument relating to the shares of
the issuer (other than a debenture) should complete boxes 1to 4, 6, 8,9, 11, 13, 14, 16, 23
and 24.

Please complete all relevant boxes in block capital letters.

l. Name of the issuer
FILTRONA PLC

2. State whether the notification relates to
() a transaction notified in accordance with DR 3.1.4R{1)(a); or
(i) DR 3.1.4(R)}1)b) a disclosure made in accordance with section 324 (as extended by
section 328) of the Companies Act 1985; or
(iii) both (i) and (ii)

—
—
~1

THE NOTIFICATION RELATES TO A TRANSACTION NOTIFIED IN _ 0

Xl
4

ACCORDANCE WITH DR 3.1.4R(1)}(A) e
5 wd
=2 B ™
3. Name of person discharging managerial responsibilities/director 5T ey
e E, T
MARK HARPER o -
T >
4. State whether notification relates to a person connected with a person dlschargmg managerléy
responsibilities/director named in 3 and identify the connected person D5
N/A
5. Indicate whether the notification is in respect of a holding of the person referred to in 3 or 4
above or in respect of a non-beneficial interest
THE NOTIFICATION IS IN RESPECT OF THE HOLDING OF THE PERSON
REFERRED TO IN (3) ABOVE
6. Description of shares (including class), debentures or derivatives or financial instruments
relating to shares
ORDINARY SHARES OF 25P EACH
7. Name of registered shareholders(s) and, if more than one, the number of shares held by each

of them

MARK HARPER



1.

13.

State the nature of the transaction File No: 82-34882
PURCHASE OF SHARES

Number of shares, debentures or financial instruments relating to shares acquired

10,000 SHARES

Percentage of issued class acquired (treasury shares of that class should not be taken into
account when calculating percentage)

0.005%
Number of shares, debentures or financial instruments relating to shares disposed
N/A

Percentage of issued class disposed (treasury shares of that class should not be taken into
account when calculating percentage)

N/A

Price per share or value of transaction
£2.44 per share

Date and place of transaction

1 MARCH 2007, UK

Total holding following notification and total percentage holding following notification (any
treasury shares should not be taken into account when calculating percentage)

95,986 SHARES (95,576 held beneficially, 410 held non-beneficially); 0.04%
Date issuer informed of transaction

1 MARCH 2007

If a person discharging managerial responsibilities has been granted options by the issuer complete
the fotlowing boxes — '

17.

18.

16.

20.

21

22,

Date of grant

Period during which or date on which it can be exercised

Total amount paid (if any) for grant of the option

Description of shares or debentures involved (class and number)

Exercise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be fixed at the time of
exercise

Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following notification




23.  Any additional information File No: 82-34882
N/A
24. Name of contact and telephone number for queries

PATRICIA KINGDON - 01908 359 100

Name and signature of duly authorised officer of issuer responsible for making notification

JON GREEN
COMPANY SECRETARY

Date of notification
1 MARCH 2007

END

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange




NOTIFICATION OF TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS, PERSONS DISCHikRRoNG2-34882
MANAGERIAL RESPONSIBILITY OR CONNECTED PERSONS

This form is intended for use by an issuer to make a RIS notification required by DR 3.1.4R(1).

(1) An issuer making a notification in respect of a transaction relating to the shares or debentures
of the issuer should complete boxes | to 16, 23 and 24.
(2) An issuer making a notification in respect of a derivative relating to the shares ofthe issuer
should complete boxes 1 to 4, 6, 8, 13, 14, 16, 23 and 24,
3) An issuer making a notification in respect of options granted to a director/person discharging
managerial responsibilities should complete boxes 1 to 3 and 17 to 24.
(4 An issuer making a notification in respect of a financial instrument relating to the shares of
the issuer (other than a debenture) should complete boxes 1 to 4, 6, 8,9, 11, 13, 14, 16, 23
and 24.
Please complete all relevant boxes in block capital letters. -—;'; g,: o
| e
1. Name of the issuer = = :;.)
P ! -
FILTRONA PLC e ‘,__"
30 <,
o T oy
2. State whether the notification relates to = 5 O
(i) a transaction notified in accordance with DR 3.1.4R(1)(a); or {ﬂ_;:‘ =

(i) DR 3.1.4(R)Y1)(b) a disclosure made in accordance with section 324 (as ex[ended by
section 328) of the Companies Act 1985; or 7
(i1} both (i) and (i) -

THE NOTIFICATION RELATES TO A TRANSACTION NOTIFIED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH DR 3.14R(1}(A)

3 Name of person discharging managerial responsibilities/director
NEIL SHILLINGFORD
4. State whether notification relates to a person connected with a person discharging managerial

responsibilities/director named in 3 and identify the connected person

N/A

5. Indicate whether the notification is in respect of a holding of the person referred to in 3 or 4
above or in respect of a non-beneficial interest

THE NOTIFICATION IS IN RESPECT OF THE HOLDING OF THE PERSON
REFERRED TO IN (3) ABOVE

6. Description of shares (including class), debentures or derivatives or financial instruments
relating to shares

ORDINARY SHARES OF 25P EACH

7. Name of registered shareholders(s) and, if more than one, the number of shares held by each
of them

NEIL SHILLINGFORD




12.

15.

State the nature of the transaction File No: 82-34882 “
PURCHASE OF SHARES

Number of shares, debentures or financial instruments relating to shares acquired

8,000 SHARES

Percentage of issued class acquired (treasury shares of that class should not be taken into
account when calculating percentage)

0.004%
Number of shares, debentures or financial instruments relating to shares disposed
N/A

Percentage of issued class disposed (treasury shares of that class should not be taken into
account when calculating percentage)

N/A

Price per share or value of transaction
£2.45 per share

Date and place of transaction

2 MARCH 2007, UK

Total holding following notification and total percentage holding following notification (any |
treasury shares should not be taken into account when calculating percentage)

10,956; 0.005%
Date issuer informed of transaction

2 MARCH 2007

If a person discharging managerial responsibilities has been granted options by the issuer complete
the following boxes —

17.

18.

19.

20.

21

22,

Date of grant

Period during which or date on which it can be exercised

Total amount paid (if any) for grant of the option

Description of shares or debentures involved (class and number)

Exercise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be fixed at the time of
exercise

Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following notification




File No: 82-34882

23, Any additional information
N/A
24. Name of contact and telephone number for queries

PATRICIA KINGDON - 01908 359 100

Name and signature of duly authorised officer of issuer responsible for making notification

JON GREEN
COMPANY SECRETARY

Date of notification
2 MARCH 2007




NOTIFICATION OF TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS, PERSONS DISCHARGING2-34882
MANAGERIAL RESPONSIBILITY OR CONNECTED PERSONS

In accordance with Disclosure Rule 3.1.4R(1), and in accordance with Section 329 of the

Companies Act 1985, the Company was advised on 5 March 2007 of the following directors who
have acquired an interest in the ordinary share capitai of Filtrona plc (the ‘Company):

1. Name of company Zmo . Lm
2 32 ™
Filtrona plc Y= o1
= 2T
2. Name of directors -:"P >
. L oo ©
Mark Jeremy Harper and Stephen William Dryden E3
T
3. Nature of transaction : -
A Deferred Annual Share Bonus Plan (‘DASB’) award, and a Performance Share award
under Part B of the Filtrona plc Long Term Incentive Plan ('LTIP’)
4 Date of grant

2 March 2007 - LTIP
5 March 2007 - DASB

Period during which or date on which exercisable

DASB - deferred until 1 March 2010 subject to the rules of the DASB

LTIP — between 2 March 2010 and 1 March 2017, subject to the satisfaction of a
specified performance condition

Total amount paid (if any) for grant of the option

n/a
Description of shares or debentures involved: class, number

Number of 25p
ordinary shares
173,073

58,858

102,702

35,035

Executive Director
LTIP Mark Harper
DASB Mark Harper
LTIP Steve Dryden
DASB Steve Dryden
8. Exercise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be fixed at time of
exercise ‘

n/a




g.

10.

11.

12.

Executive Director — Mark Harper

Details
Matching Performance Share Award under Part B of the
Filtrona plc Long Term Incentive Plan

Performance Share Award under Part B of the Filtrona
plc Long Term Incentive Plan

Unapproved Options under Part A of the Filtrona plc
Long Term Incentive Plan

Deferred Annual Share Bonus Plan Award

Approved Options under Part A of the Filtrona plc Long
Term Incentive Plan

TOTAL

Executive Director — Steve Dryden
Details ‘
Matching Performance Share Award under Part B of the
Filtrona plc Long Term Incentive Plan

Performance Share Award under Part B of the Filtrona
plc Long Term Incentive Plan

Unapproved Options under Part A of the Filtrona plc
Long Term Incentive Plan

Deferred Annual Share Bonus Plan Award

Approved Options under Part A of the Filtrona plc Long
Term Incentive Plan

TOTAL
Any additional information
N/A
Name of contact and telephone number for queries

Patricia Kingdon 01908 359 100

Name and signature of authorised company official responsible for making this

notification
Jon Green, Company Secretary
Date of Notification

5 March 2007

Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following tHsladiiic8@:04882

Number

126,902
476,243

293,507

107,851
11,776
1,016,279
Number
102,474

286,085

172,781

62,538

11,776

635,654




File No: 82-34882

NOTIFICATION OF TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS, PERSONS DISCHARGING
MANAGERIAL RESPONSIBILITY OR CONNECTED PERSONS

In accordance with Disclosure Rule 3.1.4R(1), and in accordance with Section 329 of the
Companies Act 1985, the Company was advised on 5 March 2007 of the following
directors/persons discharging managerial responsibility (PDMR’) who have acquired an interest
in the ordinary share capital of Filtrona plc (the ‘Company):

1. Name of company
Filtrona plc
2. Name of directors/PDMR

Antony Edwards

Jon Green

Robert Purcell

Sreekumar Puthen Thermedam
Russell Rogers

Neil Shillingford

Alan Tidy

3. Nature of transaction

A Deferred Annual Share Bonus Plan (DASB’) award, and a Performance Share award
under Part B of the Filtrona plc Long Term Incentive Plan ('LTIP’)

4. Date of grant
2 March 2007 - LTIP
5 March 2007 - DASB
5. Period during which or date on which exercisable
DASB — deferred until 1 March 2010 subject to the rules of the DASB
LTIP — between 2 March 2010 and 1 March 2017, subject to the satisfaction of a
specified performance condition

6. Total amount paid (if any) for grant of the option

n/a




7.

Description of shares or debentures involved: class, number

Number of 25p

PMDR ordinary shares
LTIP  Antony Edwards 37,012
DASB Jon Green 15,135
LTIP  Jon Green 39,189
DASB Robert Purcell 25,977
LTIP  Robert Purcell 58,378
LTIP  Sreekumar Puthen Thermedam 51,351
DASB Russell Rogers 13,439
LTIP  Russell Rogers 43,342
DASB  Neil Shillingford 19,743
LTIP  Neil Shillingford 45,945
DASB  Alan Tidy 14,798
LTIP Alan Tidy 37,837

File No: 82-34882

Exercise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be fixed at time of

exercise

n/a

Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following this notification

PMDR
Antony Edwards

Jon Green

Details

Matching Performance Share Award
under Part B of the Filtrona plc Long
Term Incentive Plan

Performance Share Award under
Part B of the Filtrona plc L.ong Term
Incentive Plan

Approved Options under Part A of
the Filtrona plc Long Term Incentive
Plan

Unapproved Options under Part A of
the Filtrona plc Long Term Incentive
Plan

Deferred Annual Share Bonus Plan
Award

TOTAL

Performance Share Award under
Part B of the Filtrona plc Long Term
Incentive Plan

Approved Options under Part A of
the Filtrona plc Long Term Incentive
Plan

Unapproved Options under Part A of
the Filtrona plc Long Term Incentive
Plan

Deferred Annual Share Bonus Plan
Award

TOTAL

Number
29,608
115,784
11,776
88,359

4,549
250,076

105,635
11,776

72,459

21,171

211,041




PMDR
Robert Purcell

Sreekumar
Puthen
Thermedam

Russell Rogers

Neil Shillingford

Details

Matching Performance Share Award
under Part B of the Filtrona plc Long
Term Incentive Plan

Performance Share Award under
Part B of the Filtrona plc Long Term
Incentive Plan

Approved Options under Part A of
the Filtrona plc Long Term Incentive
Plan

Unapproved Options under Part A of
the Filtrona pic Long Term Incentive
Plan

Deferred Annual Share Bonus Plan
Award

TOTAL

Matching Performance Share Award
under Part B of the Filtrona plc Long
Term Incentive Plan

Performance Share Award under
Part B of the Filtrona plc Long Term
incentive Plan

Approved Options under Part A of
the Filtrona plc Long Term Incentive
Plan _
Unapproved Options under Part A of
the Filtrona plc Long Term Incentive
Plan

Deferred Annual Share Benus Plan
Award

TOTAL

Matching Performance Share Award
under Part B of the Filtrona plc Long
Term Incentive Plan

Performance Share Award under
Part B of the Filtrona plc Long Term
Incentive Plan

Unapproved Options under Part A of
the Filtrona plc Long Term Incentive
Plan

Deferred Annual Share Bonus Plan
Award

TOTAL

Unapproved Options under Part A of
the Filtrona plc Long Term Incentive
Plan

Deferred Annual Share Bonus Plan
Award

Performance Share Award under
Part B of the Filtrona pic Long Term
Incentive Plan

TOTAL

Numbgle No: 82-34882

85,194

157,416

11,776

115,361

48,773
418,520

40,574

147,304

11,776

110,124

4,493
314,271

6,106

115,653

89,023

17,626
228,408

88,300

23,019

85,259
196,578




23.

24.

25.

PMDR Details

Alan Tidy Performance Share Award under
Part B of the Filtrona plc Long Term
Incentive Plan
Approved Options under Part A of
the Filtrona plc Long Term Incentive
Plan
Unapproved Options under Part A of
the Filtrona plc Long Term Incentive
Plan
Deferred Annual Share Bonus Plan
Award '
TOTAL

Any additional information
N/A
Name of contact and telephone number for queries

Patricia Kingdon 01908 359 100

Numbgite No: 82-34882 |
111,607
11,776
81,977

21,285
226,645

Name and signature of authorised company official responsible for making this

notification
Jon Green, Company Secretary
Date of Notification

5 March 2007
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Director's & PDMR disclosure of interests in shares.

The Trustee of the Filtrona Employee Benefit Trust purchased 386,675 shares in Filtrona
plc on 2 March 2007 at an average weighted share price of £2.47 per share.

| Following the transaction, the Fiitrona Employee Benefit Trust owned 1,257,892 shares
| in Filtrona plc.

The following Directors and PDMR's are deemed to have an interest in some of these
shares as a consequence of their participation in certain employment share schemes:

MJ Harper

SW Dryden

J Green

| A Tidy

I A Edwards | -
| M Hydes |

R Miranda

R Purcell

R Rogers

N Shillingford

PT Sreekumar

Released by

Jon Green
Company Secretary

Contact details
T: 01908 359 100




Director's & PDMR disclosure of interests in shares.

Filtrona plc

File No: 82-34882

The Trustee of the Filtrona Employee Benefit Trust purchased 303,513 shares in Filtrona

plc on 5 March 2007 at an average weighted share price of £2.45 per share.

Following the transaction, the Filtrona Employee Benefit Trust owned 1,561 ,405 shares

in Filtrona plc.

The following Directors and PDMR's are deemed to have an interest in some of these
shares as a consequence of their participation in certain employment share schemes:

MJ Harper
SW Dryden

J Green

A Tidy

A Edwards
M Hydes

R Miranda

R Purcell

R Rogers

N Shillingford

PT Sreekumar

Released by

Jon Green
Company Secretary

Contact details
T: 01908 359 100
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Filtrona plc

HOLDING(S) IN COMPANY

19 March 2007

Filtrona plc announces it was informed today that, following the implementation of
the FSA’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules, as at 20 January 2007, Zurich
Assurance Limited will not have a notifiable interest in the voting rights attached to
the Company’s shares.

Name of contact and telephone number for queries
Patricia Kingdon

Deputy Company Secretary

01908 359100

Name of authorised company official responsible for making this notification
Jon Green

Company Secretary and General Counsel

01908 359100
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1. Identify of the issues or the underlying issuer of existing shares to which
voting rights are attached:

Filtrona plc

2. Reason for the notification
An acquisition of voting rights

3. Full name of person(s) subject to the notification obligation:
Legal & General Group Plc (Group)
Legal & General investment Management Limited (LGIM)
Legal & General Group Plc (L&G)

4. Full name of shareholder(s) (if different from 3.)..

Legal & General Assurance (Pensions Management) Limited (PMC)
Legal & General Assurance Society Limited (LGAS & LGPL)

5. Date of the transaction and date on which the threshold is crossed or reached
16 March 2007

6. Date on which issuer notified:
19 March 2007

7. Threshold(s) that is/are crossed or reached:
From 12% - 13% (L&G)

From 10% - 15% (LGIM)
From 10% - 15% (Group)

PAK/Q19



8. Notified details

A: Voting rights attached to shares

Class/type of share if Situation previous to the
possible using the ISIN Triggering transaction
CODE

Number of shares

File No: 82-34882

Situation previous to the
Triggering transaction

Number of Voting Rights

Ordinary 25p shares 29,566,713 29,566,713
(GB0O0B0744359)
Resulting situation after the triggering transaction
Class/type of Number of Number of Voting % of Voting
shares if possible  shares Rights Rights
using the ISIN
CODE

Direct Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect
Ordinary 25p 28,548,135 28,548,135 4,647,822 13.01 2.11
shares
(GB00OB0744359)

B: Financial Instruments

Resulting situation after the Triggering transaction

Type of Expiration Exercise/ Number of Voting Rights that % of

financial Date Conversion may be acquired if the Voting
instrument Period/Date instrument is Rights
exercised/converted
~ Total (A+B)
Number of Voting Rights % of Voting Rights
33,195,957 15.13

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/or the
financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable :

PAK/018
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Legal & General Group plc
(Direct and Indirect) (Group) 33,195,957 15.13% Total position

Legal and General Investment Management (Holdings) Limited (LGIMH)
(Direct and Indirect) 33,195,957 15.13% Total position

Legal and General Investment Management Limited (LGIM)

(Indirect) 33,195,957 15.13% Total position

Legal & General Group plc
(Direct) 28,548,135 13.01%
(LGAS,LGPL&PMC

Legal and General Investment Management (Holdings) Limited
(Direct) (LGIMHD) 7,546,847 3.44% PMC

Legal & General Assurance (Pensions Management) Limited (PMC)
7,546,847 3.44% PMC

Legal & General Insurance Holdings Limited
(Direct) (LGIH) 21,001,288 9.57% LGAS&LGPL

Legal & General Assurance Society Limited (LGAS & LGPL)
21,001,288 9.57% LGAS&LGPL

Legal & General Pensions Limited
(Direct) (LGPL)

Proxy Voting
10. Name of the proxy holder:

11. Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease to hold:

PAK/019
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13. Additional Information:
Notification using shares in issue figure of 219,326,795
14. Contact name:
Patricia Kingdon
15. Contact telephone number:
01908 359100
16. Identity of the person or legal entity subject to the notification obligation

Steve Dryden
Finance Director

PAK/Q19
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Filtrona plc (“Filtrona”) today announces the appointment of Lars Emilson, who

recently retired as Chief Executive of Rexam pic, to its Board as a Non-executive
Director with effect from 1 May 2007.

In accordance' with Listing Rules 9.6.13 (1) Lars Emilson has advised that he has
been appointed a director of the following company:-

Rexam pic (resigned 1 February 2007).

Lars Emilson confirms that there are no other details to be disclosed under Listing
Rule 9.6.13 (2) to (6).

As at the date of this announcement Lars Emilson does not have any interest in
ordinary shares in Filtrona plc.

Jeff Harris, Chairman of Filtrona, commented "I am delighted that Lars has agreed to
join the Filtrona Board. His extensive experience of organic and acquisition-based
growth in an international, high volume manufacturing environment is highly relevant
to Filtrona and | am sure Lars will make an excellent contribution to the Company's
future progress.”

Name of contact and telephone number for queries:

Filtrona plc 01908 359 100

| Mark Harper, Chief Executive

Steve Dryden, Finance Director

Name and signature of authorised company official responsible for making this

. notification:

Jon Green, Company Secretary
Date of Notification:

26 March 2007



Annual Report and Accounts 2006 and Notice of Annual General MeetingFile No: 82-34882

in compliance with Listing Rule 9.6.1, Filtrona plc has submitted to the UK Listing Authaority
two copies of each of the documents listed below:

1. Annual Report and Accounts 2006
2. Notice of Annual General Meeting for 2007

Copies of the above documents will shortly be available for inspection at the UK Listing
Authority's Document Viewing Facility at:

The Financial Services Authority
25 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

London E14 5HS

Copies of the Annual Report and Accounts 2006 and Notice of Annual General Meeting are
also available on the Company's website, www.filtrona.com.




